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COMPANY"'S PROFILE

NG

The Group is a leading wind power and pitch control system
solution provider in the PRC, and was successfully listed on the
Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on 20 October
2020. With a team of over 170 staff in R&D, production, sales,
operation and maintenance and investment, the Group has
established a mature business network around the new energy
power industry in North, East and South China, laying the
foundations for the new energy business worldwide.

We primarily engage in R&D, integration, manufacture and sale
of high-voltage pitch control systems for wind turbines. We also
offer customised integration services of major components of
pitch control systems. We are the first in the industry to adopt
and promote the high-voltage integrated pitch system. Through
utilising digital optimisation and integration technology for our
software and hardware system, we achieve digitalised wind
power high-voltage pitch control. At present, we possess 2
production lines and 5 test benches with product types
covering sophisticated models for 2-5 MW series. We have
successfully served quality wind power manufacturers such as
Envision Energy, Zhejiang Windey, CRRC Group, Sany
Renewable Energy, Sinovel, Shanghai Electric, etc.

We are also a wind power generator through the operation of
our Duolun Wind Farm situated in Inner Mongolia installed
with 13 wind turbines with total installed capacity of 19.5
MW, where we sell green electricity to the local power grid
company.

We also provide wind power post-market operation and
maintenance services, including operation and maintenance for
wind farms, technological renovations and supply of
consumables. Our team currently consists of almost 60 staff,
providing services for wind farms across the PRC.

In 2021, we newly developed the energy storage business by
taking Nature Smart Energy (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. as a platform.
We take advantage of advanced technologies such as energy
storage, cloud platform, Internet of Things, big data and
artificial intelligence, to devote ourselves to the provision of
overall solutions for, and the product R&D and integration of
integrated energy projects such as wind power storage,
photovoltaic energy storage, thermal power storage, and
cooling and heating power-based smart micro-grids.

The Group has always focused on the integrated services for the
new energy power industry and has formed core businesses
such as pitch control system, wind power generation, operation
and maintenance and energy storage. We will continue to
provide customers with high quality products and services, in
order to contribute green power to achieve the targets of “30
60" carbon neutrality and carbon emission peak.
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AFE B
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Corporate Information
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
B 5 i =

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER
BFE+_-_HB=+—HILEE

Percentage
2021 2020 change
Unit: RMB'000 B ARB T 20214 2020F  EHAHM
Revenue WA 312,864 338,895 -7.7%
Gross profit E 7 45,873 73,570 -37.8%
Gross profit margin EXES 14.7% 21.8% -7.1%
Profit attributable to shareholders B% 5 & (ki I 21,069 40,173 -47.6%
Earnings per share (RMB) BRAF(AR®ET) 0.084 0.201 -58.2%
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER
B8EFE+_-"A=+—HL=EE
Percentage
2021 2020 change
Unit: RMB'000 B ARBT T 20215 20206  EHEH
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEMR
Pledged deposits EERAHER 83,020 152,376 -45.5%
Total liabilities BAET 244,850 306,325 -20.1%
Net liabilities (total liabilities FEB(BEBRREE R
minus cash and cash ReEEYEREERA
equivalents and pledged 750
deposits) 161,830 153,949 5.1%
Total equity Ry R 259,561 241,101 7.7%

hEASEEREBRERAT T —&&% 5 ‘



CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERHBES

Dear Shareholders,

2021 was the opening year of the “14th Five-Year” Plan and
the first year after China announced the “30 60" dual carbon
control targets. China Nature Energy has witnessed and
participated in the rapid development of the new energy
industry and
excellence.

is striving to move forward and propel to

The Group insists on focusing on the new energy power
industry and its four core businesses of pitch control system,
wind power generation, operation and maintenance and energy
storage to maintain its leading position in the market of pitch
products. The Group achieved revenue from operation of
RMB312.9 million and net profit of RMB21.3 million in 2021
with sufficient cash flow and stable financial condition, which
may effectively secure the execution of existing orders and the
development of new businesses of the Group.

In 2022, wind power will enter the era of full price parity. The
structural improvement of new energy under carbon neutrality
will be the long-term logic of wind power investment, and the
increase in the proportion of wind and photovoltaic power
generation will drive the increase in installed capacity. In
addition, driven by the “dual carbon control” targets, energy
storage acts as the basis for the construction of a new power
system. During the “14th Five-Year” Plan period, it is expected
that the annual average growth of the new energy storage
market will be over 50%, and the market size may reach
RMB100 billion. 2022 will be the year of accelerated
development of energy storage construction. The Group will
continue to strengthen its internal capability and step up its
game. With green energy as the core, we actively explore and
adhere to product quality, leading technology and quality
service, and join hands with our partners to create a better
future.

Lastly, | would like to express my sincere gratitude to our
shareholders, customers and partners for their strong support to
the Company, and to the directors, management team and all
employees of the Company for their hard work and efforts in
2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B I8 B 5T AR B o AT

BUSINESS REVIEW

We are a wind power and pitch control system solution
provider in the PRC. We have developed the research and
development (“R&D"), integration, manufacturing and sale
business of high-voltage pitch control
turbines, wind power generation business and post-wind power
market maintenance and operation business. In 2021, the
Group developed a new energy storage business to provide
smart energy services in wind power, photovoltaic and thermal
power.

systems for wind

PITCH CONTROL SYSTEM RELATED
INTEGRATION, MANUFACTURING AND SALES
We develop, manufacture and sell (1) customised pitch control
systems and (2) customised core components of pitch control
systems, such as pitch drive controllers and motors, according
to the requirements of our customers, and generate revenue
from product sales and integration charges. The customers of
the pitch control systems have grown from Envision Energy at
the beginning to the current
manufacturers such as Zhejiang Windey, Sany Renewable
Energy, CRRC Group, Sinovel and Shanghai Electric. The
customers of the core components include Guoneng I&C.

quality wind turbine

In 2021, the Group delivered a total of 1884 sets of pitch
control system products,
volume of 10.6% from 2020. The products delivered included
different types of 2 MW to 5 MW models.

representing an increase in delivery

WIND POWER GENERATION

We commenced our wind power generation business in 2015
by operating our Duolun Wind Farm in Inner Mongolia. Our
Duolun Wind Farm is installed with 13 wind turbines with a
total installed capacity of 19.5MW, where we admit electricity
generated to the local power grid and sell electricity generated
to the local power grid company. We collect on-grid tariff from
the local power grid company based on the meter readings at
an agreed rate on a monthly basis.

In 2021, the annual utilisation hours of our Duolun Wind Farm
were 3099 hours, and the annual total wind power generated
and admitted to the power grid was 60.43 million kWh.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
B I JZ & B 0 AT

The new decentralized distributed wind farm project invested
and developed by the Group through Linggiu County Fengyuan
Energy Technology Company Limited* (8 T % 2 e BRI A
R 2 7]) (“Linggiu County Fengyuan”) in Linggiu County,
Datong City, Shanxi Province (“the Lingqiu Project”) was
successfully admitted to power grid on 31 December 2021.
After the approval from the Datong Municipal Administrative
Examination and Approval Service Bureau* (X [& /1 77 X 28 #t AR
% & B B on 31 2019, the pre-construction
formalities and preparations for the Linggiu Project were carried
out proactively. However, the pre-approval reply for land use
issued by the Bureau of Natural Resources and Planning of
Datong* (KA MR EIF B A EIRE) is one of the prerequisites
for starting the construction and Linggiu County Fengyuan only
received the pre-approval on 25 September 2021. The
construction of the Linggiu Project started on 25 September
2021 and the Linggiu Project must be connected to the
electrical grid before 31 December 2021 in order to meet the
conditions for inclusion in the national subsidy catalogue.
Therefore, the construction timeline of the Lingqiu Project was
very tight. The Group and our joint venture partner have
attempted to seek financing from banks or other third parties,
but failed to obtain suitable financing as scheduled. The capital
investment was limited and insufficient to finance the Linggiu
Project. Furthermore, if the Linggiu Project could not be
connected to the electrical grid before 31 December 2021, the
Linggiu Project would lose the entitlement to on-grid tariff
approved in 2019, hence on-grid price of the wind farm and
investment income of the Lingqgiu Project would be greatly
reduced. the Group
into the Equity Purchase Agreement with an
independent third party on 16 December 2021, intending to
transfer the entire equity interest of the Group in the Lingqiu
Project. For further details of the disposal of Lingqiu Project,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
25 March 2022.

December

In view of the above circumstances,
entered

* for identification purpose only
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WIND FARM OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE
We offer post market operation and maintenance services to
include (1) general operation and
maintenance service for wind farms; (2) upgrade and
modification works for pitch control systems; (3) supply of
consumables. We charge service fees and cost of the sales of
consumables through providing such services to customers.

our customers, which

In 2021, the Group’s operation and maintenance team had 59
staff, who were mainly responsible for the provision of
operation and maintenance services to the wind farms of
Envision Energy situated throughout China.

ENERGY STORAGE

In April 2021, the Group established Nature Smart Energy
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. and set up an office in Shenzhen to
establish a research and development team and a sales team,
which are mainly engaged in energy storage business including
products and solutions, energy storage equipment, energy
management system (“EMS"), intelligent energy cloud platform
and integrated energy simulation and calculation platform.

In 2021, “Nature 3060 Energy
Management System (NQEMS)”, which was a breakthrough in
energy storage EMS, and realized external sales of the
products. we commenced construction of the
"AMW/AMWh wind power storage demonstration project” in
Duolun Wind Farm (the “Duolun Project”) and intended to
complete the commissioning and grid connection in February
2022. The Duolun Project has laid the foundation for the
optimization of the Group’s energy storage product system,
experience accumulation and business development.

the Group completed the

In addition,

TEAREEREERAERAR —T—

Management Discussion and Analysis
B JE & B o AT
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Management Discussion and Analysis
B IR JE & R B 0 AT

OUTLOOK OF THE GROUP

Development trend in domestic market

As a low-carbon and clean new energy source, wind power is a
key component of the “2030 Carbon Peak, 2060 Carbon
Neutral” strategic goal,
being further driven under the guidance and support of the
strategic goal. The growth rate of the wind power industry in
the era of full price parity has not slowed down. In the market
environment of technology iteration and industry integration,
onshore wind power and offshore wind power still maintain a
momentum of strong growth in the market.

while the growth of the industry is

In July 2021, the National Development and Reform
Commission and the National Energy Administration jointly
issued the “Guiding Opinions on Accelerating the Promotion of
the Development of New Energy Storage ([ bR #E & #7 7Y
ELE R M EE R))” which clearly stated the realization of
new energy storage from the initial stage of commercialization
to the development in scale, with the target of cumulative
installed capacity reaching more than 30 million kilowatts by
2025. With the clear national strategic objectives of
carbon” and the construction of a new energy-based power
system, new energy storage industry is entering into the prime
period full of development opportunities.

“dual

Development Prospects

The Group will continue to focus on the new energy sector,
maintain its domestic market share and leading position in
pitch control systems while maintaining the sound performance
of its well-developed wind power generation and operation and
maintenance business. In parallel, we will actively develop new
customers in both the domestic and international markets to
increase our market share. In addition, we will strengthen the
research and development of energy storage products and
gradually enhance our product system, actively develop
customer-side energy storage projects and solution designs and
carry out extensive cooperation with enterprises in the energy
storage industry supply chain to form complementary
advantages, with an aim to develop energy storage into
another competitive business of the Group as soon as possible.
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FINANCIAL POSITION AND OPERATING
RESULTS

In 2021, the Group continued to commit in its wind power
generation and operation and maintenance business and
actively explore the development potential of energy storage,
while maintaining sound performance of its main business.

REVENUE

In 2021, the Group recorded a total revenue of approximately
RMB312.9 million, representing a decrease of 7.7% from
approximately RMB338.9 million in 2020, which was mainly due
to the decrease in revenue of the Group’s pitch control system
related business by adopting an appropriate price reduction
strategy to capture larger market share in the pitch control
systems business during the reporting period.

Management Discussion and Analysis
BB R W B AT

MBRAREERE

TECF AEEEERFRNEENES
X% EBRRFEENEREN  TEXEHK
RRFRE -
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As at As at
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
BE_FT_—F HZEZ_ZT_THF
+=A=+—8B +=-A=+—8H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTR AREBTF T

Pitch control system related integration, BREHASGBEEES -
manufacturing and sales ENIHE 257,782 283,847
Wind power generation R HEE 22,539 20,258
Wind farm operation and maintenance REHES M GEE 32,439 34,790
Energy storage management system HEEREEBEE AN 104 0
Total 4= 312,864 338,895

In 2021, revenue generated from the pitch control system
business amounted to approximately RMB258 million,
representing a decrease of approximately RMB26 million or
approximately 9.2% from 2020, which was mainly due to the
price reduction strategy adopted by the Group during the
reporting period in order to capture larger market share in the
pitch control systems business.

BREAHEARERE T —FRABHDAR
BISSEB L BT _TERIHARE2
BEHK9.2% T EZEHRAEEABEEX
BREHAREBTISHE  EWSHAKR
P (B 3R BE o
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Management Discussion and Analysis
B IR JE & R B 0 AT

In 2021, revenue generated from the wind power generation
business amounted to approximately RMB23 million,
representing an increase of approximately RMB3 million from
2020, which was mainly due to an in power
generation attributable to enhanced wind resources at wind
farms.

increase

In 2021, revenue generated from wind farm operation and
maintenance business amounted to approximately RMB32
million, representing a decrease of approximately RMB3 million
or approximately 6.8% from 2020, which was mainly due to
the decrease in orders for consumable supplies of our wind
farms that provide operation and maintenance services to
customers.

The energy storage energy management system is part of the
Group's newly developed smart energy business in 2021. The
newly established technical team successfully developed the
energy management system and achieved a breakthrough in
market sales, with revenue of approximately RMBO.1 million in
2021, proving the potential of this business in 2022.

COST OF SALES

In 2021, the Group’s cost of sales amounted to approximately
RMB267 million, which remained substantially flat with the cost
of sales of approximately RMB265 million in 2020.

Among them, the cost of sales of pitch control system business
mainly consisted of raw material costs, staff costs and
depreciation. The cost of sales of the Group’s pitch control
system business amounted to approximately RMB234 million,
which remained substantially flat with the cost of sales of
approximately RMB232 million in 2020.
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The cost of sales of wind power generation business mainly
included depreciation, staff costs and the maintenance of spare
parts and components after the warranty period. In 2021, the
cost of sales of wind power generation business amounted to
approximately RMB10 million, representing an increase of RMB2
million from the cost of sales of approximately RMB8 million in
2020, which was mainly because the Company bore the cost of
repair, maintenance and spare parts and components of the
wind farms due to the expiry of the warranty period during the
year.

The cost of sales of wind farm operation and maintenance
business mainly included raw material costs and staff costs. In
2021, the total cost of sales of wind farm operation and
maintenance business amounted to approximately RMB23
million, representing a decrease of approximately RMB2 million
from the cost of sales of approximately RMB25 million in 2020,
which was mainly due to the decrease in raw material costs as
a result of the decrease in revenue from the supply of
consumables business.

The cost of sales of energy storage business mainly included
raw material costs, staff costs and depreciation. In 2021, the
cost of sales of energy storage business amounted to
approximately RMBO.1 million.

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

In 2021, the Group’s gross profit amounted to approximately
RMB46 million, representing a decrease of approximately
RMB28 million or 37.8% from the gross profit of approximately
RMB74 million in 2020, which was mainly due to the decrease
in total revenue. The overall gross profit margin decreased
from 21.7% in 2020 to 14.7% in 2021, which was mainly due
to the decrease in gross profit margin of pitch control system
business.

The gross profit margin of pitch control system business
decreased from 18.4% in 2020 to 9.1% in 2021,
mainly due to the Group’s appropriate reduction in product
prices to capture a larger market share and the larger increase
in raw material prices in 2021.

which was
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In 2021, the gross profit margin of wind power generation
business was approximately 56.2%, which remained
substantially unchanged from the gross profit margin of 58.4%
in 2020.

In 2021, the gross profit margin of wind farm operation and
maintenance business was approximately 29.7%, which
remained substantially unchanged from the gross profit margin
of approximately 27.1% in 2020.

In 2021, the gross profit margin of energy storage was
approximately 52.9%.

OTHER REVENUE

In 2021, the Group’s other revenue amounted to approximately
RMB4.7 million, which remained substantially unchanged with
the other revenue of approximately RMB5 million in 2020.

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

The Group’s selling and distribution expenses increased by
approximately RMB2 million or 50% from approximately RMB4
million in 2020 to approximately RMB6 million in the current
year. Such increase was mainly due to stronger sales efforts of
the Group to capture larger market share during the reporting
period.

ADMINISTRATIVE AND OTHER OPERATING
EXPENSES

In 2021, the Group’s administrative and other operating
expenses amounted to approximately RMB15 million while that
for the corresponding period of 2020 amounted to
approximately RMB21 million, representing a decrease of
approximately of RMB6 million. It was mainly due to the
absence of listing expenses during 2021.
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FINANCE COSTS

Finance costs mainly represent the interest expenses on bank
borrowings and borrowings from third parties. In 2021, the
Group's finance costs amounted to approximately RMB4 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 33.3% from
approximately RMB6 million in 2020, which was mainly due to
the repayment of part of the bank borrowings and part of the

borrowings from third parties by the Group’s subsidiaries.

GEARING RATIO

Gearing ratio is calculated as the Group's total liabilities divided
by total assets. In 2021, the Group’s gearing ratio was 49%,
representing a decrease of 7% from the gearing ratio of 56%
in 2020, which was mainly due to the proceeds raised from the
repayment of part of the bank borrowings and part of the
borrowings from third parties by the Group’s subsidiaries.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

In 2021, the Group’s income tax expense amounted to
approximately RMB2 million (2020:
million). The effective tax rate was approximately 9% and 15%
for the current year and the previous year, respectively. The
decrease in the effective tax rate in the current year was mainly

approximately RMB7

due to the absence of non-deductible listing expenses and the
increase in the percentage of additional deductions of research
and development expenses.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Based on the above reasons, the Group recorded a net profit of
approximately RMB21.3 million in 2021, representing a decrease
of approximately RMB19.1 million or 47.3% from the net profit
of approximately RMB40.4 million in 2020.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE OWNERS OF
THE GROUP

In 2021, profit attributable to the owners of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB21 million, representing a
decrease of approximately RMB19 million from the profit
attributable to the owners of the Group of approximately
RMB40 million in 2020.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL SOURCE

The working capital of the Group is derived from the cash
flows generated from our operating activities, the existing cash
and cash equivalents of the Company, bank loans and net
proceeds from listing. After careful financial management and
analysis, our Directors believe that the Group has sufficient
working capital to satisfy its present operating needs and the
needs in the next full year. Details of the Group's audited
consolidated financial position are set out in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

CASH FLOWS

In 2021, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents amounted to
approximately RMB40.6 million, representing a decrease of
approximately RMB80.8 million or approximately 66.6% from
approximately RMB121.4 million in 2020, which was mainly due
to the repayment of the bank borrowings and the borrowings
from third parties by the Group’s subsidiaries and the Group'’s
external investments.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

In 2021, the Group’s capital expenditures amounted to a total
of approximately RMB9.5 million (2020: capital expenditures of
RMB1.5 million), which was mainly due to the settlement of
retention payables for purchase of generators by the Group’s
subsidiary.

In addition, in the first half of 2021, Jiangyin Hongyuan New
Energy Technology Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Group, signed
a project agreement with New Energy Industrial Park, Jiangsu
Jiangyin Lingang Economic Development Zone* (T &k )T f2 & &
KOERE R FAERAE X E) on 10 March 2021 for a possible
acquisition, and will bid for the project land. The Group
expects to incur an expenditure of approximately RMB6 million
for land purchase and approximately RMB15 million for plant
construction.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities.
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PLEDGE OF ASSET

In 2020, the Group’s subsidiaries pledged the leasehold lands,
motors and other equipment to secure bank loans with a
balance of approximately RMB14 million. As at 31 December
2021, the Group’s subsidiaries repaid the bank loans. During
the year, the Group’s subsidiaries were granted new short-term
borrowings of RMB5 million, which were secured by the
intellectual property rights of the Group’s subsidiaries.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Group opened a new office in Shenzhen for the research
and development of components and the establishment of a
sales team. As at 31 December 2021, the Group employed a
total of 169 employees (31 December 2020: 165 employees), all
of which entered into labour contracts. According to the PRC
Labour Law and the relevant laws and regulations, the contract
expressly stipulates the position, responsibilities, remuneration,
staff benefit, training, obligation of confidentiality and other
related matters of the employee.

The Company has conditionally adopted the share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”), which was adopted by
written resolutions passed by its shareholders on 16 July 2021
(the “Adoption Date”). Details of the Share Option Scheme are
set out in the section headed “SHARE OPTIONS OF THE
COMPANY™".

POTENTIAL RISK EXPOSURES

Political uncertainty risk

The wind power industry is strongly policy driven. If there is any
change in the supporting policy for the wind power industry,
the whole power generation industry chain will be affected,
leading to a decrease in the demand and investment in sectors
such as pitch control systems, operation and maintenance and
energy storage, which in turn may affect the Group’s main
business and development strategies.

Financial risk

If the Group fails to generate sufficient cash flows from
business operation, it may materially affect the normal
operation of the Group. In addition, accounts receivable and
bills receivable are affected by the uncertainty of the operation
of our customers, which may lead to the risk of delayed cash
collection. The Group will strictly adhere to its cash
management system and credit policy, actively follow up on the
credit period of accounts receivable and customer operation
status and monitor the real-time cash status on an ongoing
basis, so as to effectively control the financial risk.
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Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates primarily in the PRC and most of its
operating transactions are denominated in Renminbi. As at
31 December 2021, non-RMB monetary assets are mainly cash
and cash equivalents, denominated in Hong Kong dollars or
United States dollars. The Group has not entered into any
forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge its foreign
exchange risk, but management will continue to monitor
foreign exchange risk and take prudent measures to reduce
foreign exchange risk.

THE IMPACT OF COVID-19

In 2021, the COVID-19 outbreak occurred at different spots
and it is expected to continue in the PRC. However, through a
series of measures such as strict prevention and control, refined
management and active market development, the Group
minimized the risk of the pandemic to the Group and did not
experience any impact on production, order delivery, corporate
operation and finance as a result of the pandemic.

The pandemic situation may continue, but the Group will
leverage its experience in addressing the situation and respond
to the latest development with a positive attitude. The
pandemic is not expected to have a significant impact on the
Group’s business operations in 2022. Taking into account the
the continuous widespread of
COVID-19, the Company’s own cash flow would be adequate
to maintain normal operation of the Company for 12 months.
Based on the current operating conditions, it is not necessary to
undertake financing to cover the Company’s cash flow.

worst-case scenario, i.e.,

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM LISTING

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange on 20 October 2020, for which the
Company issued 62.5 million new shares. After deducting
related listing expenses, the Company received net proceeds
from listing of approximately HK$112.6 million (approximately
RMB98.2 million). Such net proceeds are intended to be used in
the same way and proportion as disclosed in the section
headed “Future plans and use of proceeds” in the prospectus.
Further details of the use of proceeds are set out in the section
headed “Use of Proceeds” in the prospectus.
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As of 31 December 2021, the Group has utilized part of the
net proceeds from listing, and unutilized net proceeds have
been placed with in Hong Kong. As of
31 December 2021, as far as the Directors are aware, the
intended use of proceeds as stated in the section headed “Use
of proceeds” in the prospectus had no material changes. In
2022, the Company will utilize the net proceeds from listing
according to its development strategies, market conditions and
the intended use of such proceeds.

licensed bank

The following table stated the Group’s usage of the net
proceeds during the period between the listing date and
31 December 2021 and the estimated utilization schedule:

Net proceeds
utilized as of

Net proceeds
from initial

31 December
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Remaining net
proceeds
available as at  Estimated schedule for full

31 December utilization of the remaining net

Usage stated in the prospectus public offering 2021 2021  proceeds
BE_¥-_—-% RZ¥=Z-§
+-A=t-H +=-RA=+-H
BRAHRER LEEEHA THANGRT EEHARTHABREFEN
BREERERAR BREFE FRAFEFE AREFE BUBEER
(RMB million) (RMB million) (RMB million)
(AR%B87n) (AR¥AaERD) (ARKAEER)
(Note 1)
(P =ET)
(1) Purchase core components and raw materials necessary for 17.9 17.9 — N/A
the production of customised high-voltage pitch control
systems to fulfill the expected purchase volume for Jiangyin
Envision pursuant to our binding ten-year framework
agreement
(1) RBLEERSEZRENZRVAROEHRRIH 17.9 17.9 -  TER
KERANRNN+FERBZETIRER B RE
e
) Diversify our customer base in the pitch control system 34 2.1 13 1 January 2022 to
market by increasing our marketing efforts (Note 2) 31 December 2022
2 FRENEBENEBAEREHNZRTENTP#H 34 2.1 13 Z—Z--fF-fF—AZ
(Ft5k2) “Z-Zf+ZA=+-H
3) Invest into the development of a new distributed wind farm 313 313 — N/A
by Linggiu Fengyuan in Linggiu, Datong, Shanxi
B RUAEARBLZERECLIRAFERMDHUA 313 313 -  TER
A5
(4) Recruit 70 additional service personnel to expand our wind 36 0.24 3.36 1 January 2022 to
farm operation and maintenance services (Note 3) 30 June 2022
@)  EEIERBAE LBEAREBELREERSE 36 0.24 336 —E--4—-F-HEZ
(Ft5E3) ZZZZFRA=1H
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Net proceeds

Net proceeds
utilized as of

Remaining net
proceeds
available as at

Estimated schedule for full

from initial 31 December 31 December utilization of the remaining net
Usage stated in the prospectus public offering 2021 2021  proceeds
BE-S--5 RI¥=--F
+-A=t-B +Z-A=+-H
BRARBER LEECHA JRANGT EHBHRBTHREREFEN
BREEFERSE RREFE FMERESRE FEIEFE FHBER
(RMB million) (RMB million) (RMB million)
(AR¥B87n) (AR¥AERD) (AR®EBEER)
(Note 1)
(B 7E1)
(5) Further strengthen our R&D capabilities to enrich our pitch 10.9 2.0 89 1 January 2022 to
control systems and solutions offering (Note 4) 31 December 2022
(B E—IMEEMOWEENNEZTERERHZER 10.9 2.0 89 C—E--#-f-HZ
AR RES (HE4) —Z--%+ZA=1-H
(6) Full repayment of a loan due to a third party by our Duolun 214 214 — N/A
Wind Farm
6 ZREEBLEHEREFNEZFNER 214 214 - TER
(7) General working capital 9.6 5.7 39 1 January 2022 to
31 December 2022
n  —RELES 96 5.7 39 ZE--#-f-HZ
“R--H+-A=+-H
Note 1: As disclosed in the prospectus, after deducting underwriting  Ff5E1: BB RERFAHE B HAAMBE

fees and

relevant expenses paid by the Company and

MEFREFENBEHEAERARAX
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assuming the over-allotment option is not exercised, the
estimated net proceeds from the public offering
amounted to approximately RMB100.3 million. The actual net
2020
amounted to approximately RMB98.2 million. Save for the net
proceeds from global offering intended for (1) the investment
into the development of a new distributed wind farm in
Linggiu, Datong, Shanxi; and (2) the full repayment of a loan
due to a third party by our Duolun Wind Farm, the Company

initial

proceeds of the Company as at 31 December

intended to make adjustment for the difference of
approximately RMB2.1 million according to the same method
and proportion of use of proceeds as disclosed in the section
headed “Future plans and use of proceeds” in the
prospectus.
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As at 31 December 2021, due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the
Group did not identify any suitable exhibitions for business
promotion, and the Company did not participate in any
exhibitions during 2021. As at 31 December 2021, the
Company entered into prototype procurement agreements
with new customers such as Sinovel, CRRC Group, Sany
Heavy Energy and Zhejiang Windey, and has used the net
proceeds of approximately RMB2.1 million to develop and
manufacture 16 sets of prototypes. The Company expects to
continue to use the net proceeds to develop and
manufacture prototypes according to the prototype
procurement orders from new customers and complete
prototype delivery according to the requirements of new
customers in 2022. As at 31 December 2021, the Group
recruited 1 additional sales personnel and the net proceeds
of approximately RMB0.05 million have been utilized. The
Group expects to continue to recruit additional sales
personnel in 2022 to effectively expand its customer base.

As at 31 December 2021, 8 operation and maintenance
personnel were newly recruited, and the net proceeds of
approximately RMBO0.24 million have been used to pay
salaries. In 2022, the Group will use the net proceeds to
continuously recruit appropriate operation and maintenance
personnel, and continue to expand operation and
maintenance services.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group purchased a set of
research and development equipment, acquired 1 additional
test board, newly recruited 9 core technology personnel, and
proceeds of approximately RMB2 million in total have been
utilized. Currently, the Group’s technical team and
procurement team are still negotiating with suppliers on the
acquisition of additional R&D equipment and software. The
Company expects to purchase additional R&D equipment and
software in 2022 based on the final negotiation results with
suppliers.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheng Liquan Richard (“Mr. Richard Cheng”) (£ B %),
aged 56, is an executive Director and the chairman of our
Board. He is also the chairman of the Nomination Committee
and a member of the Remuneration Committee. He is primarily
responsible for the overall strategic planning and development
and overseeing the financial management and planning of our
Group. Mr. Richard Cheng has been a director of China
Transport Real Time Service Co.,Ltd. since 10 November 2011.
Mr. Richard Cheng is also a director of various subsidiaries of
the Company.

Mr. Richard Cheng is an experienced entrepreneur in renewable
energy and environmental projection industry for more than 15
years. Prior to founding our Group, Mr. Richard Cheng joined
Bit Technology Holding Co., Ltd. (FLiFRIEIERE D B R A 7)),
and held various positions as deputy manager, general
manager, the chairman of the board and a director from April
2000 to March 2003. Since 2004, Mr. Richard Cheng served as
a director at Ningbo Bonded Area Jiujiu Leasing Co. Ltd. (%%
REERAABEEHFBR QG (previously known as Ningbo
Huaneng Leasing Co. Ltd. (& ZE gL HE B R A F)) (“Ningbo
Jiujiu")*. Mr. Richard Cheng was appointed as a director of
Beijing Bogi Electric Power SCI-TECH Co., Ltd. (It RTB&FE
BRI AR A A)) (“Beijing Bogi”) in June 2005 and became the
chairman of the board of Beijing Bogi in December 2007 and
then served as its chief executive officer from December 2009
to February 2017. Mr. Cheng currently serves as the chairman
of its board of Beijing Bogi, an executive director of Beijing
Shengyi Tiancheng Environmental SCI-TECH Co., Ltd.* (Jt = E8
B XMKIREE EER AR, Zhejiang Bogi Electric Power
SCI-TECH Co., Ltd.* (f/LIEFE N R K BR A F) and Anhui
Nengda Fuel Co., Ltd* (Z &L Z R B B R A 7).

Mr. Richard Cheng has been a director of China Boqi
Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd. (FEI B HFRR FER)ARE A
A]) (“China Bogi"”), a company listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 02377) and Mr. Richard Cheng has ceased to be
the chairman of the board and the chairman of the nomination
committee of China Boqi since March 2021.
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Mr. Richard Cheng is a director of Hongyuan Company Limited,
wholly-owned by him, which directly holds 75% of the shares
of the Company in issue.

Mr. Richard Cheng is the younger brother of Mr. Cliff Cheng.

Mr. Richard Cheng received his bachelor’'s degree in political
economy from Fudan University in July 1987.

Mr. Cheng Li Fu Cliff (“Mr. Cliff Cheng”) (B E1X), aged 63
is our executive Director and the chief executive officer. He is
primarily responsible for overseeing the daily operations and
overall general management of our Group. Mr. Cliff Cheng has
been serving as a general manager and an executive director of
Jiangyin Hongyuan New Energy Technology Company Limited*
(TReshmFEER B B R A 7)), since October 2015. Mr. Cliff
Cheng is also a director of various subsidiaries of the
Company.

Mr. Cliff Cheng has more than 5 years of experience in wind
power industry. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Cliff Cheng
worked for Chi Tel Limited (KEZFAMR AT as a sales
manager during November 2003 and August 2006. From
August 2008 to January 2015, Mr. Cliff Cheng was a
marketing manager of Beijing BiTe, a company primarily
engaged in technology development and consultancy and sale
of electronic products, mechanical equipment and computer
system services.

Mr. Cliff Cheng is the elder brother of Mr. Richard Cheng.

Mr. Cliff Cheng graduated from Shanghai Peijin School (_E/&TH
BT AR E2) in February 1976.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Wang Lubin (“Mr. Wang”) (E&#), aged 66, was
appointed as our non-executive Director on 19 March 2020.

From September 1994 to October 2016, Mr. Wang served as a
manager at Shandong Tianhui Technology Co., Ltd. (1L & X ##
B AR A 7)), which was a solution provider for the power
industry. Since January 2017, Mr. Wang has been an executive
director of Beijing Kexun Century Technology Co., Ltd.* (It %
BEal 42 & 5 A BR 2 7)), which is primarily engaged in
supplying equipment and products and providing technical
services, both in relation to the power industry, where he is
responsible for corporate management.

Mr. Wang graduated from Shandong University, where he
received his bachelor’'s degree in engineering in July 1982 and
a master’s degree in engineering in January 1985.

Mr. Wang was the legal representative of Shandong Hengshun
ltd. (LEREIEEZERZER 2 A7)
(“Shandong Hengshun”) which was engaged in the sales of
power units. The business license of Shandong Hengshun was
revoked on 23 October 2003 as Shandong Hengshun was
unable to complete the process of deregistration upon its
cessation of business. Mr. Wang confirmed that (i) Shandong
Hengshun was solvent at the time of the revocation of business
license, and he was not in charge of daily operation; (ii) no
claims had been made against him; (iii) he was not aware of
any threatened and potential claims made against him; (iv)
there were no outstanding claims and/or liabilities against him
in connection with or as a result of such revocation of business
license.

Electric Application Co.,
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Mr. Wang is primarily responsible for providing strategic advice
to the business and operation of our Group, in particular in
aspects in relation to our customers, such as identification and
introduction of potential customers of pitch control systems and
the maintenance of business relationship in relation thereto.
With Mr. Wang’'s extensive experience in the power-related
industry and his considerable business network within the
industry, it is expected that the presence of Mr. Wang in our
Board is beneficial to our Group’s business development.
Mr. Wang has been devoted to our Group’s affairs since his
appointments including contributing to our business network
extension by introducing and attending meetings with potential
customers, providing strategic advice as well as attending board
meeting and related affairs, and are expected to devote one to
two days per week for our Group’s affairs during his tenures.

Mr. Li Hao (ZFit5), aged 57, was appointed as our non-executive
Director on 19 March 2020.

From January 2000 to December 2010, Mr. Li Hao served as a
senior manager of Dongling (Holding) Corporation (&% EH
fR 2 7). Since January 2011, Mr. Li Hao has been serving as a
general manager of Guangzhou Weisong Investment Co., Ltd.*

(BENESHRERRAR).

Mr. Li Hao graduated from Nantong Municipal Party School of
CPC (P HEFEBMZ ER) in business management in July 1994.

Mr. Li Hao is primarily responsible for providing strategic advice
to the business and operation of our Group, in particular in
aspects in relation to our customers, such as identification and
introduction of potential customers of pitch control systems and
the maintenance of business relationship in relation thereto. It
is also expected that the presence of Mr. Li Hao in our Board is
beneficial to our Group’s business development, particularly in
view of his connection with customers and/or potential
customers of our Group, which was developed in the course of
his previous employment as his previous employer was a
business partner of such customers and/or potential customers
of our Group. Mr. Li Hao has been devoted to our Group's
affairs since his appointments including contributing to our
business network extension by introducing and attending
meetings with potential customers, providing strategic advice as
well as attending board meeting and related affairs, and is
expected to devote one to two days per week for our Group's
affairs during his tenures.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Yip Chun On (“Mr. Yip”) (E#&=%),
appointed as our independent non-executive Director on
4 September 2020. Mr. Yip is the chairman of the Audit
Committee, a member of the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee, and he is responsible for providing
independent advice and opinions to our Board.

aged 46, was

Mr. Yip has more than 23 years of experience in accounting
and finance. From August 1997 to March 2000, Mr. Yip served
as an auditor at Chan Chee Cheng & Co. (Bt &5 & 51 fib = 75
Fr), a certified public accountant firm in Hong Kong. From
March 2000 to March 2001, April 2001 to March 2002
and April 2002 to November 2003, Mr. Yip served as a staff
accountant,
respectively at Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (=
in Hong Kong, an
assurance consulting and related services. From April 2004 to
January 2005, Mr. Yip served as an assistant manager at CSC
Asia Limited (8% %z 32 M B R 2 &), a company providing
investment services. From February 2005 to May 2005, Mr. Yip
served as a supervisor at Grant Thornton LLP, a firm providing
audit, tax and advisory services.

semi-senior accountant and senior accountant
CREYGED)

independent firm providing audit and

From May 2005 to May 2010, Mr. Yip served as a group
financial controller and deputy company secretary at Jackin
Holdings Limited (B BHBEEEER A7), a
company listed on the Stock Exchange, currently known as
AMCO United Holding Limited (Stock Code: 0630), which was
principally engaged in manufacturing and trading information
storage media products and computer accessories.

International
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From June 2010 to October 2015, Mr. Yip served as an
assistant financial controller at Fountain Set (Holdings) Ltd. (&
HEZ (55E) BMR2AF]), a company engaged in producing and
selling dyed fabrics, sewing threads and yarns and listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 0420). Since April 2016, Mr. Yip
served as a managing director at AdviseOnAir (#ETR M A2
A]), a business solution provider in Hong Kong, where he is
responsible for providing internal control, risk management
review and consulting services to clients in Hong Kong and the
PRC. Mr. Yip has also been an independent non-executive
director of Superland Group Holdings Limited (stock code:
0368) since June 2020. Mr. Yip has also been the chief
financial officer of SinoCloud Group Limited (stock code:
SGX:5EK) since November 2021.

Mr. Yip received his bachelor's degree in accountancy from
Hong Kong Polytechnic University (& /& LX) in November
1997. Mr. Yip has been a member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants since November 2000, and a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants since April 2001.
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Mr. Kang Jian (“Mr. Kang”) (BR#), aged 57, was appointed
as our independent non-executive Director on 4 September
2020. Mr. Kang is also a member of the Audit Committee.

Mr. Kang has more than 20 years of experience in strategic
management, marketing management and investor relations
management for large state-owned and multinational
companies. Mr. Kang served as a regional manager of
Canadian Tucows Inc. from April 2000 to March 2003. He was
a global business development manager of the department of
automation system of the automation & drives group and the
director of strategic development and customer relations of the
strategic marketing department at Siemens Ltd., China from
February 2004 to July 2009 and vice general manager and the
secretary of the board of Beijing Jingneng Clean Energy Co.,
Limited (At R EEBE REERE HIRMHD B R A A]), a joint stock
company incorporated in the PRC whose shares are listed on
the Stock Exchange in 2011 (stock code: 00579), since
December 2009. Mr. Kang is a senior project manager of the
Ministry of Human Resources and Social Security of the
People’s Republic of China.

Mr. Kang received a bachelor’s degree in international trade
from Beijing University of Technology (3t R T2 KX 22) (formerly
known as the First Branch of Renmin University of China (-0
ARKEZE—51)), which subsequently merged with Beijing
University of Technology in July 1988. Mr. Kang received a
master’'s degree in business administration from Rensselaer
Polytechnic Institute in May 1999.
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Mr. Li Shusheng (FEEZH), aged 56, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 4 September 2020.
Mr. Li Shusheng is also the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee.

Mr. Li Shusheng has more than 16 years of experience in wind
power industry. From January 2006 to January 2008, Mr. Li
Shusheng served as a general manager of CECEP Wind-power
Investment Corporation Co., Ltd. (FERER N BEEREBR A
A]) : From January 2008 to June 2010, Mr. Li Shusheng served
as a general manager and chairman of CECEP Wind-power
Investment Corporation Co., Ltd. (FERER N BEEREBR A
A]) : From June 2010 to October 2018, Mr. Li Shusheng served
as a chairman of CECEP Wind-power Investment Corporation
Co., Ltd. (RENBER N EMRMNBR A F]) * a company listed on
Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 601016) which is mainly
engaged in development, management,
construction, operation and maintenance of wind power
projects.

investment,

Mr. Li Shusheng received his executive master of business
administration at Tsinghua University in July 2008.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Wu Qiong (RIg), aged 51, was appointed as the financial
officer since she joined our Group in November 2015. Ms. Wu
Qiong is primarily responsible for managing the finances of our
Group.

Ms. Wu Qiong has more than 16 years of experience in finance
management. Prior to joining our Group, Ms. Wu Qiong was a
financial officer of Nanjing Mudong Trade Co., Ltd.* (F 5 fE R
Z 5 B2 A (formerly known as Nanjing Powder Metallurgy
Factory* (B = AR)B8 € ®))) from December 1991 to December
1996 and Nanjing Dongmu Powder Metallurgy Co., Ltd.* (FR
RBEMRAELBRZAF (formerly known as Nanjing Boteng
Powder Metallurgy Co., Ltd* (B RIEEM K EESERLQF))
from January 1997 to May 2002 where she was responsible for
wage and cost accounting, and current-account management.
From March 2003 to April 2015, Ms. Wu Qiong was the
financial manager of Shanghai Yingzhen Technology Co., Ltd
(EBREMEBREMEAR) (formerly known as Shanghai
Nature Power Technology Co., Ltd. (E/8# R EHRIE AR A
Al)), where she was primarily responsible for day-to-day
financial management and cost control.

Ms. Wu Qiong received her certificate in applied electronical
technology from Nanjing Electronical and Industrial Workers
University (BBREF LB T KE) in February 1996. She
graduated from the Open College of China Communist Party
School (AR ER K EFT) with a bachelor’s degree in
December 2000. Ms. Wu obtained a certificate of intermediate
accountant in May 2002.

Mr. Liu Zhixin (2]F&{8), aged 32, was appointed as our
deputy general manager of procurement in October 2015. He is
responsible for procurement and supplier
management.

primarily
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From August 2012 to July 2013, Mr. Liu Zhixin served as an
after-sales service engineer at Jinan Guolong Tester Co., Ltd.
(EmBEsEABRE AR AF]), where he was primarily responsible
for after-sales service and technical support. From July 2013 to
September 2015, Mr. Liu Zhixin served as a process engineer at
Jinan Youli Electrical Equipment Co., Ltd. (BEEFERKER
#% BB A 7). He was mainly responsible for developing and
stabilizing production process.

Mr. Liu Zhixin received his certificate in mechatronics from
Weifang College of Science and Technology in July 2012.

Mr. Chen Xi (“Mr. Chen”) (BRE&), aged 39, was appointed as
our deputy general manager of technology of the Company in
August 2021. He is primarily responsible for the management
of research and development.

From July 2009 to March 2013, he served as the R&D
supervisor of pitch system of Sinovel Wind Group Co.,Ltd. (£
HEERE (KE) BRHABEMRADF). From March 2013 to
August 2017, he served as the manager of the wind power
technology department of Beijing Huadian Tianren Power
Controlling Technology Co., Ltd ({t REZB X B HIEHIMA
R 2 A]) and the deputy chief engineer and technical manager
of Gu’'an Huadian Tianren Control Equipment Limited Company
(B ZESRCEHEREARAQE]). From August 2017 to May
2020, he served as the technical director of Ruidian Technology

Co., Ld(HERKBER R A)

Chen Xi graduated from Shandong University with a master’s
degree in control theory and control engineering and is a
senior engineer.

Ms. Zhou Lingyun (“Ms. Zhou”) (B #&=), aged 35, was
appointed as our deputy manager of production since October
2015, and she is responsible for operations, production and
quality management. Prior to joining our Group, Ms. Zhou
served as an exposure worker at Wuxi China Resources
Microelectronics Co., Ltd (5% B M E F B R A7) from July
2006 to September 2008, a subsidiary of China Resources
(Holding) Co., Ltd. (¥ 8 (%£E) BBR 2 7). From August 2011
to September 2012, Ms. Zhou served as a manager of the
quality inspection department at Jiangyin Aikesen
Communication Material Co., Ltd. (TR ERIZBEMAERA
al).
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Ms. Zhou received a bachelor’'s degree in electric
automatisation from Southeast University in January 2012. She
obtained a certificate of accounting profession in February
2013.

Ms. Liu Na (“Ms. Liu”) (2I#B), aged 33, was appointed as our
deputy general manager of business human resource since
March 2017, and she is primarily responsible for business
development.

From March 2011 to March 2017, Ms. Liu served as a trainer at
Jiangyin Huibang Clothing Co., Ltd (TR & F AR &6 4A R A R)),
where she was mainly responsible for branding and training.

Ms. Liu received a bachelor's degree in human resources
management from Changzhou University in June 2011.

Mr. Pan Honghuang (“Mr. Pan”) (GB4I8), aged 35, was
appointed as our company secretary on 17 March 2020 and
re-designated as our joint company secretary on 19 March
2020. Mr. Pan was appointed as the assistant of chairman and
secretary to the board of Jiangyin Hongyuan on 1 July 2019.
He is primarily responsible for attending company secretarial
matters of the Group.

Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Pan served as an investment
manager at Shanghai Heheng Industrial Investment and
Development Co., Ltd. (E8F&E 2GR 22 7)) from August
2009 to September 2012. He was primarily responsible for
project research, evaluation and design. From October 2012 to
July 2014, Mr. Pan joined Zhongminfei General Aviation
Investment Management (Beijing) Co., Ltd. (F RRE A M ZE E
EKREEE (JER)BR2AA]), he served as an assistant to the
president and was responsible for equity investment and fund
management. From July 2014 to October 2016, Mr. Pan served

as an investment director at Beijing Didun Investment
Management Co., Ltd. (bt RMEREEIEER A F]). He is
responsible for equity investment and fund raising. From

October 2016 to March 2018, Mr. Pan served as an investment
and development director at China Woteer Water Technology

0., Ltd. (FF TR B /KT %19 B R A 7). He is responsible
for overall equity financing and bank financing. From March
2018 to July 2019, Mr. Pan served as an investment director at
Beijing Longyuan Chuangquan Technology Co., Ltd. (1t &R
8l £ B £ B B A 7). He is responsible for investing in
environmental industry.
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Mr. Pan received a bachelor’s degree in marketing from Anhui
University of Finance and Economics (Z#IB &K E) in July
2009. Mr. Pan received a master’s degree in business
administration from Beihang University (1t 5 i 22 fi Kk KX &) in
June 2017. Mr. Pan was awarded the Board Secretary
Qualification Certificate (EE & W EE K FE) by the National
Equities Exchange and Quotations Co., Ltd (& B & /N>R (%
HEZXAARELAA) in January 2018.

# The business license of Ningbo Jiujiu was revoked by the relevant
authority. Pursuant to the regulations, PRC
companies are required to perform annual inspections. Failure to

relevant PRC

perform annual inspection or inspection before 30 June, the
companies shall be fined or the business licence shall be revoked
by the administration of Industry and Commerce. To our best
knowledge, (i) the business license of Ningbo Jiujiu was revoked;
(i) Ningbo Jiujiu did not have any actual business activities
during the time its business licence was revoked; and (iii) Ningbo
Jiujiu was solvent prior to its revocation of business license.
Mr. Richard Cheng confirmed that Ningbo Jiujiu did not have any
business activities, and he was not involved in the business
operations during the time Ningbo Jiujiu failed to execute its
annual inspection. Our PRC legal advisers are of the view that
there is a remote possibility that Mr. Cheng will take any
director responsibilities raising from the winding-up of Ningbo
Jivjiu caused by its failure to go through the formalities of
annual inspection.

* The English names of PRC nationals, entities, departments,
facilities, certificates, titles, etc. are translations of their Chinese
names and are for identification purposes only. If there is any
inconsistency, the Chinese name shall prevail.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CEERBE

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board” or
“Director(s)”) is pleased to report to its shareholders on the
corporate governance of the Company for the year ended

31 December 2021.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to achieving good corporate
governance standards. The Board believes that good corporate
governance standards are essential in providing a framework
for the Company to safeguard the interests of its shareholders,
enhance corporate value, formulate its business strategies and
policies, and enhance its transparency and accountability.

The Company has adopted the principles and code provisions
set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code"”)
contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) as the basis of the
Company’s corporate governance practices. To the best
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has complied with all
applicable code provisions under the CG Code (as amended
from time to time) during the year ended 31 December 2021.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own Code
of Conduct for securities transactions conducted by relevant
Directors. Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors
and each of the Directors have confirmed that they have
complied with the required standards set out in the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2021.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is headed by an effective Board which oversees
the businesses, strategic decisions and performance of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) and takes decisions
objectively in the best interests of the Company.

The Board regularly review the contribution required from a
Director to perform his responsibilities to the Company, and
whether the Director is spending sufficient time performing
them.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The composition of the Board and the attendance record of
each Director at board meetings during the year ended
31 December 2021 and up to the date of publication of this
annual report are as below.

Executive Directors
Mr. Cheng Liquan Richard (Chairman)
Mr. Cheng Li Fu Cliff (Chief executive officer)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wang Lubin
Mr. Li Hao

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Yip Chun On

Mr. Kang Jian

Mr. Li Shusheng

The biographical information of the Directors are set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management” on pages
22 to 33 of this annual report.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, to the best knowledge
of the Company, there has been no financial, business, family,
or other material/relevant relationship(s) among the Directors.
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BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEES MEETINGS EFEREFZZETTHEURES
AND DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE RECORDS H J# 5C £%
A summary of the attendance records of the Directors at the BHESEHERHEZE—_T_-_—F+-_A=+—
Board meetings and the respective Board committees meetings HIFFEEITHNEEeex NS ESTLES
held during the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out E:FEMLEEMBEHEIIWNT ¢
below:
Attendance/Number of Meeting(s)
s g48E
Audit Remuneration Nomination General
Name of Directors EEnE Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
EXE EREEE HFWES REZZEE BREXE
Cheng Liquan Richard BEX 4/4 N/A A 171 212
4/4 TEHA 11 11 212
Cheng Li Fu Cliff BER 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 212
4/4 TER TiEm TEm 212
Wang Lubin TEW 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 22
4/4 TEA TEA TEA 212
Li Hao it 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 212
4/4 TEHA TNEH TEH 212
Yip Chun On Bk% 4/4 212 11 1 212
4/4 2/2 1/1 7 212
Kang Jian Egic 4/4 212 N/A N/A 22
4/4 2/2 T iE A @A 212
Li Shusheng FEH 4/4 212 1/1 n 2/2
4/4 212 11 11 212
CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER ERFRITHAE

The position of chairman of the Company (the “Chairman”) is
held by Mr. Cheng Liquan Richard and the positions of chief
executive officer is held by Mr. Cheng Li Fu Cliff. Mr. Cheng
Liquan Richard is the younger brother of Mr. Cheng Li Fu Cliff.
The Chairman is primarily responsible for the overall strategic
planning and development of our Group and overseeing the
financial management and planning of our Group. The chief
executive officer is primarily responsible for overseeing the daily
operations and overall general management of our Group.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board at all
times met the requirements of Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2) and
3.10(A) of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least three independent non-executive Directors representing
one-third of the Board with at least one of whom possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of the independent non-executive Directors in respect of
his independence in accordance with the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company is of the view that all independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

The non-executive Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors) are appointed for an initial fixed term
of three years commencing from the Listing Date, subject to
termination on certain circumstances as stipulated in their
respective service contracts and letter of appointment.

All the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the annual general meetings. Under the amended
and restated articles of association of the Company, at each
annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time
being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three (3), the
number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from
office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject
to retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every
three years. The Company’s amended and restated articles of
association also provides that all Directors appointed to fill a
casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting
of members after his appointment and be subject to re-election
at such meeting and any Director appointed by the Board as an
addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the
next following annual general meeting of the Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election.
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RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES AND
CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE BOARD AND
MANAGEMENT

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and
control of the Company, and is collectively responsible for
directing and supervising the Company’s affairs.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads
and provides direction to management by laying down
strategies and overseeing their implementation, monitors the
Group’s operational and financial performance, and ensures
that sound internal control and risk management systems are in
place.

All Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of
valuable business experience, knowledge and professionalism to
the Board for its efficient and effective functioning. The
independent non-executive Directors can bring independent
judgment to the decision-making process of our Board.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information
of the Company and may, upon request, seek independent
professional in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’'s expenses for discharging their duties to the
Company.

advice

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other
offices held by them.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to
policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment
of directors and other significant operational matters of the
Company. Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of
the Board, directing and coordinating the daily operation and
management of the Company are delegated to management
team.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance on
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of any legal actions
taken against Directors and senior management arising out of
corporate activities. The insurance coverage would be reviewed
on an annual basis.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
OF DIRECTORS

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and
changes in order to effectively perform their responsibilities and
to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant.

All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses
at the Company’s expenses.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, Directors have
attended the following types of training. Mr. Yip Chun On
attended seminars and training sessions arranged by
professional firms. Besides that, all of the Directors, namely,
Mr. Cheng Liquan Richard, Mr. Cheng Li Fu Cliff, Mr. Wang
Lubin, Mr. Li Hao, Mr. Yip Chun On, Mr. Kang Jian and Mr. Li
Shusheng have read news updates and publications regarding
relevant rules & regulations.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established
with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with
their authority and duties.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee are posted on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website and are
available to shareholders of the Company upon request.

The
committee is set out under “Corporate Information” on page 3
of this annual report.

list of the chairman and members of each Board
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee consists
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yip Chun On, Mr. Li
Shusheng and Mr. Kang Jian. Mr. Yip Chun On is the chairman
of the Audit Committee.

of three Independent

The Company has established the Audit Committee in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the CG
Code. The primary duties of the Audit Committee include,
among other things, making recommendations to the Board on
the appointment, reappointment and removal of the external
auditor, reviewing our Group's financial information, overseeing
our Group's financial reporting system, risk management and
internal control systems.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Audit
Committee held two meetings performed the following main
tasks: (1) Review and discussion of the annual financial results
and report for the year ended 31 December 2020 and interim
financial results and report for the six months ended 30 June
2021; (2) reviewed and discussed the financial reporting system,
risk management and internal control systems of the Group
with the management of the Company to ensure that the
management of the Company has performed its duty to have
effective systems. The review covered all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls, and
the discussion with the management of the Company regarding
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting
reporting function etc.; (3)
compliance with accounting standards, Listing Rules, legal and
statutory requirements in relation to financial reporting; and (4)
recommendations to the Board on the appointment of external
auditor.

and financial reviewed the

The Company’s annual results announcement and annual report
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members, being
2 independent non-executive Directors namely Mr. Li Shusheng,
Mr. Yip Chun On and 1 executive Director namely Mr. Cheng
Liquan Richard. The Majority of the members are independent
non-executive Directors. Mr. Li Shusheng is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The Company established the Remuneration Committee in
compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and the CG
Code. The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee
include, among other things, making recommendations to the
Board on our Group'’s policy and structure for all Directors’ and
senior managements’ remuneration and on the establishment of
a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy and on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee has held one
meeting and performed the following main tasks: (1) making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive Directors; (2) reviewing the emoluments of the
executive Directors; and (3) reviewing the remuneration policy
and structure (including any performance-based remuneration)

for all Directors and senior management.

Details of the remuneration of the senior management by band
are set out in note 27(a) to the consolidated financial
statements.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee consists of three members, being 2
independent non-executive Directors namely Mr. Yip Chun On,
Mr. Li Shusheng and 1 executive Director namely Mr. Cheng
Liquan Richard. The Majority of the members are independent
Cheng Liquan Richard is the
chairman of the Nomination Committee.

non-executive Directors. Mr.

The Company has established the Nomination Committee in
compliance with the CG Code. The principal duties of the
Nomination the Board
composition, developing and formulating relevant procedures
for the nomination and appointment of Directors, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
succession planning of Directors, and assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors.

Committee include reviewing

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
would take into account various aspects as well as factors
concerning Board diversity as set out in the Company’s Board
Diversity Policy. The Nomination Committee would discuss and
agree on measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the
Board, where necessary, and recommend them to the Board for
adoption. In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for
directorships, the Nomination Committee would consider the
candidate’s relevant criteria that are necessary to complement
the corporate strategy and achieve Board diversity, where
appropriate, before making recommendation to the Board.

During the vyear, the Nomination Committee has held one
meeting and performed the following work: (1) reviewing the
structure, size, composition and diversity (including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, or
professional experience) of the Board and achievement of
objectives pursuant to the board diversity policy and
of the board diversity policy and the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors; and
(2) considering the qualifications of the retiring Directors
standing for re-election at the annual general meeting.

effectiveness
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Nomination Committee is authorised by the Board to
determine the nomination of directors, the procedure, process
and criteria to be adopted for the purposes of selecting and
recommending candidates for directorship, and shall make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of directors and succession planning for
directors, in particular, the chairman and the chief executive.
When assessing the suitability of a candidate, factors such as
the qualifications, skills, integrity, experience and the amount of
time and effort that the candidate will devote to discharge his/
her duties and responsibilities will be taken into consideration
as a whole. In the case of independent non-executive directors,
they must further satisfy the independence criteria set out
within Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Since the selection of
candidates should ensure that diversity remains a central
feature of the Board, a range of diverse perspectives, including
but not limited to professional skills, regional and industry
experience, knowledge, gender, age, cultural and educational
background,
considered in accordance with the Board Diversity Policy
adopted by the Board.

ethnicity and length of service would be

The Company has adopted a Board Diversity Policy which sets
out the approach to achieve diversity of the Board. The
Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board and sees increasing diversity at the Board level as
an essential element in maintaining the Company’s competitive
advantage.

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Nomination
Committee will report annually on the Board’s composition
under diversified perspectives and monitor the implementation
of the Board Diversity Policy. In designing the Board’s
composition and selection of candidates, Board diversity has
range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to professional experience, skills,
knowledge, gender, age, cultural and education background,
ethnicity and length of service. All Board appointments will be
based on merits and the contribution which the selected
candidates are expected to bring to our Board.

been considered from a

Corporate Governance Report
BT

TEERRE

EEESULBEE
EXeRRRAZECSETESRS AUYe
REBEFRREAT THRANER - B2 R
HARREZEXREFZETEERESFT(LER
TRARTTBRAHEETLRRNESSRMZ
& o HEREREAZSTAER  BHERLE
BREMEN - X8 5 KGRI RIRE AR
BTEBEMEEHRANKENLE HER
EoMBUNRTEEME  KRELBE—F
e EMBRUEIIBEAFNBLRE - AR
BREANBRERBEREZSDAUNZ TS
RO AR REESERANEEES
TEBRZEE - R TRANEE - SFEETR
REEREE R RITRER  AMHE - R
Fi XERBEER BEHRERBEH -

ARARERMEFTSZ LR - ERHIE
HEFSLZ N - ARABRLERE
BEEHtEZgNER YRRAEESER
MZTERBBARAGFELNERTE -

REEFEZTRE REZEeREFHK
ZRtARRSESSEN TEREEES
TTAEBROATER -RRAEFTSEK LT
BREANE EZTHZEEFESZ T 8
BETRNEFRER e M@ 15 F
R NXERBEER BEEKRBEH -EF
EMEZERENEREREARRASRE
FeHANTRERER -

FENREENEERARAT —B-—G4% 43 ‘



Corporate Governance Report

s

TEERRE

Our Board has a balanced mix of knowledge, skills and
experiences in renewable energy, environmental protection,
engineering, business management, accounting and finance,
strategic, marketing and investors relations management. Our
Board also comprises directors of a wide range of age, ranging
from 46 years old to 65 years old. While we recognize that
gender diversity at the Board level can be improved given its
current composition of all-male Directors. We will strive to
achieve gender balance of the Board through certain measures
to be implemented by our nomination committee in accordance
with our board diversity policy. In particular, our Nomination
Committee will identify and recommend one female candidate
to our Board for consideration of her appointment as a Director
within two years from the Listing Date. In addition, our
Nomination Committee will also from time to time use its best
efforts to identify suitable female candidates and recommend
the same to our Board for consideration so that our Company
will have a pipeline of potential female successors to the Board
for ensuring the gender diversity of the Board. We will actively
identify female individuals suitably qualified to become the
Board members and we aim to introduce female Board member
to the Board.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in
the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code (which has been
re-numbered as CG Code provision A.2.1 since 1 January
2022).

As no corporate governance committee has been established,
the Board is responsible for, among after things, formulating
and reviewing the policies and practices on corporate
governance of the Group and making recommendations,
monitoring the compliance of legal and regulatory
requirements, reviewing and monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, and reviewing the Group’s compliance with the
CG Code and the disclosures in the annual report. The
corporate governance report has been reviewed by the Board in
the discharge of its corporate governance function. Further, the
Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (the “Code”) and will
comply with the code provisions in the Code. The Code sets
out principles of good corporate governance in relation to,
among other matters, directors, the chairman and chief
executive officer, board composition, the appointment,
re-election and removal of directors, their responsibilities and
remuneration and communications with shareholders.

D aa

E=gBEARSENBERR BRERE.
TR -XBEE S kMK B EHKk
REEMAEENASE RWhkER -EF2
Tl AEFEREFEHK T F4658 £655 2
B-ZRNENEREFOR/BEN  RMARA/KE
FEEENENZTEDNAFERE - HABHR
NBRBEEFEZTERREBRELEZESE
BHE THEEBEREEGERNFE - LHEE -
BN REZEERNLETEHRERNFAY
BITHEBE-—RXEEREATESS  TEML®
WMARES W HAWNREBRZE ST ITE
BRABNSHAENLEEREA  LHEET
EFeZE UEAQREA —EBENHLME
BEANENEFE HREFSTHUENZT
- BB EENEAEAEERKARESTS
REMZMEREAN  BRMAEERESESIA
LMESE-

T EEQBAE
EECRERTOEERTATAEXE
D3.VIEATE B AL (B2022F 1 A1B R EH R
FABTEERTHRIELEA2.1ME) -

HRIEEKRIERERRES NEFEAER
(R B HFT ke ARENERERK
REERURELERESR EEEEREE
RENBTERL BAMEREERERERE
ENBIIEFESEERR LRI AREE
TEREATHNBERAREFRTORE -&F
FEERETELXEABERENLXE
A E o UbSN AR F B R £ AR B &R
tTrprEeEEATRI(TTRID) - XA E T
Al ST RS e STRIGTAA R I B IEM R
Al AEEB(ERERESE TRELAITHRAE
BoEFeAK ZT BEELFAKESE K
EMEEREHARERTER -

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021



To the best knowledge of the Directors, during the Year, the
Group has complied in material respects with the relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the business
and operation of the Company.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
material misstatements or losses.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to
take in achieving the Company’'s strategic objectives, and
establishing and maintaining appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading management
team and overseeing their design, implementation and
monitoring of the risk management and internal control
systems.

The Company has engaged an independent internal control
advisor to perform a review on our overall internal control

procedures, which includes financial reporting, operations,
compliance and risk management. During the review, the
internal control advisor recommended remedial actions in

relation to weaknesses or deficiencies identified during the
review process. The internal control advisor also performed a
follow-up review after we had adopted their suggested
measures, and no material deficiency has been identified.

In addition, the Company has various internal guidelines,
written policies and procedures to monitor and alleviate the
risks arising from our daily operations. The Company Directors
and management closely monitor the implementation and assess
the effectiveness of these guidelines and measures which are
crucial to the Company business sustainability.
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The Company has developed system of internal control and risk
management for reviewing and maintaining an adequate
internal control system to safeguard the interests of the
shareholders and the assets of the Company.

The Company has not established a separate internal audit
department; instead, an external consultant was to review the
Group's internal control and risk management system and
support the Board in assessing the effectiveness of such system
annually.

The Board, as supported by the Audit Committee as well as the
management report and the internal control review findings,
reviewed the risk management and internal control systems,
including the financial, operational and compliance controls, for
the year ended 31 December 2021, and considered that such
systems are effective and adequate. The annual review also
covered the financial reporting and internal audit function and
staff qualifications, experiences and relevant resources.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2021.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company
about their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements
is set out in the Independent Auditor's Report on pages 129 to
135.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the Company’s external auditor of
the Company in respect of audit services and non-audit services
for the year ended 31 December 2021 amounted to
RMB1,500,000 and RMBnil respectively. An analysis of the
remuneration paid to the external auditor of the Company,
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KPMG, in respect of audit services and non-audit services for HEZEBMEFTHSHMEEAI SO S o
the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out below: frEsmT :
Service Category IR 75 58 5l Fees Paid/Payable
Eft HEfRER
RMB
ARER
Audit services: EZRF -
Annual audit FEEZ 1,200,000
Other audit services H fth B 1% R 300,000
COMPANY SECRETARY ABRE

Mr. Pan Honghuang and Ms. Tang Wing Shan Winza have
been appointed as the Company’s joint company secretaries.
Ms. Tang Wing Shan Winza is assistant vice president of the
company secretarial services department of Computershare
Hong Kong Development Limited.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the joint
company secretaries on corporate governance and board
practices and matters. Mr. Pan Honghuang, one of the joint
company secretaries, has been designated as the primary
contact person of the Company which would work and
Tang Wing Shan Winza on the
Company’s corporate governance and secretarial and
administrative matters.

communicate with Ms.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, Mr. Pan Honghuang
and Ms. Tang Wing Shan Winza have undertaken not less than
15 hours of relevant professional training respectively in
compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Pursuant to a special resolution of the Shareholders passed on
4 September 2020, the Articles of Association were adopted
with effect from the date of the listing of the Shares on the
Stock Exchange on 20 October 2020. There was no change in
the constitutional documents of the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

For good corporate governance and with an effort to
modernise and update the Company’s constitutional documents,
the Board has proposed the amendments to the Memorandum
and Articles of Association of the Company in accordance with
the requirement of the Listing Rules. The proposed
amendments are subject to the approval by the shareholders of
the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting to be
held in June 2022. Once approved, the Company will publish
the updated Memorandum and Articles of Association on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company does not have a dividend policy with
predetermined dividend payout ratio. Declaration and payment
of dividends is subject to the discretion and recommendation of
depending on our results of operation,
flows, financial position, statutory and regulatory restrictions on
the dividends paid by us, future prospects, as well as any other
factors which our Directors may consider relevant. We are a
holding company incorporated under the laws of the Cayman
Islands. Any final dividends for a financial year will be subject
to Shareholders’ approval upon our Board’s recommendation.
Payment and amount of any future dividend will also depend
on the availability of dividends received from our subsidiaries.
PRC laws require that dividends be paid only out of the profit
for the year calculated according to PRC accounting principles,
which differ in many aspects from the generally accepted
accounting principles in other jurisdictions, including IFRS. PRC
laws also require foreign-invested enterprises to set aside at
least 10% of its after-tax profits, if any, to fund its statutory

our Directors, cash

reserves, which are not available for distribution as cash

dividends.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company engages with its shareholders through various
communication channels. To safeqguard shareholders’ interests
and rights, separate resolution(s) should be proposed for each
substantially separate issue at general meetings, including the
election of individual director. All resolutions put forward at
general meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to the
Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the websites of
the Company and of the Stock Exchange after each general
meeting.

CONVENING AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL
MEETING AT THE REQUEST OF
SHAREHOLDERS

Pursuant to Article 58 of the amended and restated articles of
association of the Company, the Board may, whenever it thinks
fit, convene an extraordinary general meeting. Extraordinary
general meetings shall also be convened on the requisition of
one or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Secretary of the Company, to
require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two (2)
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within
twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting the
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.

requisitionist(s) himself
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PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT GENERAL
MEETINGS BY SHAREHOLDERS

There is no provision allowing the Company’s shareholders to
put forward new resolutions at general meetings under the
Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands or the amended and
restated articles of the Company. The Company’s shareholders
who wish to put forward a resolution may request the
Company to convene a general
procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.

meeting following the

For Shareholders’ right to nominate candidates for directors,
please refer to “Procedures for Shareholders to propose a
person for election as a Director” on the website of our
Company.

PUTTING FORWARD ENQUIRIES TO THE
BOARD

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders of
the Company may send written enquiries to the Company, the
contact details of which are contained on the website of the
Company (www.jyhyne.com).

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with its
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company is endeavours to maintain an
on-going dialogue with shareholders and in particular, through
annual general meetings and other general meetings.

At the annual general meeting, directors (or their delegates as
appropriate) are available to meet shareholders and answer
their enquiries.

POLICIES RELATING TO SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has in place a Shareholder Communication Policy
to ensure that
appropriately addressed. The policy is regularly reviewed to
ensure its effectiveness.

its shareholders’ views and concerns are
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

The 2021 Environmental, Social and Governance Report of
China Nature Energy Technology Holdings Limited
(hereinafter referred to as the “Report”) is the second
Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) Report issued
by China Nature Energy Technology Holdings Limited,
which elaborates on the principles adopted by China
Nature Energy Technology Holdings Limited in fulfilling its
corporate social responsibility and the performance results
thereof in 2021, including sustainability issues in relation
to environment and society that are of concern to key
stakeholders.

1.1. Reporting Principle
The Report follows the reporting principles set forth
in the ESG Reporting Guide of the Stock Exchange,
including:

Principle of materiality: In accordance with this
principle, the Report determines the issues that need
to be addressed in the Report through a materiality
analysis, and focuses on reporting the matters
related to environment, society and governance that
may have material impact on investors and other
stakeholders.

Principle of quantification: In accordance with this
principle, the Report discloses key quantitative
performance indicators, and gives illustrations on the
implications of the indicators with explanations on
the calculation basis and assumptions.

Principle of balance: According to this principle, the
content of the Report reflects objective facts and
discloses all indicators involving positive and negative
information.

Principle of consistency: In accordance with this
principle, the Report explains the implications of the
key quantitative ESG performance indicators
disclosed herein, explains the calculation basis and
assumptions, and tries to keep consistent with the
indicators used for different reporting periods in
order to reflect the trend of performance levels.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

1.6.

Scope of the Report

Organizational scope: The Report covers China
Nature Energy Technology Holdings Limited and its
subsidiaries, consistent with the entities covered in
the consolidated financial statements in the annual
report.

Time scope: The Report is a report on annual basis,
covering the period from 1
31 December 2021. Some of the contents may
precede or post-date this period due to the
continuity or the significant impact of the project.

January 2021 to

Basis of Preparation

This report is prepared in accordance with the ESG
Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Main Board
Listing Rules”) issued by The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and with
reference to the GRI STANDARDS (Core Option)
issued by the Global Sustainability Standards Board
(GSSB).

Data Description

The data quoted in the Report are derived from the
official data of the
Company. Unless otherwise stated, all measurements
in the Report are in metric system and all amounts

documents and statistical

are denominated in RMB.

Reference Description

For ease of expression and reading, China Nature
Energy Technology Holdings Limited is referred to as
“Nature Energy Technology”, “Nature”, “Company”
or "we"” in the Report, unless the context otherwise
requires.

Publication of the Report
The Report is published in electronic version only.

1.2

1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

1.6.
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MESSAGE FROM THE BOARD

As ESG is an indispensable element for the development
of modern enterprises, the Group is gradually aware of the
significant impact of ESG risks and opportunities on the
stable, long-term and healthy development of enterprises,
and has taken significant measures to optimize the
structure of corporate governance, environment and social
responsibility.

As the highest decision-making body for ESG of the
Group, the Board guides the heads of various
departments of the Group to form an ESG working
group, determines its main responsibilities and values,
authorizes the ESG working group to assist it in
coordinating, managing and supervising ESG issues, and
regularly receives work reports of the ESG working group
to effectively respond to ESG risks and opportunities.

The Directors and the management of the Group will
actively learn from the practical experience of mature
international enterprises and industry leaders, strengthen
internal optimization, and seek to integrate the
management model based on the ESG concept into the
business strategy, risk control management, compliance
and daily operation of the Company, so as to create
sustainable values for the Company and its stakeholders.

In the future development process, the Group will take
ESG strategy as an important tool to improve the
adaptability of business development, continue to
integrate sustainable development elements into business
operations, further improve the Group’s internal control
mechanism, and establish a sustainable business model.
The Board will continue to perform its duties, give full
play to its leadership, seize global opportunities of
sustainable development, and continuously improve the
ESG engineering construction of the Group.

The Board regularly reviews the ESG work and approves
the disclosure on ESG-related information. The Report has
been reviewed and approved by the Board before
publication.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
Iﬁiﬁ N Ti& B A #&i

3. ABOUT US 3. BAREM
3.1. Corporate Overview 3.1. DE#MR

China Nature Energy Technology Holdings Limited REARERBBERBERAASR
focuses on providing integrated services for the new ERET LR E@ﬁ%%ﬂﬁﬁ/\ﬁﬁi‘k
energy power industry and was listed on the Main RZZE_ZFTA+THEFEBR
Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on FrEMR £ - BREA SR - 01597 < &
20 October 2020 (stock code: 01597). Currently, the EREAME AE HE E#f
Group has nearly 170 employees in the research and &Txélﬁ?LWO}\ B4 kR
development (“R&D"), production, sales, operation BERITHEEMAZLEE B
and maintenance and investment teams, focusing on ERBEMEL ZEXRREEFHE
the two core industries of energy storage and wind BUYTHRANEBRL B2
power pitch control systems. It has established a FaeRER -

mature business network in northern China, eastern
China and southern China, covering the new energy
business around the globe.

During the Reporting Period, the Company had no WMEBRA - ARIEMABRE - HLEM
significant changes in its ownership, nature and frEEnE XEL -
supply chain.

3.2. Business Presence 3.2. ¥BRE

Duolun, Inner Mongolia NEES
e Wind Farm B &%

Beijing dt3X
*  Energy Storage and Sales Centre f#RESH%E 0>

Jiangyin, Wuxi #8551
. R&D, Production and Sales Centre of Pitch Control Systems
BTSRRI AE - HERO
Integration and Sales Centre of Energy Storage Devices
i AR SR K B R L
Wind Power After-sales Operation and Maintenance Centre

EEEEIFRR O

\\

Shanghai £i§
e Management and R&D Centre & H E2Af 2

Shenzhen FII
*  Energy Storage and R&D Centre f&BERZEFR L
. Integrated Energy System Solution Service Centre
HEBRRBEAT RGO
. Inlegrated Energy Project Investment Centre
FAERARRERL
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3.3. Corporate Culture

Core Values: Innovation, Practical, Enthusiastic,
Development

Corporate Spirit: Dare to Take Responsibility, Brave
to Make Attempt, Advancing with a Determined
Spirit, Strive for the Best

Corporate Mission: Carrying Forward the Spirit of
Hard Working, Striving for Long-Term Development

Corporate Vision: Committed to becoming a
trustworthy new energy equipment manufacturer

Business Philosophy: Customer success is the
foundation of our success

Company Goal: Adhering to the trial and marketing
industry of high-end and new products, striving for
excellence and strength backed by science and
technology and the industry, and persisting in
localization, so that the Company can gradually
develop into a large scale high-tech company with
high recognition and sound reputation in the
industry.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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3.4. Development Milestones 34 BREER

D s6

In 2015, Jiangyin Hongyuan New Energy Technology
BRolEF LR B R A F)
was established as one of the pioneers in the high-
voltage pitch control system manufacturing market in
the PRC; Datang Gucang Duolun Wind Farm was
connected to the grid for power generation.

Company Limited (T

In 2016, we successfully developed 2.x-4.x MW
high-voltage pitch control system, which marked an
important step in the entire market for the
transformation from low-voltage to high-voltage
pitch control system.

In 2017, the pitch control system obtained GB/T
19001-2016/I1SO9001: 2015 quality management
system certification; we provided wind power after-
sales operation and maintenance services, with our
business covering wind farms across the country.

In 2018, lJiangyin Hongyuan was awarded the
National High and New Technology Enterprise
Certificate.

In 2019, the high-voltage pitch control system was
upgraded to 8.0 MW and launched to the offshore
wind power market.

In 2020, China Nature Energy Technology Holdings
Limited was listed on the Main Board in Hong Kong.

In 2021, Nature Intelligent Energy (Shenzhen) Co.,
Ltd. (MR EZfR OFJ) BRA

to carry out comprehensive energy storage business.

7)) was established

—E—RF RMTRILEFER
MEARAA KentEEBREE
THRSGHEEM BN EE L — K

EBRREEZREESHHEES -

:f—/_\i’ﬁilﬂﬁﬁézx#x%ﬁ

RS R FEEETS
Efﬂﬂirﬁ?ﬁmr“”%? GIES o1
BEE—Ho

—+F - BERIEH RGESGB/
T 19001-2016/1SO9001 : 2015& £
EERORET HARRBEESKRESR
R - XBEMEEZMEL -

—E-N\FIELERERERS
M hERE -

SE-AE BEESREHESR
R ESOKE - HES EAED

5 o

—E-TF PEARERMRE
BRBERARAERBERLT

7:’:7_45'5 ﬁX—_L W?%D%ﬁ //\(/71(
YD ERADRA  2EFARRMEERT
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3.5. Honours Received

No Time

ek BFRE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

B HEREAWE

3.5. FRrELE

Honours received

FigEsReE

Awarding entity
17 5% B2 fiI

1 January 2019
—E-NF
—H
2 January 2019
—ET-NF
— A
3 January 2019
—E-NF
—H
4 March 2019
—E-NF
=HA
5 April 2019
—E-NF
M\ A

2018 Advanced Enterprise in Quality
Development Performance Assessment

0BFEREELEREMERAEELRE

2018 Advanced Enterprise for Scientific
and Technological Talents Innovation

2018 F A A BIFI R ERE

2018 Advanced Foreign-funded Foreign
Trade Enterprise

2018F EHNE INE o 3

2018 Advanced Unit for Industrial
Development

2018 EEX BREBRLEEN

Advanced Unit for Protecting Democratic
and Legal Rights
REFRBRETESN

CPC Yuecheng Town
Committee, Yuecheng
Town People’s

Government
FHAWEZES - AWEE
AR BT

CPC Yuecheng Town
Committee, Yuecheng
Town People’s
Government

PHAMEZES
AR BUF

- AR

CPC Yuecheng Town
Committee, Yuecheng
Town People’s
Government

RHAMBEZES  AWE
ARBTF

CPC Yuecheng Town
Committee, Yuecheng
Town People’s
Government

PHAWBEEZES  AME
AR BUF

Yuecheng Federation of
Trade Unions
ARERT S

FENREENEERAERAT —B-—GF8% 57 {
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No. Time Honours received Awarding entity
FiR BE FRERE 97 5% B8 i
6 2019 2019 Model Enterprise of Compliance and  Jiangyin Federation of
Integrity Industry and Commerce,
Jiangyin Federation of
Trade Unions
—E-NF 20195 EEMETHBEE TEemInxEes 1B
mRIeg
7 January 2020 2019 Integrity Model Enterprise CPC Yuecheng Town
Committee, Yuecheng
Town People’s
Government
—T-TF 2019F EHE e % THAWMBEZES  AWME
—A AR B
8 January 2020 2019 Excellent Enterprise with High- CPC Yuecheng Town
quality Development Performance Committee, Yuecheng
Town People’s
Government
—T-TF 09 ERBE8RREESRLE PHAWBEEZES  AME
—A AR B
9 January 2020 2019 Advanced Enterprise for Scientific CPC Yuecheng Town
and Technological Talents Innovation Committee, Yuecheng
Town People’s
Government
—ZET-TF 2019 BRI AT BIFT R ¥ THAMEBEZES  AWE
— A AR BT
10 January 2020 2019 Enterprise with Tax Contribution of ~ CPC Yuecheng Town

CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Over Ten Million

019FEAERESBTETLE

Committee, Yuecheng
Town People’s
Government
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No. Time Honours received Awarding entity
FSk BEME FRERE 97 5% B8 i
11 January 2020 2019 Advanced Foreign-funded Foreign CPC Yuecheng Town
Trade Enterprise Committee, Yuecheng
Town People’s
Government
—ZET-ZTF 2019 BANEINE T3 RHAMBEZES  AWE
—A AR B
12 January 2020 2019 Key Enterprise in Jiangyin City CPC Jiangyin Municipal
Committee, Jiangyin
Municipal People’s
Government
—T-TF 2009F B IRmEREHREE mHEIRTE - IBRTAR
—A BUF
13 March 2020 2019 Advanced Collective for Industrial CPC Yuecheng Town
Development Committee, Yuecheng
Town People’s
Government
—T-THF 09 EEXREERTESR RHAWBEEZES  AME
=A ARBF
14 January 2021 2020 Outstanding Contribution Enterprise  CPC Yuecheng Town
with High-quality Development Committee, Yuecheng
Performance Town People’s
Government
—ZT=—F 069 EREERREMRELEREE HSHAMEZES  AWE
—A AR B
15 January 2021 2020 Enterprise with Tax Contribution of ~ CPC Yuecheng Town

Over Ten Million

2020FEAERESBTETEE

PEMRERNERRERAT =%

Committee, Yuecheng
Town People’s
Government

RHAMEZE S - AWEA
A B BUF

w55 59
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R HEREAME

No Time

FFSk BRME

Honours received

FigERa

Awarding entity
1R 3% BE fir

16 January 2021
- —F
—A

17 January 2021
—E-—F
—A

18 January 2021
T
—A

19 January 2021
- —F
—A

20 March 2021
—E - —4F

D 6o

2020 Foreign-funded Foreign Trade Cash

Enterprise

20205 AN EINER S B E

2020 Advanced Collective of Safe
Production

2000 E LR A E TR EEE

2020 Advanced Unit for Harmonious
Labour Relations

20204 [ M5 5 B RE IR R E B (L

2020 Key Enterprise in Jiangyin City

200F B TEMESEH b E

2020 Advanced Collective for Industrial
Development

2020F EE X BRI LR
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CPC Yuecheng Town
Committee, Yuecheng
Town People’s
Government

RHAMBEZES  AWE
AR BUF

CPC Yuecheng Town
Committee, Yuecheng
Town People’s
Government

RHEAMEZES  AWE
A B BUF

CPC Yuecheng Town
Committee, Yuecheng
Town People’s
Government

PHAWBEEZES  AME
AR BT

CPC lJiangyin Municipal
Committee, Jiangyin
Municipal People’s
Government

PHRHIBTER IBRMAR
B

CPC Yuecheng Town
Committee, Yuecheng
Town People’s
Government

RHEAMEZES  AWE
A B BUF



4.

MANAGEMENT: INTEGRITY AND
COMPLIANCE

Integrity and compliant operation are the foundation of
corporate development. Nature Energy Technology strictly
abides by the bottom line of compliance, advocates
honest operation, continuously improves various
compliance management systems, provides a solid
guarantee for the sustainable development of the
Company, and drives partners to fulfill their compliance
responsibilities with their own compliant operation, so as
to create a healthy and honest operating environment.

4.1. Rebulatory Governance
In strict compliance with the Company Law and
other laws and regulations as well as the Articles of
Association, Nature Energy Technology continuously
optimizes the relevant systems of corporate
governance and compliance management, improves
the internal control system, builds and enhances a
modern management system that meets the
requirements of the
achieves normalized and effective operation of the
internal management and control system.

regulatory authorities, and

4.2. Anti-corruption
Nature Energy Technology attaches great importance
to anti-corruption and related work, strictly abides by
the Audit Law of the People’s Republic of China
(HE AR FEAMEZEEIE)), the Internal Audit
Regulations of the People’s Republic of China ({(/ %
AR KB A E 2 EB)) and relevant laws and
regulations, and has formulated and implemented
the Anti-fraud and Reporting System ({f & #% €3 52
#HHIE)) and the Anti-corruption and Anti-bribery
Management System ({(X @B RITHEEHIE)) to
regulate the Company’s material procurement,
business sales, equipment procurement and other
third-party
professional institutions to conduct internal control
regularly conducts anti-
corruption training for all directors and employees to

activities. The Company invites

audits every year, and
strengthen their awareness of anti-corruption and

create a good atmosphere of upholding the bottom
line and integrity.

Bl 4 R &k
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4.2. R IE1EEE
MRERMESEEERESTEE
AR T 1E - Bt BF(FEARHA
FMBEE R (PEARKLFBER
IBEATIEG) RAARAERER  HIE
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The Company maintains a smooth channel for
reporting anti-corruption complaints, provides
reporting channels such as telephone hotline, e-mail
and letter, sets up a reporting box for preventing
commercial bribery, and takes effective measures to
protect the information and data of the whistle-
blowers. The Company has strengthened the internal
control and supervision mechanism of the enterprise,
adhered to honesty and trustworthiness, strictly
followed the rules of fair competition, guided the
management and related stakeholders of the
Company such as customers and suppliers to act in
accordance with the law, and consciously resisted
corruption phenomenon such as prejudicing ethics in
pursuit of profits, undermining public interests in
exchange for private interests, going back on
promises, and deception and fraud.

RAGARBHRIFERRE =
HREZRR BEFEME ERFE
HaE RUBHEXBRITES
B KRB OB ERERBAG
BHEEFR - RAINEERAZEME
BHEH MBIBETE BB ER
RFFEFHA S ERREEAE
MiERANsBERNER, HEBS
wEmE BBEAHRFEE B
R THER  RERAFEFHR
BEBRR -

Performance Indicators Unit 2019 2020 2021
HBIER B fu 20194 20204 20215
Number of corruption proceedings case

brought against the issuer or its

employees and settled during the

Reporting Period
RN EITAREETRE (&5 0 0 0

WEBENETHARMH
Proportion of employees covered by %

anti-corruption training
REFEINEERE TP % 100 100 100
Length of time per employee Hour per person

participating in anti-corruption

training
BT AAZ2EREFEIRK AN TN 1 1 1
Proportion of Board members %

covered by anti-corruption

training
REGHBINBEBENEZTSKE LY % 100 100 100
Number of hours per Director Hour

participating in anti-corruption

training
B AOREIXREFHINEE N 2 2 2
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4.3. Fair competition

Nature Energy Technology adheres to the principle of
fair competition, strictly abides by the Company Law
of the People’s Republic of China ((FF#E A R HFEH
N AlE)), the Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the
People’s Republic of China ((FZE AR KRB R TIE
E#F%£)) and other laws and regulations, respects
every competitor, and regards excellent competitors
as the motivation for innovation and change of the
Company. The Company conducts fair competition
training for employees to prevent unfair
competition. Through the establishment of whistle-
blowing procedures, the Company monitors and
protects whistle-blowers against unfair competition,
and actively creates a healthy and transparent
operating atmosphere and a good business
competition environment.

In order to strengthen fair competition, the
Company has also signed the “Sunshine Agreement”
with suppliers as an appendix when signing
procurement contracts to increase the transparency
of the procurement and bidding process and protect
the common interests of the Company and
suppliers.

During the Reporting Period, the Company was not
involved in any legal proceedings related to improper
competition.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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4.4,

4.5,

Information Security

Nature Energy Technology has always attached great
importance to the protection of business secrets and
security, and earnestly fulfilled its
commitment to the protection of customer
information assets. The Company has formulated the
Information Security Management System ({{5 B. &
2EEHIE)) to regulate the protection of customer
information assets by employees and departments,
promote the protection of customer information
assets from the three aspects of information user
management, physical
communication and operation, regularly carry out
information security risk assessment, establish an
information security emergency response mechanism,
optimize the security management
ensure the information security of the
Company and customers to the greatest extent, and
impact of accidental
leakage. During the Reporting Period, the Company
did not have any internal or customer information
leakage related disputes and
litigations.

information

environment, as well as

information
system,

minimize the information

incidents and

Intellectual Property

Over the years, Nature Energy Technology regards
respecting intellectual property rights and protecting
intellectual property rights from infringement as an
important responsibility by strictly abiding by
intellectual property laws and regulations and
respecting the intellectual property rights of all
parties. By formulating and implementing the
Knowledge Control Procedures (0¥ #1732 F)),
the Company regulates the management of internal
exchange and sharing of intellectual property rights,
the management of external intellectual property
rights, and the management of corporate intellectual
property assets. Through the collection and
organization of intellectual property information by
various departments, the Company forms a list of
intellectual property assets to ensure that its
operation does not infringe any patents, copyrights
property rights of other
companies and individuals.

or other intellectual

44, E2%2

4.5,

AR BER B UE R ER R T B E M
EMREEELE YERTHE
FREREENREARE - QA HE
(EEZE2EREFEIRBETIRE
BEABEFEEEENRE  KE
EERAEBEE MERE A
EBREZITHH#EZFEREER
E - TEHRREELTEZRRF
i BYUEERERIERHES
BEEERLE2ERRBR HAEE
REQABDEREPHNERLZE &K
REBRVEEEIEBENTE - &
EHA - ARARBLERNBXEFLE
BHBEEMHRAERAU LML -

058k A

RHAK  MRERMXBEEM
BEE RENZERTIIELE
REEEM  BRBETHNEEEE
B EBEERTHMBEREDS 17
18 18 I E B e (AT I A2 7 ) AR 4
HARNBERNIRMAZNE
BONEABERE R  MEME
EREETE BBZMANKE -
EEMBEESEER  EAANRE
EREEFE HREZPIHRE
Hibnm] - AARNER - FEEEL
HL At 0 38 E HE
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4.6.

The Company continues to strengthen its intellectual
property management and enhance the awareness of
employees and management personnel on
intellectual property. The Company’s technology
center is responsible for technology research and
development and innovation. All models of pitch
systems have passed the power grid adaptability
certification of China Electric Power Research
Institute. In 2021, the Company had 5 invention
patents, 33 utility model patents and 8 software
copyrights.

During the Reporting Period, the Company was not
involved in any disputes or litigations in relation to
intellectual property rights.

Information Disclosure

In strict compliance with the requirements of
relevant laws and regulations, Nature Energy
Technology strengthens the management of matters
information disclosure, fulfills its
information disclosure obligations, maintains smooth

related to

information channels, and discloses information in a
true, reliable, accurate, timely and complete manner.
In particular, for material information that may affect
the investment decisions of shareholders and other
investors, the Company promptly
submits such information to the public to ensure fair
treatment of all investors without selective
disclosure, so as to allow shareholders and all
stakeholders to keep abreast of the Company’s
development, enhance information transparency and
ensure the investors’ right to know.

releases and

Bl 4 R &k
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PARTNERS: WIN-WIN COOPERATION

Adhering to an open and cooperative attitude, Nature

Energy Technology actively explores a win-win model with
business partners. We are committed to providing high-

quality and safe products and services,

continuously

improving the customer relationship management system,
accompanying the growth of customers, meeting customer

needs,

continuously innovating, and working with all

parties to build a sustainable industrial chain and maintain
a good business ecosystem.

5.1.

Quality Management

Quality is the foundation of the Company’s business
activities. Quality assurance is an essential element
of the Company’s management system. Quality and
quality assurance are the embodiment of the
Company’s mission.
strictly abides by the Product Quality Law of the
People’s Republic of China ((FFEAR KB EHE
%)) and other laws and regulations, with the aim
of “providing products and services with outstanding
quality and the highest value to our users”,
for customer satisfaction and maintains trust in our
products and services.

Nature Energy Technology

strives

The Company regards users’ judgment as the final
evaluation standard of quality, and has established a
management system of “full product inspection”.
The Company implements comprehensive quality
management throughout the entire process of
product planning, design and development,
production, sales and delivery,
relevant management procedures in each part which
require every employee to be responsible for work
quality, clarify product quality control requirements,
and ensure high-quality product delivery. The
Company has passed the [SO9001: 2015 quality
system certification.

and formulates

%31# : AVE/\HE’I.
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Process Management System Control measures
R T E B
Planning Planning Procedures for Product J Establishing quality objectives
Realization ({(EmEIR A X 272 and requirements for products,
FF)) and specifying verification and
acceptance criteria
o Preparing quality plan, follow-up
feedback form, etc.
K& (EmBHRNEKEIRF) s RUEmMMEEERFEEZN
R B Mk X AER
e mEBESHE BRUREBRTF
Design and Design and Development Control o Preparing the Design and
development Procedures (&% &1 A1 5 3% 1% ] 12 Development Project Task
I52)) Proposal ((3& &t 5318 B T 155t
2l £)) to track and record
design requirements, surveying
and mapping data, drawing

TR

Production

HE

Delivery

R AT AN R R AR )

Production Process Control Procedures
(KEEBREZESIEF)), Control
Procedures on Process, Product
Monitoring and Surveying (B2
EmERMAEESER)),
Regulations on Production Process
(KEETITEIRE)), etc.

CEEBREEHRER) (B EAN
ERMASEEHETR) (EEIE
REE

Regulations on Product Labelling and
Traceability Management ({ @ 1Z
A ERAEERRE)),
Regulations on Product Delivery
Management ({Z fn R B I
#))

(EmBERMATEHNEEIERSD)
(EmXNEBERE)

TEAREEREERAERAR —T—

plans, review requirements,
sample preparation and
inspection requirements, etc.
mE(RFTHEEEE EHETE
B BMREHERTENR A
g HETR FAEEKR K
mEBEEEREERSE

Inspecting samples produced by
equipment after commissioning
Inspecting products and
packaging

Managing product labels

% 5 39 B 1R R
TE*AAFDD&@
EEEMTH

R EERE M

Verifying products and customer
information to ensure that
customer needs are met

Fod
=&
op
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5.2.

5.3.

Innovative R&D

Innovation is a strong driving force for high-quality
development of enterprises. Nature Energy
Technology continuously optimizes the innovation
management mechanism, concentrates on improving
innovation ability, increases investment in scientific
and technological research and development, focuses
on scientific and technological innovation, and leads
corporate innovation and development. In order to
promote production technology innovation of the
Company, shorten the product R&D cycle, enhance
the quality of product design and reduce product
development costs, Nature Energy Technology
invested RMB11,570,000 in R&D during the
Reporting Period, accounting for 3.82% of the
operating revenue for the same period.

Quality Service

Naquan Energy Technology adheres to customer
needs as the center, responds quickly and
implements accurately, and is committed to
providing customers with better services, focusing on
safeguarding customer interests, and always taking
customer satisfaction as the measurement standard.

The Company broadens customer communication
channels, introduces the Company’s business to
customers through advertisements, trade fairs, on-
site visits, etc., communicates with customers
through hotline, letters, industry association
feedback, visits and other channels, coordinates and
manages the communication with customers before,
during and after sales through the Customer-Related
Process Control Procedures, and regulates the
Company’s after-sales service and return handling
process through the After-sales Service Management
Regulations and the Customer Return Goods
Handling Regulations.

The Company regulates the identification and
handling process of unqualified products in the
manufacturing and delivery process through the
Control Procedures for Unqualified Products and the
Flow Chart for Disposal of Defective Products. For
non-conforming products, the Company adopts
returning, exchanging and other handling methods.

5.2.

5.3.
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Procedures for handling non-conforming products: NeBmERELR

The Quality Checking Department Production Depariment tags

During fills in the Review and Disposal
: o the products and separates them
manufacturing Report of Unqualified Products e S A -
BUEIRE HEIER el
(TEBmATERERS) “
The quality department
Delivery will investigate the cause Returns, exchanges, etc.
RAS of non-conformity RE  BES

BERNHETEBER

Quality Management Performance of Nature Energy Technology in the Past Three Years

MRERMRE=FEEETREN

Performance Indicators Unit 2019 2020 2021
HWER E5 {ir 20195 20205 20214
Total number of violations of health pieces

and safety and labelling laws and
regulations by the products and
services provided

B ERIREERREREY (&8 0 0 0
2 RETHELERBIEREN
B 48 25

Proportion of products to be %

returned for safety and health
reasons in the total number of
products sold or delivered

EEXCEXEMBRTRELEHE % 0 0 0
{52 3% e T 22 1= 45 Y LE

Total number of violations of pieces
marketing laws and regulations

EMSHEETHELEETEREMN (&3 0 0 0
48 2K

The number of complaints received pieces
regarding products and services

EEBREMNMREHIRFEA (&8 0 0 0

FENSREENEERERAT —B-— 558 69 {
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5.4.

We have formulated and
Procedures for Customer Satisfaction and Customer
Complaints to standardize customer satisfaction

improved the Control

surveys and complaint handling, regularly carried out
customer satisfaction surveys, and assign special
personnel to conduct on-site communication with
customers, identified and classified the problems and
suggestions raised by customers, and rectified the
items that can be improved, so as to quickly and
effectively solve the problems of customers and
improve customer satisfaction. The Company has also
set up a tracking and verification process to further
strengthen the tracking and management of the
implementation of improvement measures, ensure
that the feedback provided by customers is
effectively improved and
between the Company and
customers, and improve the quality of customer
service. In 2021, the Company conducted spot
checks on 3 customers out of 5 major customers
with monthly orders. The actual sampling coverage

improved, promote the
communication

reached 60%, the recovery rate reached 100%, and
customer satisfaction reached 99%.

Supplier Management

Based on the basic principles of supplier
identification, Nature Energy Technology adheres to
the principle of paying equal attention to quality,
cost, delivery and service, actively carries out the
construction of supplier management system, firmly
advocates the concept of responsible procurement,
continuously improves the requirements for suppliers
to fulfill their social responsibilities, and strengthens
communication with suppliers through various
methods to jointly establish a healthy, positive and
sustainable green supply chain.

5.4.
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The Company has established the Supplier
Management System to coordinate and regulate the
selection, file management, daily management,
evaluation, elimination and complaint handling of
suppliers, and improve the Procurement and Supplier
Control Procedures to clarify the specific
requirements for supplier selection, evaluation and
management. Under the same conditions, priority is
given to energy-saving equipment and low-
consumption materials. The Company divides
suppliers into important materials, general materials
and auxiliary materials suppliers according to the
types of products provided by suppliers, and
classifies and manages suppliers by categories.

The Company continues to strengthen the
management of the procurement process, and uses
the Supplier Assessment Form and Supplier
Inspection Report every year to evaluate suppliers in
terms of sample selection, quality control, employee
training, dangerous goods management, waste
discharge, ISO system certification, etc. For suppliers
with serious quality, environmental protection and
safety problems, the Company will follow the
management procedures of improvement, correction
and prevention actions, issue a rectification notice
and require them to provide rectification reports.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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The number of qualified suppliers of the Company in =% RuleBHERHEENT
the past three years is as follows: x:
Performance Indicators Unit 2019 2020 2021
HBIER B8 i 20195 20204 20214
Total number of suppliers Home
e 7 4 B x 10 18 36
Number of suppliers in Mainland Home
China
F B K B ) £ FE 7 B = 10 18 35
Number of suppliers from overseas, Home
Hong Kong, Macao and Taiwan
N PR A [ ) e 7 3K EX 0 0 1
Percentage of suppliers that have %

implemented environmental,
labour and ethical performance
assessment in accordance with
the Company’s supplier
assessment system

1R A EY A RE R AT AT % 100 100 100%
R ST BRFIEXRRA
AEBHER A D

Number of suppliers found that was Home
unable to meet the evaluation
criteria during the reporting
period

wEHARNBERAT AT
SEMHEEEEE

N
o
o
o
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EMPLOYEES: PEOPLE-ORIENTED

Employees are the foundation of enterprise development
and the source of enterprise innovation. Nature Energy
Technology attaches great importance to the protection of
employees’ rights and interests, provides employees with a
humanized working environment, creates a diversified and
harmonious working atmosphere, and strives to build a
platform for employees to
development results with employees.

realize value and share

6.1. Employment Overview
Nature Energy Technology always adheres to the
employment concept of fairness, equality and merit-
based recruitment, carries out recruitment activities
with equal pay for equal work and no gender
discrimination, attaches importance to the diversity
of talents, open and transparent
employment opportunities, and prohibits the
recruitment and employment of employees due to
factors such as gender, religious belief and economic
ability. The Company attaches great importance to
gender equality and resolutely eliminates
discrimination against women in employment. The

provides fair,

Company does not discriminate against the disabled
and actively creates job opportunities for the
disabled.

At the end of 2021, the total number of employees
of Naquan was 169, including 134 male employees,
accounting for 79.3%; and 35 female employees,
accounting for 20.7%.

Bl 4 R &k
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The employment of the Company in the past three M=F RAAIBRIATR:
years is as follows:
Performance Indicators Unit 2019 2020 2021
BWER B8 i 20194 20204 20215
Total number of employees person
BTI@H A 134 165 169
By gender:
MR
Number of female employees person
LHEBEITH A 23 28 35
Number of male employees person
FHEEIH A 111 137 134
By employment type:
RERT
Number of employees under person
labor contract
LHARTIE T AR A 134 165 169
Number of employees under person
labor dispatch
EBIRET BT AR A 0 0 0
Number of employees under person
other forms of employment
Hit B8 ITH A 0 0 0
By age:
REFW -
Number of employees over 50 person
505 A EEVE T AR A 15 17 19
Number of employees aged 30 to person
50
305% £50 0 B T A A 32 40 47
Number of employees under 30 person
30 A THIE T AR A 87 108 103
By region:
B
Number of employees working in person
Mainland China
ERBEAETIIENE T AR A 133 164 167
Number of employees working in person
Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan
and overseas
ERBRERGINTIENE T AR A 1 1 2
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Performance Indicators Unit 2019 2020 2021
HMIER B8 i 20195 20204 20214
By rank:
REBAR -
Number of senior management person
staff
BREEEEIAR A 9 9 10
Number of middle management person
staff
TREBEETIAHK A 10 10 10
Number of junior employees person
EBETIAH A 115 146 149
Employee turnover rate %
BIRAE % 25.37 29.09 22.84
Including:
He:
Male employee turnover rate %
EHEIRAX % 25.23 30.66 33.58
Turnover rate of female %
employees
TMBEIRAR % 26.09 21.43 5.7
Turnover rate of employees over %
50
S50B% A £ B TH ik % % 0 0 0
Turnover rate of employees aged %
30 to 50
3058 £508% B TH) i K & % 40.63 40.00 42.00
Turnover rate of employees %
under 30
3055 A T B TRy K % % 24.14 29.63 33.52
Turnover rate of employees in %
Mainland China
EhBEAEME TiRkX % 25.37 29.09 22.84
Turnover rate of employees %
working overseas (including
Hong Kong, Macau and
Taiwan)
EBIINEBRE)ITENE
IRA= % 0 0 0
Total number of incidents of
employee discrimination case
ETEREHEH (&3 0 0 0
cEMRRENERRERAD —2-—558 75 €
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6.2. Protection of Rights and Interests

» 76

Nature Energy Technology strictly abides by the
Labor Law (4 &)%), the Labor Contract Law (4814
[[J%) and other laws and regulations, and has
formulated the Human Resources Management
System to regulate the employment behavior of the
Company and build a harmonious labor relationship.
The Company adheres to the recruitment principles
of fairness, openness, equality and competition,
opposes racial discrimination, gender discrimination
and ethnic discrimination, provides equal
employment opportunities, implements equal pay for
equal work for men and women, and takes no
personal characteristics irrelevant to work such as
gender, age, ethnicity, religious belief and place of
residence as the recruitment restriction conditions,
and prohibits discrimination in remuneration
treatment due to gender, age, ethnicity, religious
belief, place of residence and other reasons
unrelated to work. The Company strictly complies
with national laws and regulations, respects the
internationally accepted social responsibility code of
conduct, resolutely eliminates the employment of
child labor and forced labor, and prohibits
discrimination and harassment. In 2021, there were
no incidents and complaints of human rights
violations.

The Company adheres to the principle of distribution
according to work, adheres to the “win-win”
rationale, and establishes a remuneration structure
that is conducive to employee development with
basic salary as the main body and performance and
other benefits, so as to ensure that the
remuneration standard of employees is higher than
the remuneration standard of the same industry, and
the minimum wage standard is higher than the local
minimum wage standard stipulated by the
government.

6.2. i {RIE
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6.3.

The Company strictly implements the national
regulations on employee leave.
entitled to take rests and days off in accordance
with the law, enjoy wedding and funeral leave,
maternity leave, family planning and other holidays
in accordance with the regulations, and implement
the paid annual leave system. If employees work
overtime on holidays and public holidays due to
production and operation needs, overtime pay or
compensatory leave shall be given in accordance

with the Labor Law (45 &%).

Employees are

The Company signs labor contracts with employees
in accordance with laws and regulations, and pays
five social insurances and one housing fund for
employees. In 2021, the labor contract signing and
social insurance participation rate of employees are
100%.

Training and Development

In order to ensure that the correct values, proper
work attitude and appropriate work behaviors of
employees to let the Company maintains the
advantages of human resources in competition,
Nature Energy Technology has established the
Employee Training Management System, and
formulated the employee training plan at the
beginning of each year, which is implemented in
stages based on the Company’'s annual work
objectives and
development. The Company Conducts a company-
level induction training for new employees, so that
employees can adapt to the job requirements and
perform their duties as soon as possible; carries out
regular department-level job skill training according
to the professional work engaged by employees to
improve the compatibility between employees and
specific work and improve work performance. In
response to the needs of the business skills of each
position, the Company adopts the external training
mode and conducts special external training to
enable employees to continuously adapt to the
development requirements of the new situation and
create greater value in their positions.

the direction of business

hEMRERRNERRERAD =2
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Performance Indicators Unit 2019 2020 2021
HWIER B8 i 20194 20204 20215
Employee training coverage %
BTHINIBEER % 100 100 100
Proportion of female employees %
covered by training
BIBENREE T L % 17.16 16.97 20.71
Proportion of male employees %
covered by training
B EENSEE TR % 83.84 83.03 79.29
Percentage of senior %
management employees
covered by training
BIEBENSREREE LY %
]l 6.72 5.45 5.92
Percentage of middle %
management employees
covered by training
BINBENTREBEELN %
Lt 1 7.46 6.06 5.92
Percentage of junior employees %
covered by training
B BEENEEE TP % 85.82 88.48 88.16
Average training received by hours/person
employees
B T BT/ ANSIPN 2 2 4
Average hours of training hours/person
received by female employees
LB ITERE TG/ INEESA 2 2 4
Average hours of training hours/person
received by male employees
BEIHEXEITFHNFE NN 2 2 4
Average hours of training hours/person
received by employees at
senior management level
BREBEBEIEITH NG ANETON 5 5 4
Average hours of training hours/person
received by employees at
middle management level
PREEEEXIEI T NER ANETON 5 5 4
Average hours of training hours/person
received by employees at
grass-root level
EEBTHSHENTH B N 1 1 4
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6.4.

Nature Energy Technology has established and
improved the “Measures for Talent Reserve
Management and Training”, established and
improved the Company’s talent training mechanism,
adhered to the principle of “internal training as the
main body and external training as the auxiliary”,
established the “unified and separate” talent training
system, adopted the “rolling in and out” method for
circular training, and adhered to the talent training
policy of “combining professional training and
comprehensive training with professional training as
the main body”, which not only cultivated expert
technical talents, but also cultivated comprehensive
management talents, and established the Company’s
talent pool reserve consisting of four parts, namely
the “Changhong Plan (&35A&F&l)”, “Chonghong Plan
(254 5+ &))", “Xuanhong Plan (E s &t &))" and
“Xiuhong Plan (& 5551 &l)", to reasonably explore,
develop and cultivate the Company’s backbone and
back-up talent team, so as to achieve rapid growth,
establish a talent echelon at all levels, and provide
intellectual capital support for the Company’s
sustainable development.

Physical and Mental Health

In order to help employees relieve their
psychological anxiety and psychological pressure,
protect their occupational mental health, enrich their
spiritual and cultural life, strengthen team cohesion,
and shape a positive, healthy and progressive
corporate culture, Nature Energy Technology actively
carries out diversified employee activities to care for
their work and life. In 2021, the Company organized
activities such as “Red Culture Learning (4Lt &
&))", which not only spread corporate values,
concepts, spirit and ethics, but also promoted the
construction of corporate culture; It also provides a
stage for employees to demonstrate their talents,
which enhances the centripetal force, cohesion and
progress of employees.

Bl 4 R &k
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6.5. Occupational Safety 6.5. HEX%®2

Nature Energy Technology always puts the
occupational health and safety of employees in the
first place, strictly abides by the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Occupational Diseases, the Regulation on Work-
Related Injury Insurances of the People’s Republic of
China and other laws and regulations, adheres to
the work safety policy of “safety first, prevention as
the focus; risk control and comprehensive
management; safety and harmony, continuous
improvement; compliance with laws and regulations,
safe development”, implements the work safety
responsibility system, establishes the work safety
leading group, and establishes the three-level
occupational health management system of “general
manager — management representative — all
departments”. The Company has passed the ISO
45001 health and safety management system
certification.

The Company has formulated and improved the
systems related to hazard source identification,
employee occupational health management,
emergency accident management, etc., and
conducted hazard source identification and risk
assessment for all operating activities and all
personnel activities, and regularly carried out
occupational hazard inspection to provide employees
with occupational health examination and labor
protection articles before, during and after work to
protect the health of employees. At the same time,
we actively carried out safety publicity and
education, strengthened emergency plan drills, and
improved employees’ awareness of safety risk
prevention.
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6.6.
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Safety performance of employees of Nature Energy Technology in the past three years

MRERBMBEEI=FEIR2EN

Performance Indicators Unit 2019 2020 2021
BWIER B fi 20194 20204 20214
Number of working days lost due to days

work injury

IERRNIIERH X 0 0 0
Number of employees killed by person

work-related injuries
RIBEEMILTHE T AR A 0 0 0
Proportion of employees killed by %

work-related injuries
EITEBEEmETHE A % 0 0 0

Internal Communication

Nature Energy Technology has formulated the
Administrative Measures for Internal Communication
of Employees to standardize the internal
communication management of the Company,
establish smooth communication channels, maintain
harmonious working relationships, enhance
colleagues’ feelings, enhance employees'sense of
responsibility and belonging, and align the thoughts
and actions of all employees.

The human resources department conducts targeted
communication with employees with no less than 5
employees per month. The Company conducts
summary analysis on the collected issues, reports and
gives feedback to relevant departments in a timely
manner when major issues are found, and effectively
prevents and handles them. Each department is
responsible for internal communication within the
department, so as to keep abreast of employees’
thoughts in a timely manner and provide feedback
and guidance proactively.
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ENVIRONMENT: GREEN DEVELOPMENT
Nature Energy Technology is committed to
together to build a cleaner and more environmentally
friendly world”. As an equipment supplier for clean energy
generation, it adheres to green
manufacturing and green development, and actively
advocates green energy to promote the harmonious
development of its own operation and the environment.
The Company
operating results while continuously reducing the impact

“working

and wind power

is committed to creating first-class

on the environment, creating green competitiveness with
a low-carbon and efficient operation model, continuously
improving the energy conservation and emission reduction
actively implementing energy
conservation and emission reduction technology
transformation, and striving to reduce resource

consumption in the production and operation process to

management system,

reduce and eliminate environmental pollution.

7.1. Environmental Management System
Nature Energy Technology strictly abides by the
Environmental Protection Law of the People’'s
Republic of China and other laws and regulations,
formulates the Quality Environment,
Health and Safety Management Manual to

Occupational

coordinate environmental management, and
formulates relevant management systems in energy
resources, waste management, wastewater

management, soil pollution, noise control and other
aspects to continuously improve the environmental
management system. The Company applies energy-
saving and environmental protection technologies in
production to continuously improve product
performance and reduce the impact on the
environment. The Company has
ISO14001 management system
certification, and continues to organize and carry out
the Company’s environmental management work in
accordance with the system requirements.

passed the
environmental
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7.2. Reduction of energy consumption

Nature Energy Technology formulates annual energy
conservation goals and plans every year, tracks major
energy and indicators,
production links and parts of energy consumption,
checks
equipment, and identifies and explores the potential
of resource conservation and
efficiency. By formulating energy-saving and
consumption-reducing measures, the Company
adopts electricity-saving technologies, devices and
energy-saving appliances,
procedures, develops circular economy, and gradually
and energy

resource use verifies the

the operation and maintenance of

resource utilization

optimizes operation
improves energy management level
utilization rate.

The Company’s water consumption
domestic water, which is mainly sourced from tap
water supplied by the municipal pipe network. There
is no issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose.
The Company actively advocates electricity and water
conservation, promotes knowledge of electricity and
conservation, and
awareness
inspections are carried out to strengthen the
management of electricity and water equipment,
timely stop the problem of “dripping and leaking” in
water pipes and taps, and put up signs of “Please
save water”.

is mainly

water improves employees’

of energy conservation. Regular

Bl 4 R &k
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Performance Indicators Unit 2019 2020 2021
HWMIER B fu 20194 20204 20215
Total electricity consumption MWh
HEHEE KE 209 222 264
Electricity consumption intensity kWh/RMBO’
(RMBO’ 000 revenue) 000
HERE(BITRA) TRE /BT 9.38 6.94 8.44
Gasoline consumption of self- Litre
owned vehicles
BEE®MTUHRE 7t 6,897 7,000 17,600
Total water consumption m3
mEKE VAV 1,536 2,596 1,550
Water consumption intensity (per ~ m3/RMB million
revenue in RMBO’ 000)
FEKEE (BITIRA) YRR ETT 0.07 0.08 0.05
Water consumption by source: m3
municipal water
REUK RS D B FEKE - VAV 1,536 2,596 1,550
B 7K
Water consumption by source: m?3
groundwater and surface water
REUKKIREI DB FEKE - AP I 0 0 0
T 7K 2 oK
Water consumption by source: m3
other sources
REUKRIRE 5 B FEKE 375K 0 0 0
H b 2R
Proportion of total amount of %
recycled and reused water in the
total water consumption
KBREBANANEELATEKE % 13.48 11.79 14.23

& Lt Bl
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7.3. Promoting Green Energy

As an equipment supplier for clean energy wind
power generation, Naquan Company is committed to
"working together to build a cleaner and more
environmentally friendly world”, adheres to green
manufacturing and green development, and actively
advocates green energy to promote the harmonious
development of its own operation and the
environment. The Company actively participates in
wind power industry activities, advocates the use of
clean energy, provides high-quality products and
services for the wind power industry, and jointly
promotes the promotion of wind power clean
energy. In 2021, the annual on-grid power
generation of the Company’s wind farms was
60,430,000 kWh.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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73. EESBRER
ERBREERE N EENREHE
B MRDRBAORIABERENE
2 RERHABFEF] - B4k
BERE BERR UWEREZL
BEeR TE?E@%Z‘“EEEE&%E’H‘D
HERe - AREBR2EREITER
- -EEFRBERER  ARAET
¥RESEENERERE  HF
Tﬁ%ﬁﬂ%%iﬁmﬁﬂ’]?ﬁf"‘f
——F RARNESHEEF LB
E£6,0438 TEF °

Performance Indicators Unit 2019 2020 2021
HWER E5 {ir 20195 20205 20214
Wind power generation MWh

RAHhEEE JK BB 55,680 51,610 60,430
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7.4. Responding to Climate Change 7.4. FEHRIREL

As we actively echo and participate in tackling
climate change, Nature Energy Technology actively
responds to the commitments made by President Xi
Jinping at the seventy-fifth United Nations General
Assembly: striving to reach the peak of carbon
dioxide emissions by 2030 and achieve carbon
neutrality by 2060. The Company practices the
concept of green and low-carbon development,
actively promotes greenhouse gas emission
reduction, continues to promote greenhouse gas
reduction, and continuously reduces the “carbon
footprint”.

The emissions generated during the operation of the
Company are mainly indirect greenhouse gas
emissions caused by purchased electricity. In
response to the “carbon neutrality” policy, the
Company will use a large number of clean energy in
the future to promote the development of the
Company’s main business. At the same time, the
Company will take active measures to improve
energy efficiency and reduce energy expenses.

MEERERERELRIEZ LD
BREEENAITEHE BHHRERER
REIREBOTFEFELTHERA R
AE EBERNASE SRR
I FR2030F RIERIEE B HF
ER2060F I B IRk M o R Al 1T
HEERRERES  BRETAE
RERBEETIE HEXSAERE
e TEUR TR BB o

RABEZRRETELENHREIER
SMNBE N FEKHEZ R E R
Be st TP AIBRAERLE - R
RARHRERRBRER RE
RATEEBNER R KR
BEER ReERREX  BEA
AlBEIRFI X o

Performance Indicators Unit 2019 2020 2021
BUER EE i 20194 20204 20214
Total greenhouse gas emissions tCO,e
AERBHNAES W/ R E = 200.89 211.96 254.07
Scope 1 greenhouse gas tCOe
emissions
HEREREBHEME WE— R LIREE 18.68 18.96 41.55
Scope 2 greenhouse gas tCOe
emissions
HE_AERBHENRE WE— R LIREE 182.21 193.00 212.52
GHG emission intensity (RMB’ kg of carbon
000 revenue) dioxide equivalent/
RMBO’ 000
BERBHENEE(BTHRA) Fr &
BB 9.02 6.63 8.20
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7.5.

7.6.

Green Supply Chain
Nature Energy Technology incorporates the
environmental protection principles into the supplier
management mechanism to promote green
green packaging and green
conveys the values of green
protection sustainable
development to stakeholders to drive our partners to
jointly fulfill social protection
responsibilities, and gives priority to the
procurement of low-carbon and environmentally
friendly raw materials and products, environmentally
certified products, and procurement of recyclable
paper for office supplies. All new suppliers that may
cause environmental impacts are required to provide
reports and pollutant
discharge permits issued by the local environmental
protection authorities, and those who fail to provide
environmental protection compliance documents will
not be approved in the qualification review.

procurement,
transportation,
environmental and

environmental

environmental assessment

Waste management

Nature Energy Technology divides solid waste into
three categories, namely recyclable general waste,
non-recyclable general waste and hazardous waste.
It has set up three categories of waste collection
bins/places,
classification treatment. It monitors waste discharge
through the Environmental Safety Monitoring and
Measurement Control Procedures. At the same time,
the Company provides employees with training on
identification, hazard and treatment to
enhance their of environmental
protection.

and posted classification signs for

waste
awareness

The Company has formulated and implemented the
Product Packaging Regulations,
requiring suppliers to recycle recyclable packaging
materials such as turnover boxes and special pallets
to reduce the generation of solid waste. The
Company does not involve wastewater discharge in
the production

Procurement

process, and the domestic
wastewater generated in the office operation process
is connected to the municipal pipe network for

standardized discharge.

Bl 4 R &k
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Performance Indicators Unit 2019 2020 2021
BWIEE B8 i 20194 20204 20214
Total amount of non-hazardous Tonnes

waste produced
MELEREEEDES TiE 250 270 419
Total amount of hazardous waste Tonnes

produced
MEXEEEEDES TiE 0 0 0
Total consumption of packaging Tonnes

material for finished products
EmEKmEEMRNEREE TiE 158.7 212.9 330.2
Recycled packaging materials used Tonnes

for finished products
HEmAAABREMHNEKE A 0 81.7 126.7

Achievements in the Development of Circular Economy in 2021

021 FFEREBEREBHAR

No. Content Amount (RMB)
FF5i% A B 28 (k)
1 Production foam recycling

A E R OAR R K E R A 28,088
2 Recycling of transparent bags

FEAKRE 14,048
3 Single-sided paper recycling

5 [ BE 4% @ 1R 490

Total

CEl 42,626
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7.7. Advocating Green Office
Under the background of low-carbon economy, all
major industries around the world seek for energy-
saving, environmental-friendly and efficient
management models. Nature Energy Technology
actively goes with the leading trend, advocates
“green office”, improves internal management
regulations, and strengthens water and electricity
management in the office environment. Energy-
saving LED lights are used for all lighting, and
“lights are on when there are people and off when
people left”. Priority is given to recycled products or
fast-growing forest products when purchasing
printing paper to achieve green and environmentally
friendly office. Office waste is sorted to reduce soil
and groundwater pollution.

RESPONSIBILITY: BEAR IT WITH COURAGE 8.
Nature Energy Technology regards the fulfillment of social
responsibility as the core strategic goal of the Company,
continues to promote the improvement of social
responsibility management, and consciously integrates
social responsibility into corporate strategy and corporate
culture, promotes the practice of responsibility, carries out
responsibility management, and continuously improves
social responsibility performance, achieving the organic
unity of fulfilling social responsibility and promoting the
sustainable development of the Company.

8.1. Social Responsibility Concept

As a manufacturer of new energy equipment, Nature
Energy is committed to contributing to a cleaner and
more environmentally friendly world by providing
high-quality equipment. Adhering to the concept of
“jointly creating a wind power future with high-
quality development”, the Company adheres to low-
carbon, energy conservation and emission reduction,
practices social responsibility while creating economic
value, actively protects the rights and interests of
employees, provides an equal, inclusive, healthy and
safe working environment, and actively participates
in community services and social welfare to create
shared value for the society.

Bl 4 R &k
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Business Center

8 15 0

D 90

8.2. Social Responsibility Management Structure

Naquan actively integrates social responsibility into all
aspects of corporate operation and management.
Through the establishment of an ESG management
structure with the decision-making of the Board, the
participation
coordination and cooperation of various functional
departments, it continues to transform the
Company’s responsibility concept and commitment
to stakeholders into specific actions to ensure the
implementation and promotion of social
responsibility work.

of the management and the

8.2,

Social Responsibility Management Model
HEeELTEEER
ESG Decision-making Level

ESGARE
THE BOARD
BFg

ESG Implementation Level

ESGE i [E

General Manager Office

T =
BRI E

Procurement Technology Production
Center Center Centre
REEH D £ g o EER D

LR RN

HESEEERE

MEEBEHEEERALELS
EEMNSEIFD AEREESES
AK - -EBEELH - ZBEBFH
FREMESGERERE  FERBA
A0 B 12 2 ¥ R 25 48 B8 75 /9 &
wELAERTY REMLEEMT
THERZEMEE -

General
Finance Center Manager Office QEHS Centre
4A L QEHSH &
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8.3. Communication with Stakeholders

Nature Energy Technology regards the identification
and communication of stakeholders as the focus of
corporate social responsibility management, attaches
great importance to the communication with
stakeholders, establishes diversified communication
channels based on the characteristics of different
stakeholders, and ensures the channels are smooth
and effective. The Company timely discloses relevant
information such as policy updates, daily operation,
development, reform and special changes, as well as
the progress of the Company’s sustainable
development work to relevant parties, and actively
listens to the suggestions and opinions of relevant
parties to understand the expectations and
requirements of relevant parties on the Company,
actively adopts constructive opinions and
suggestions, and works with stakeholders to jointly
improve the Company’s operation and management.

The following are the major stakeholders identified
and the methods of communication:

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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8.3. Rl K EE

A SR B IR B A A ) 51 AR R U7 A8 Y
BRERLEMSEEERIIEN
B SEERENDZHELNE
BB THYE T EMAERET RN
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FAREBESHERELS  UERARA
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BNEHEINREZEER  BR
EHRBENHARMPERENR
BEABERENBEREEZE - [/
NMEHBEITET KATELEN
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ATRBRHOE BN/ T M
R

Key Stakeholders
EENSHERARS

Issues of concern

fofl i 5k R

Communication and response

i 38 IR O e

Shareholders

Government and
regulatory
authorities

Compliance operation
Risk management
Economic Performance
Anti-corruption
BRKE

[ fx & 12

OB

RES

Compliance operation

Anti-corruption

Energy management

Water resources management

Emission management

Climate Change Mitigation and
Adaptation

Bl 4 R &k
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Shareholders’ meetings

Investor meetings
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Key Stakeholders Issues of concern Communication and response
EENSHEHRAS B E i 3 5 5] 8
BT K &5 & AP P BREE BT

RES EEKE

BERE 2

KERE R

B E 12

1 S {1 R A B3 FE

Customers Product quality management On-site research
Technology R&D and innovation Customer interview
Customer service Customer exchange meetings

Customer information security and
privacy protection

BF EmEEEE 335 38
¥ i AT 2 £ 8l BEPa#
PR EPRRE

EPERL2RBNRE

SUPPLIERS Supply chain management Supplier review and assessment
Exchange and visits
e e s g IR HrEmEZ A

RmE

Employees Employee rights and benefits Employee Activities
Employee Health and Safety Staff training
Staff Development and Training
BT BTz NER BITA®
BIfgm@mLs 8T
8 TH#R NME
Public and Contribution and charity to Community service activities
community community
Advocating Green Concept
NR P AL HEEMEARES HERBEE
REEIESR
Industry Industry Collaboration and Industry association activities
organizations Innovation
TTEER 72 2 195 [R) 81 3 TEHEED
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8.4. Analysis of Material Issues 84. EXZERN
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Importance of the effects on economy, environment and society

Issues of high importance

EEEESRE

@ Employee Rights (@ Environmental Protection(3) Production Safety (@ Anti-corruption
@ Occupational Health

OE T#% Q@EHER#E RLr4EE @R EEkE
OBERE

Issues of moderate importance

PEEERE

(& Quality Management  (7) Information Security Innovation and R&D (9) Training and
Development

Intellectual Property (D Green Office @ Climate Change (3 Fair Competition
Rights

Pollution Prevention and (5 Information Disclosure Customer Service (7 Community Building
Control

Energy Conservation Standard Governance  Q0OSupply Chain
Maintenance
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8.5. Supporting Community Development 85 XHHEER

Nature Energy Technology maintains good AN SR BE R B EAR 15 B4 [ ] 25 48
communication with community stakeholders, FHRIER BESRR/TED
regards itself as a part of the community, actively —F BERSEMEEZRNME
participates in community construction and social Bl¥f RO BEHLHETANE
innovation, gives full play to the role of social A raftREE 2aBEBE7
enterprise co-construction platform, and actively X EREFEHE MHEEUR
establishes good relationship with surrounding TR RRAEELERE T
streets and communities through community visits, EREMIINLERRZ - T - —F -
public welfare donations, etc., creating a RRAIEPABEREEAZHE
harmonious and stable external environment for the T AL T AW EEE S E TIER
Company’s production and operation. In 2021, the EWF%x%i c ZE_—F+_H
Company sponsored the traditional Dragon Boat =+H shEHER2EERER
event of Yuecheng (A3)of RMB50,000 and donated & T &R A B /K E 5 BE % uh A K
RMB50,000 to Yuecheng Town of Jiangyin City as a IRV 0P EE/E@J EREE PR
party care fund. On 30 December 2021, 22 TNEERES ) H%/—Jﬁ/ﬁ E'@E’Z/? :
volunteers of Hongyuan New Energy carried out the A ERRE /EEBH ERBT
cleaning of river surface garbage in the water B TERMERNEZTT - litjpﬂl
drainage station of Yunyuan, Binhe Park(J& )] 2 [ 7K #— g ?@ THREFSHOXHAE
Z=%6). After 7 hours of hard work, volunteers finally BOAEEE BRREHR S8 if
cleaned up the river, making the surrounding o %ﬂ,%k a‘aﬂz RMBREREFERB
environment more tidy and orderly, which was cH—HmhhE-
widely praised by the public. This has also further
enhanced the civilised awareness, hygiene
awareness, environmental awareness, collective
awareness and home awareness of the community,
and contributed to the community construction.
The Company’s performance in community building NAE=FHEXBERMOT*
in the past three years is as follows:

Performance Indicators Unit 2019 2020 2021

BWER B fi 20194 20204 20215

Community public welfare RMB

investment

HEAREALE JC 0 50,000 100,000

Including charity donation RMB

Hep - BEBBHRA 7T 0 50,000 100,000

Number of employees involved in person

volunteer activities

MEEMEZHRANABH A 23 30 22

Hours of volunteer activities hours

GRRE R B /N N 46 80 154
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0.

FUTURE OUTLOOK 0.
Naquan Energy Technology will focus on the two core
industries of wind power pitch control system and smart
energy, maintain the domestic market share and market
leading position of pitch control system, optimize resource
allocation, and actively explore the development of smart
energy business. The Group will commence the following
major works in the future:

1. Maintain and strengthen the market position of pitch
control system market, increase market share,
continue to maintain technology, quality and service,
deepen the cooperation with existing customers,
expand customer base and achieve customer
diversification, so as to ensure the Group’s leading
position in the high-voltage pitch control system
market in the PRC.

2. Further strengthen R&D capabilities, expand technical
and R&D teams, add new software and other R&D
equipment, and enhance R&D capabilities; at the
same time, continue to develop and apply pitch
products with high power such as 8MW and 12MW
models to ensure technological leadership.

3. Actively develop the smart energy business, actively
establish the technical, management and marketing
team of Nature Smart Energy (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.,
complete the construction and put into operation of
the 4AMW wind power energy storage demonstration
project at Duolun Wind Farm, sign energy storage
business order contracts as soon as possible, and
strive to develop new profit growth points in the
smart energy industry.

Bl 4 R &k
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10. BEXPM(IRIE -HEREGRS
EEIVEEIE S

10. INDEX TABLE OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING
GUIDE OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE

Subject Areas,
Aspects,
General
Disclosures and
KPIs
EBE-—RikE
REAREWEE B

Description Disclosure Section

o4

Subject Areas A. Environmental

TEHEBARE

Aspect A1. Emissions

EEALERY

General Information on: 7 Environment: Green

Disclosure A1 (@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer relating to air and
greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and

land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous

Development

waste
— R FEAT EAERIOAERBEN mRKEREHES BEREST 7TRRE ZEEE
BEEVHEEZTH
(@) &K : &
by BFHETABEAZENHBERZLRIBNER
A1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data 7 Environment: Green
Development
A1.1 e R RE 2E N AR B BE R TRE HEBER
A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where 7.4 Responding to
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per  Climate Change
facility).
A1.2 BRERBASFREUBAE) R(WMER ZE(WASEE 74 EYREE(L
B BEXREHE)
A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where 7.6 Waste
appropriate Management
A1.3 PMEEAEREMRE UMGE) R (ER) 7.6 BEEYER
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Subject Areas,
Aspects,
General
Disclosures and

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

R HERERRE

KPIs Description Disclosure Section

BE-.—RikE

REARGENIEERE @k & 5E E 8

Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where 7.6 Waste
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per = Management
facility)

A1.4 PMEABEREEVRAEUHAE)R(MER) BE (WS 76 BEEYER
ESBEM FHEKRMHE)

A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results 7.6 Waste
achieved Management

A15 WL EBERENE LSRR 76 EEYER

A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are 7.6 Waste
handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved Management

A1.6 HARREEERBETEEVN L REELEENHEKERT 76 BEYER
TR

Aspect A2. Use of Resources

EEA2.& R A

General Effective use of resources (including energy, water and other 7.2 Reduction of

Disclosure A2 raw materials) energy consumption

— R EA2 BRERER(BIEER K REAMRME) 6 BE 7.2 FRIKBEIRE 7%

A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. 7.2 Reduction of
electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in" 000s) energy consumption

A2.1 REMNESHNEER SHEEER(WE - ReH) BREE (A 72 BRERRERE
T8 T R )

A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of 7.2 Reduction of
production volume, per facility). energy consumption

A2.2 BREKERTEWMNESESEN FERBEAHE) 7.2 [RKBEIRIE#E

A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results 7.2 Reduction of
achieved. energy consumption

A2.3 fi i B R A A ER FT B M PTIS ACR 7.2 [RIKBEIRIE#E

A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water 7.2 Reduction of
that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results  energy consumption
achieved.

A2.4 W SKBUE RAOR LAl B ERMBE - AREFRKR TS 7.2 BRERRBRE
SATECIIES

A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in 7.6 Waste
tonnes) and, if applicable Management

A2.5 HRmAAABEMENRE (LA R (W@EA) 7.6 BEEYER

PEARERREERARQA
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE wHekER/mE

D o8

Subject Areas,
Aspects,
General
Disclosures and
KPIs

Bm- - —BHeE
REARENIEER

Description

1 3

Disclosure Section

WEEME

Aspect A3. The Environment and Natural Resources

EEARERRXAER

General
Disclosure A3
— MR FEA3
A3.1

A3.1

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the
environment and natural resources.
BEBETAHBRERRREREKNEAZENRE
Description of the significant impacts of activities on the
environment and natural resources

Impacts and actions taken to manage them

MM EBEDHRERARAERNERAZENDRINER
EETENTH

7 Environment: Green
Development

7IRE BEEE

7 Environment: Green
Development

7RE REBERR

Aspect A4: Climate Change

[EEAAL.F &2t
General
Disclosure A4

— B EAL

A4

A4

Policies on identification of and response to significant
climate-related issues which have impacted, and those which
may impact, the issuer
BRIREHEOKRAIESHETAEELENERNRIKNA
[ EEHBUR

Description of the significant climate-related issues which
have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and
the actions taken to manage them.

HE R A eHBETAEEXENEARKEREER
REHITH -

7.4 Responding to
Climate Change

7.4 EHERIRZEL

7.4 Responding to
Climate Change

7.4 ¥ REE(
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
R HEeEERRE

Subject Areas,

Aspects,

General

Disclosures and

KPIs Description Disclosure Section
BE - —RKE

REARGENIEERE @k & 5E E 8

Subject Area B. Social Employment and Labour Practices

FTEHEBHERBREIENR

Aspect B1. Employment

EmEB1.18 &
General Information on: 6.2 Protection of
Disclosure B1 (a) the policies; and Rights and Interests
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer relating to
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination and other benefits and welfare
— R FEB1 ERAFTRmE BEREA TERS REA FTEHE . 62 BEmRE
Z it~ RIRAR A R B A 15538 AR A A
(@) BE: &
by BTFTHBEITABEAZENHEBEZRZNANBNER
B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, 6.1 Employment
full- or part-time), age group and geographical region
B1.1 RIER - BERE (WE2BIGRE) FREN BRI 61 AIER
BEBH
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and 6.1 Employment
geographical region
B1.2 RER - FiedR RwREIDNEE R KL X 6.1 ALIBER

cEMRRENERRERAD —2-—558 99 €



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE wHekER/mE

Subject Areas,

Aspects,

General

Disclosures and

KPls Description
BE - —RkE
REARGENIEER @k

Disclosure Section

WEEME

Aspect B2. Health and Safety
EEB2.fFEZRR

General Information on:
Disclosure B2 (a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer relating to providing a
safe working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards

— MR B FEB2 FHERMZ2TERBERREEEREBELESN
(@) BX: &k
by BFHBITABEAZENEBEZLANBER

B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each
of the past three years including the reporting year

B2.1 BE=F (BEREFE)FFAITHMABR L X

B2.2 Lost days due to work injury

B2.2 HIBRAXIERH

B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures
adopted, how they are implemented and monitored

B2.3 HOFRANBREEREL2ER UWRBEBRATRERT
%

6.2 Protection of

Rights and Interests

6.2 EmRE

6.5 Occupational
Safety

6.5 BELZE
6.5 Occupational
Safety

65 BELE
6.5 Occupational
Safety

6.5 BELZE
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Subject Areas,
Aspects,
General
Disclosures and
KPIs

B —RHE
REARENIEER

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Description

13

R HERERRE

Disclosure Section

WEEME

Aspect B3. Development and Training

[EmEB3.3% R & &l

General Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for 6.3 Training and

Disclosure B3 discharging duties at work. Description of training activities Development

— MR # EEB3 FRARTEEBTIERENMBNKENEBR - mltFIl 63 FIlERE
& B

B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and 6.3 Training and
employee category (e.g. senior management, middle  Development
management)

B3.1 EHRLkEEEMN(WSREEE TREEEF)EOINT 63 FIHR
JlEER DL

B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by 6.3 Training and
gender and employee category Development

B3.2 BRERINEEEFZ D BREETAXIENFHRE 6.3 Hill#ERE

Aspect B4. Labour Standards

[EEBA.55 T # 8|

General Information on: 6.2 Protection of

Disclosure B4

— B EB4

B4.1

B4.1
B4.2

B4.2

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer relating to preventing
child and forced labour

BRI IEET G5 T -

(@) K &

by BTHBETABEAZENEBEZRZ AN ER

Description of measures to review employment practices to

avoid child and forced labour

Mgl BB EA B EARRE T R&H 5T

Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when

discovered

M ERBRERBREERA BB ERRO LR

Rights and Interests

6.2 EEmIRE

6.2 Protection of
Rights and Interests
6.2 = RE

6.2 Protection of
Rights and Interests
6.2 B RE

PEARERREERARQA
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Subject Areas,
Aspects,
General
Disclosures and

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE wHekER/mE

KPIs Description Disclosure Section

EBE- . — RS

REARGENIEER #@k WEEE

Subject Area B. Social Operating Practices

TEHIEBHEEEED

Aspect B5. Supply Chain Management

[E T B5. it FE 88 & 3E

General Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the 5.4 Supplier

Disclosure B5 supply chain Management

— R B FEBS ERHEENRE Mg A RBUR 5.4 HERER

B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. 5.4 Supplier

Management

B5.1 mriwESE oM EmEAE 5.4 e E

B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, 5.4 Supplier
number of suppliers where the practices are being Management
implemented, how they are implemented and monitored.

B5.2 ML ERERHERNED MERTAEEANNHERSE sS4 HEFER
B UREBAEMNNRITRERGE

B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and 5.4 Supplier
social risks along the supply chain, and how they are  Management
implemented and monitored

B5.3 ML BEERHEREGFERONIRO L SARNEDN - A 54 HEFHER
NAEBRITRER A

B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally 5.4 Supplier
preferable products and services when selecting suppliers,  Management
and how they are implemented and monitored

B5.4 M EREHEEREEZARRERMRBOED - UKk 54 HEFER

MERITRERT A

’ 102 CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021



Subject Areas,
Aspects,
General
Disclosures and

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIE

HtEMERRE

KPIs Description Disclosure Section
BE-.—RikE
REARGENIEERE @k & 5E E 8
Aspect B6. Product Responsibility
[EBEBe.ERE T
General Information on: 5.1 Quality
Disclosure B6 (@) the policies; and Management
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer relating to health and
safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating
to products and services provided and methods of
redress
— R FEB6 FEMREERMRENEEREREZ S B RELAMLEF 51 EHE2EE8R
B KRR ER
(@) BR: &k
by BEFHBETABEAZENHBEEZRZLRINER
B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to 5.1 Quality
recalls for safety and health reasons Management
B6.1 EENCEEXEm@HTRLT>EEREAMARD KA 51 BEEE
PN
B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received 5.3 Quality Service
and how they are dealt with
B6.2 EEBREMMREHIRFEE AREH TG X 5.3 BE RS
B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting 4.5 Intellectual
intellectual property rights Property
B6.3 Rt EEERRENREREEANED 4.5 X8 EE
B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures 5.1 Quality
Management
B6.4 Bl EEmE @i NEmEWERF 5 EEER
B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, 4.4 Information
how they are implemented and monitored Security
B6.5 MHBEBBRERLEBEE  UREBRATRERSE 44 EE8%E

PEARERREERARQA
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

B HBREARE

Subject Areas,
Aspects,
General
Disclosures and
KPIs

B —RHE
REARENIEER

Description

1 3

Disclosure Section

WEEME

Aspect B7. Anti-corruption

EEB7.R&E/5

General
Disclosure B7

— &I FEB7

B7.1

B7.1
B7.2

B7.2
B7.3

B7.3

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer relating to bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering

BEHIEHRE $% HEFEREREN

(@) BE: &

(b) BFTHBETABEAZENHEBERZLANBNER

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices

brought against the issuer or its employees during the

reporting period and the outcomes of the cases

REBRPANHETASHEERHTEEENETHALR

BB RFRER

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing

procedures, how they are implemented and monitored

&S M EBREF  URBEBRITRERFE

Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors

and employees

HimEBEREIRHEOREIFHEII

4.2 Anti-corruption

42 RIB1EE

4.2 Anti-corruption

4.2 RIB1EE
4.2 Anti-corruption

42 RIGIEE
4.2 Anti-corruption

42 RIBEE
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Subject Areas,
Aspects,
General
Disclosures and

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE - HERERERE

KPIs Description Disclosure Section
B —RikE

REASEHIEERE WEEE

Aspect B8. Community Investment

[EmBS. 1t & 1% &

General Policies on community engagement to understand the needs 8.5 Supporting

Disclosure B8

— & B8

B8.1

B8.1

B8.2

B8.2

of the communities where the issuer operates and to ensure
its activities take into consideration the communities’
interests
BENAHR2ERTREEMEHEFTENERAEBE
BHEERELRNERE

Focus areas of contribution (such as education,
environmental concerns, labor needs, health, culture and
sports)
ErEREB(HE -RREFT LIEHX - F - b
g5)

Resources contributed to the focus areas (such as money or
time) to the focus area

EEIHBEMBABER (NS ENERE)

Community
Development

85 Y EHMHEER

8.5 Supporting
Community
Development

85 Y EHMHEER

8.5 Supporting
Community
Development

8.5 X Ffit @ R

TEAREEREERAERAA
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE wHekER/mE

11. GRI STANDARDS INDEX 11. GRIZERAIZE 5|
GRI Standards Disclosure Section
GRIZEHI ' =4:i]

GRI 102 : General Disclosures

GRI 102 : —f&#i &
1. Organizational ~ 102-1 Name of the organization 3.1 Corporate Overview
Profile

1. &R 102-1 &= 3.1 BEHR
102—-2 Activities, brands, products and services 3.1 Corporate Overview
102-2 A% - mh# - Em MRS 31 BERER
102-3 Location of headquarters 3.1 Corporate Overview
102-3 BB 3.1 ER
102—4 Location of operations 3.1 Corporate Overview
102-4 KEMLE 3.1 EBR
102-5 Ownership and legal form 3.1 Corporate Overview
102-5 R AR EDER N 3.1 REHR
102-6 Markets served 3.1 Corporate Overview
102-6 R H T 15 3.1 EHR
102-7 Scale of the organization 3.1 Corporate Overview
102-7 AR 3.1 EBR
102-8 Information on employees and other workers 6.1 Employment
102-8 RN ETMEMIIEENEERE 6.1 ALIER
102-9 Supply chain 5.4 Supplier Management
102-9 fft fE 42 5.4 fHER E R
102-10 Significant changes to the organization and its 3.1 Corporate Overview
supply chain
102-10 B R HHtEEN B RE (L 31 BERER
102-11 Precautionary Principle or approach 4.1 Regulatory Governance
102-11 FRE R B 77 $f 4.1 REnE
102—-12 External initiatives No participation in

initiatives

102-12 SMNEB1E R E2HEERER
102-13 Membership of associations 3.1 Corporate Overview
102-13 HEMKBER 31 BEBER
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE - HERERERE

GRI Standards Disclosure Section

GRIZE A % = 4]

2. Strategy 102-14 Statement from senior decision-maker 2. Message from the Board

2. BB 102-14 S FOREH ) E A 2. EEEBH

3. Ethics and 102-16 Values, principles, standards and norms of 3.3 Corporate Culture
integrity behavior

3. BRERMHEE

4. Governance
4 [o=2 VAN

. B/A
5. Stakeholder
engagement

5. Flzs 88

6. Reporting
practice
6. MEEE

102-16 BER - R - ZEMIT AR

102-18 Governance Structure
102-18 B AZR1E

102-40 List of stakeholder groups

102-40 Fzx /078 5 fEBE 5 &

102-41 Collective bargaining agreements

102-41 SR FI W=
102-42 ldentification and selection of stakeholders

102-42 Fz1 48 B8 77 /O &8 Bl A0 32 38
102-43 Approach to stakeholder engagement

102-43 Mz 48R 75 2 8 5 &t
102—-44 Key topics and concerns raised

102-44 RV T BH BB Y E B

102-45 Entities included in the consolidated financial
statements

102-45 AU BHRRPARENER

102-46 Defining report content and topic Boundaries

102-46 ATEHRERNBMZEEZR

hEMRERRNERRERAD =2

33 EXL

4.1 Regulatory Governance
4.1 REaHE

8.3 Communication with
Stakeholders

83 MmMEHAT BB
6.2. Protection of rights and
interests

6.2 #mIRE

8.3 Communication with
Stakeholders

8.3 M= iERA T BB
8.3 Communication with
Stakeholders

8.3 M= BT BB
8.4 Analysis of Material
Issues

8.4 BERFEAEDMN
3.1 Corporate Overview

3.1 ER
8.4 Analysis of Material
Issues

84 BERNZEENN
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

B HEREABRE

GRI Standards Disclosure Section
GRIZ A 5 iy}

102-47 List of material topics 8.4 Analysis of Material
Issues

102-47 ERFE BT K 8.4 BRFEBEDMN

102-48 Restatements of information No restatement of
information

102-48 5 B & it EmEREIM

102-49 Changes in reporting No change

102-49 HE# 1L mE

102-50 Reporting period 1.2 Scope of the Report

102-50 7 2 £ 1.2 EEHE

102-51 Date of most recent report 1.2 Scope of the Report

102-51 & A H 1.2 EHE

102-52 Reporting cycle 1.2 Scope of the Report

102-52 ¥ & 1A 5 1.2 EEHE

102-53 Contact point for questions regarding the 1.6 Publication of the

report Report

102-53 EEAAREFMENBHEARF R 1.6 FMEEM

102-54 Claims of reporting in accordance with the GRI 1.3 Basis of preparation

Standards

102-54 7 & GRI%E A 1T & ) 2 5 1.3 B KT

102-55GRI Content Index

102-55
102-56
102-56

GRIRA &R 5|
External assurance

M a1

GRI 103 : Management Approach

GRI 103 : EEB FHi%

103-1 Explanation of the material topic and its

HEARZEALHERNHA
Management approach and its components

BB ERHEBEKE D
Evaluation of management approach

Management

Approach Boundary

ERE 1031
103-2
103-2
103-3
103-3
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BT AR

10. GRI Standards Index
10. GRI2ER| % 5]

3.9 Analysis of Material
Issues

3.9 BRZEEDMN

For details, please refer to
the sections
HREEMH
For details, please refer to
the sections
HREEE



GRI Standards
GRIZ B

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Disclosure

HE

RE - HERERERE

Section

=&

Material Issues
EXEE
GRI201: Economic
Performance
GRI201 : £ 4
3

GRI205: Anti-
corruption
GRI205 : % /& 8§

GRI206: Unfair
competitive
Behavior
GRI206 :
TEBRFTR
GRI302: Energy

GRI302 : B8R
GRI303: Water

GRI303 : KER

GRI306: Effluents
and Waste
GRI306 :

KA EEE Y

GRI307:
Environmental
Compliance
GRI307 :
RIEER

201-1 Direct economic value generated and
distributed

2001-1 BEEEANMSENKEEE

205-2 Communication and training on anti-corruption
policies and procedures

2052 2 @ BRBUR A0 A2 Fr 19 (B 3

205-3 Confirmed incidents of corruption and actions
taken

2053 KERNBREHNERMHTH

206-1 Legal actions for unfair competitive behavior,
anti-trust, and antitrust practices

206-1 STHAEHFITR  REGMREGHEEHNE
(eI

302—-1 Energy consumption within the organization

302-1 BRI RERERE
303-1 Water withdrawal by source

303-1 7R 98 & 75 #) HUK
305-2 Energy indirect (Scope 2) GHG emissions

305-2 BRI (#H52) )R = R BE W
103 Management Approach

103 B 7%
306-2 Total waste by type and disposal method

3062 BRI MBRE DA ENEEYRAS

307-1 Environmental compliance

307-1 IRIBAMR

TEAREEREERAERAR —T—

3.1 Corporate Overview
3.1 ER
4.2 Anti-corruption

42 RIB1EE
4.2 Anti-corruption

42 RIBEE

4.3 Fair competition

3 AFHF

7.2 Reduction of energy
consumption

7.2 BREBE IR B FE

7.2 Reduction of energy
consumption

7.2 FRIKEEIRE 7%

7.4 Responding to Climate
Change

7.4 EERIRE

7.2 Reduction of energy
consumption

7.2 BRIKgERIEFE

7.2 Reduction of energy
consumption

7.2 BIKBEIRIER

7.1 Environmental
Management System

71 IREEEER

—FFH



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

B HEREABRE

GRI Standards
GRIZ B

Disclosure

HE

Section
=6

GRI308: Supplier
Environmental

Assessment
GRI308 :
HERRE TG
GRI401:
Employment
GRI401 : B 1%
GRI403:

Occupational
Health and Safety
GRI403 :
BERRERZD

GRI404: Training
and Education
GRI1404 :

Zl A

GRI405: Diversity
and Equal
Opportunity
GRI405 :

Z It L B¥F
e

GRI406: Anti-
discrimination
GRI406 : R IR
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308-1 New suppliers that were screened using
environmental criteria

308-1 (£ MRBIZEGHE W HER

401-2 Benefits provided to full-time employees (not to
temporary or part-time employees)

4012 RHGEE2BET (TERGERARBET)NE
A

401-3 Parental leave

401-3 5 2R
403-1 Workers representation in the Joint Labour and
Health Safety Committee

403-1 BEMERFELRE2ZE RN ITHEEREK

403-4 Health and safety topics covered in formal
agreements with trade unions

403-4 TEEAWETNREEL 2HB
404-1 Average hours of training per year per
employee

404-1 BR B T HFEREXEBINFIH /DR E

404-3 Percentage of employees receiving regular
performance and career development reviews

4043 EREXEMMBEEREZNETIAD L
405-1 Diversity of governance bodies and employees

R THZ it

1

405-1 EIa#E &

\

406-1 Incidents of discrimination and corrective
actions taken

406-1 AR F A R R EH A E1T 8

7.5 Green Supply Chain

7.5 & (L fE G

6.2 Protection of Rights and
Interests
6.2 HRE

6.2 Protection of Rights and
Interests

6.2 B RE

6.5 Occupational Safety

65 BELE

6.2 Protection of Rights and
Interests

6.2 = RIE

6.3 Training and
Development

6.3 IHIlER

6.3 Training and
Development

6.3 HilER

6.1 Employment Overview

6.1 EEHN

6.2 Protection of Rights and
Interests
6.2 B RE



GRI Standards
GRIZ B

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Disclosure

HE

RE - HERERERE

Section
=6

GRI414: Supplier
Social
Assessment
GRI414 :
HEmL TG

GRI416:
Customer Health
and Safety
GRI416 :
BERPREEREEZ R

GRI418:
Customer Privacy
GRI418 :

BEP B

414-1 New suppliers that were screened using social
Criteria

N4 R EREGENNHES

414-2 Negative social impacts in the supply chain and
actions taken

4142 HEBEH SN BEZEANRERNTE
416-2 Incidents of non-compliance concerning the
health and safety impacts of products and services
4162 REMNRBNREEZ2FENEREM
417-2 Incidents of non-compliance concerning product
and service information and labelling

4172 B REMMREEEEEZEHRNEREH

417-3 Incidents of non-compliance concerning
marketing

473 FRMIGEHENEREMN

418-1 Substantiated complaints concerning breaches of
customer privacy and losses of customer data

4181 BERILEFEBALMEREFPEHEHNKEE
B &

419-1 Non-compliance with laws and regulations in
the social and economic area

419-1 BERMHGHEBFELNERFER

5.4 Supplier Management

5.4 fHEmE R
5.4 Supplier Management

5.4 HEREERE
Nil

i

AR

Nil

i3

Nil

/AR

4.4 Information Security
44 ERLE
Nil

12

/AR

hENSEENEERERAT —B——FF8% 111 ‘



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFETHE

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board” or
“Director(s)”) is pleased to present their report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended

31 December 2021 (the “Year").

CORPORATE REORGANISATION AND LISTING

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability on 28 November 2019.
In preparation for the Listing, the Group underwent
reorganisation, details of which are set out in the section
headed
Company'’s
“Prospectus”).

“History, Development and Reorganisation” of the

prospectus dated 29 September 2020 (the

The Company was listed on the Stock Exchange on 20 October
2020 (the “Listing Date”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Group are the research and development,
integration, manufacturing and sales of pitch control systems
and related components, sales of wind power, wind farm
operation and maintenance business and provision of energy
storage management solutions in the People’s Republic of
China. Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries,
including their respective activities, are set out in note 12 to
the consolidated financial statements.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company’s principal place of business in China is at No. 95
Yueshan Road, Yuecheng Town, Jiangyin City, Jiangsu Province,
China and the principal place of business in Hong Kong is
Room 2104, 21st Floor, Global Trade Square, 21 Wong Chuk
Hang Road, Wong Chuk Hang, Hong Kong.

ARRESE([ESSINEF]) MARARER
E2HREERARARAEMBAT ([RNEE])
HE-_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—HLFELSE
ZERE MWK -

EEREHRET
ARAR-ZE-NF+-—A-+N\AEHRE
BEAMA I ARBRERAA - REMHL
TARERTEA FBEHRARABSR
—E-TFAASTAAMBRER(AR
BRDEL HREBME]—H-

KAFIR-—E-—FEF+A-+H(LWAHE))
N e

FEXRHB

ARBB/—FZREZEBR AR - AKRENEEE
BREPEARANMBARALER B #
ENHE S REH R MREANT R HEE
HE BEESELRGEXT RIEHHFEEE
AR - AR ETEWNBARFR(BRER
EEMEBENGEAMBRERMEI2-

ETEESEME

ARG BENETELEMBAPBRIHS
STt AEEE AILEROSSE MANEBHEIBE
XMHBAEBENMNEMNNELIRREES
211#2104F
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BUSINESS REVIEW
A review of the Group’s business during the year ended
31 December 2021, includes a description of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group, an analysis of
the Group’s performance using financial

which

key performance
indicators, particulars of important events affecting the Group
during the year and up to the date of this report, and an
indication of likely future development in the Group’s business
are set out in the Chairman’s Statement on page 6 and
Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 7 to 21 of this
annual report.

In addition, discussions on the Group’s compliance with
relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact
on the Group are included in the Corporate Governance Report
of this annual report, and the discussions on the Group's
environmental policies,
customers and suppliers are included in the Environmental,
Social and Governance Report of this annual report.

relationships with its employees,

All these discussions form part of this Report of the Directors.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS
The operations of the Group are primarily carried out by the
Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC. The Group’s establishment
and operations accordingly shall comply with relevant laws and
regulations in the above jurisdiction.

During the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date
of this report, the Group’s operations have complied with all
the relevant laws and regulations in the above jurisdictions in
all material respects.

TAX RELIEF
The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available
to the Shareholders by reason of their holdings in the Shares.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income on pages 136 to 137 of this
annual report.
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DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2021.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movement in the share capital of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note
24(c) to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2021, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Law
of the Cayman Islands (the “Companies Law”), amounted to
approximately RMB84,807,000.

Under the Companies Law, the share premium account of the
Company is distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on which the
dividend, if any, is proposed to be distributed. The Company
will be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.
reserves of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2021 are set out in note 24(a) to the consolidated financial

Details of the movements in

statements.

GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
each of the last five years ended 31 December 2021 is set out
on page 244 of this annual report.

DONATIONS

The total donations made by the Group during the year ended
31 December 2021 amounted to approximately RMB100,000.

PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in properties, plant and equipment
during the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note
11 to the consolidated financial statements.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of bank and other borrowings as at 31 December 2021
are set out in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

% 2
gFrefEsnEzs - —F+-_A=+—
HiIEFEIRZERBPEE -

i N
AARIRBE-_E-_—F+-_RA=+—8H1

FENBRAELHFBHNEE M BERERW T
24(c) °
of {53 ik i 6

RN—_E-_—F+-_A=+—H BEHNSES
RELE(RBVEDFE XA AIH DR F &
S E L) A AR #84,807,000T °

REBERBDE  RABIE DG ERA DK T A
NAPRR - EAREREZZEDIRKRE (E) B
HRRIKE - ARAHREEREXRBBRETER
HEHER ARARBE-_FT_—F+_H
St HLEFENREEDFHIARNGEAY
15 3R I £ 24(a) ©

AEERBHE
rAEBHZE-_ZT-_—F+_A=+—HLHA
BAFESFNEE BEERBEREZEHFNAF
2448 ©

B
BEZF--FT-A=T-HLFE &L
BB ATEL A ARE100,0007T °

Y BERERE

B2+ -_A=+—HILFEENY
¥ BEARBEHABIARGEUBRERN
11 0

RITREMER
RZE-_—F+-_A=+—HBHOHETEREM
BERFERBHNEE P B REMFE20 -

’ 114 CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021



SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company as at
31 December 2021 are set out in note 12 to the consolidated
financial statements.

MATERIAL EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Save for the disposal of interests in a joint venture as disclosed
under the paragraph headed “Business Review — Wind Power
Generation” and in the announcement of the Company dated
25 March 2022, the Directors are not aware of any other
material events relating to the business or financial
performance of the Group during the year ended 31 December
2021 and up to the date of this report.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

No contract of significance has been entered into between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and the Company’s
controlling shareholders or any of its subsidiaries during the
year ended 31 December 2021.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES, AND FUTURE PLANS FOR
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS AND CAPITAL
ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this annual report and in the
announcement of the Company dated 25 March 2022, the
Group did not have any significant investment or material
acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries, affiliated companies and
joint ventures during the year ended 31 December 2021. Save
for the information disclosed in this annual report, as at the
date of the annual report, the Group did not have any
significant investments or acquire any capital assets approved

by the Board.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the revenue derived
from the Group’s largest customer and the five largest
customers accounted for approximately 74% and 96% of the
Group's total revenue for the year, respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, purchases from the
Group's largest supplier and five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 13% and 41% of the Group’s total purchases
for the year, respectively.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5%
of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major
suppliers or customers noted above.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2021 and up
to the date of this annual report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Cheng Liquan Richard (Chairman)
Mr. Cheng Li Fu Cliff (Chief executive officer)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wang Lubin
Mr. Li Hao

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Yip Chun On

Mr. Kang Jian

Mr. Li Shusheng

In accordance with Article 84 of the amended and restated
articles of association of the Company, at each annual general
meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if
their number is not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest
to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by
rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every
three years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election
and shall continue to act as a Director throughout the meeting
at which he retires. The Directors to retire by rotation shall
include (so far as necessary to ascertain the number of
directors to retire by rotation) any Director who wishes to retire
and not to offer himself for re-election.
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In accordance with Article 83(3) of the amended and restated
articles of association of the Company, Any Director appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the
first general meeting of Members after his appointment and be
subject to re-election at such meeting and any Director
appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board
shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for
re-election.

Accordingly, at the forthcoming annual general meeting to be
held on 27 June 2022, Mr. Li Hao, Mr. Kang Jian and Mr. Li
Shusheng, who are being the longest in office since their
appointment, shall retire from office and have offered
themselves for re-election at the annual general meeting.

Details of the Directors to be re-elected at the 2022 AGM are
set out in the circular to shareholders of the Company dated
26 April 2022.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 2022 annual general meeting of the Company (the “2022
AGM") will be held on Monday, 27 June 2022. Notice of the
2022 AGM will be published and issued to shareholders of the
Company in due course.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the 2022
AGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from 22 June 2022 (Wednesday) to 27 June 2022 (Monday)),
both dates inclusive, during which period no transfer of its
shares will be registered. In order to be eligible to attend and
vote at the 2022 AGM, all transfer documents accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan
Chai, Hong Kong, for registration by no later than 4:30 p.m.
on 21 June 2022 (Tuesday) for registration of transfer.

Report of the Directors
EEgHE

RIEARBKET REIEBEIRAAIES33)
- BEEEMGEREZRNENESA—HE
TRBE  BEEARRBTHEZTRNERE
BRERRER/IE WRZAE LEESEE ME
EZgZEHMARTESENEMAES  §
AECHZBBEEARRET NERRABSF
RER/ILE IRZRELAEBERBEEL-

BHit TR T —F XA +TERETH
KERRBFRE L ZFHEEE BEREER
FENEE(BRELRBERZEUREIHRRRE)
RME - WREEBERRFBFREG FEREFE-

BR_E-__FREAFASLLEENES
HABEREBRAE-_—_FONA -+ HH
KRB ILEBEHA -

BREEFEFXE
ARRW_ZTZ__FRERBAFRE([ZT==
FREBFAEDBER-_E-_—_FA=++t
AEH)RT T _FREBEFAEHN
BEBEETE UHFXTFARARE -

TEnERMBRERFE
AETER TS __FRERAFRELEY
FERENER ARARBRZZTZ=F~A
T+ ZHEH =) 2 ZE A=+ +
HEH ) (BEEEMA)EEHERNHBF
ERFE PERTeRBETABRHBEER -
%?*Aéﬂajr“fg::iﬂﬁ%ﬂikA
EELRE FBBPXHERBARENVE
ETNER-_ZTE-—F,A-1+— E(EHH—>—|—
FHR=ZT2EREEARANBEEEZTFER
BOEREBERRELAZZERRA  HILAD
BERRNEBERISIRE MA L7HE1712-1716
A AEITBPER -

FENSREENEERERAT —B-—FFR n7<<



Report of the Directors

EEeRE

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has
independence from each of the independent non-executive
Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”). The Company considered each of the independent
non-executive Directors to be independent.

received an annual confirmation of

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 22 to 33 of this annual report.

DIRECTOR’S SERVICE AGREEMENTS

The Company has entered into a service contract with each of
the executive and non-executive Directors and a letter of
appointment with each of the independent non-executive
Directors on 4 September 2020. Each of the service contracts
and the letters of appointment is for an initial fixed term of
three years commencing from the Listing Date. All Directors are
subject to retirement from office and re-election at the AGM of
the Company in accordance with the Memorandum and Articles
of Association of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, none of our Directors has entered
into, or has proposed to enter into, a service contract with any
member of our Group (other than contracts expiring or
determinable by the employer within one year without the

payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation)).
MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of any business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year ended
31 December 2021.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND THEIR
ASSOCIATES IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the Year and including the date of this report, none of
the Directors or any of their respective associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules) was considered to be interested in any
business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the business of the Group.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the amended and restated articles of association of
the Company, the Directors and other officers of the Group
shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and
profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any of
them, their or any of their heirs, executors or administrators,
shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done,
concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their
duty, or supposed duty, in their respective offices or trusts.

The Company has purchased the directors and officers liability
insurance to provide appropriate protection for its Directors and
senior management of the Company.

The permitted indemnity provision was in force during the year
ended 31 December 2021 for the benefit of the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and senior
management, together with those of the five highest paid
individuals of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021
are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The remuneration packages of individual Directors and senior
management (including salaries and other benefits) are
recommended by the Remuneration Committee for the Board’s
approval, with reference to salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the

Directors and performance of the Group.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the Year, the Company did not have any connected
transactions which were subject to the reporting requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability,
directly or indirectly, control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial
and operation decisions. Parties are also considered to be
related if they are subject to common control. Members of the
Company'’s key management and their close family member are
also considered as related parties. For a discussion of related
party transactions, see note 27 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements. Directors believe that the related party transactions
were carried out on an arm’s length basis and will not distort
our results during the year ended 31 December 2021 or make
such results not reflective of our future performance. All the
related party transactions described
constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions subject to the reporting,
independent shareholders’ approval requirements.

in this note do not

announcement or

DIRECTORS’/CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS'’
INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Except as disclosed elsewhere in this annual report, none of the
Directors or controlling shareholders, nor a connected party of
any Directors or controlling shareholders, had a material
interest, in any transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company or its subsidiaries was
a party during the year ended 31 December 2021.

either directly or indirectly,

SHARE OPTIONS OF THE COMPANY

The Company has conditionally adopted the share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”), which was adopted by
written resolutions passed by its shareholders on 16 July 2021
(the “Adoption Date”).
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The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Group to grant options to the Eligible Participants (including (i)
any full-time employees (including any executive Director but
excluding any non-executive Director and independent
non-executive Director) of the Company, any subsidiary or any
entity in which any member of the Group holds any equity
interest (an “Invested Entity”); (ii) any independent
non-executive Director and chief executive (as defined in the
Listing Rules) of the Company or any subsidiary; (iii) any
Director (including independent non-executive Director) and
chief executive (as defined in the Listing Rules) of any Invested
Entity; (iv) any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant
to any area of business or business development of any
member of the Group or any Invested Entity; (v) any supplier of
goods or services to any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity; (vi) any customer of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity; (vii) any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity; and (viii) any shareholder of
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity or any holder
of any securities issued by any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity), to enable the Group to grant Options to the
Eligible Participants as rewards for their
contribution to the Group.

incentives or

The Board shall, in accordance with the provisions of the Share
Option Scheme and the Listing Rules, be entitled but shall not
be bound at any time within a period of ten (10) years
commencing from the Adoption Date to make an offer as the
Board may in their absolute discretion impose any conditions,
restrictions or limitations in relation to the options (which shall
be stated in the letter containing the offer) to any person
belonging to the Eligible Participant(s) to subscribe, and no
person other than the Eligible Participant named in such the
offer may subscribe.
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The exercise price (subject to adjustment as provided therein) of
the option under the Share Option Scheme shall not be less
than the highest of: (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the offer date
which must be a business day; (ii) the average closing price of
the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the
offer date; and (iii) the nominal value of the Shares. The total
number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not
exceed 10% of the total issued share capital of the Company
as at the Adoption Date (i.e. not exceeding 25,000,000
Shares). However, the maximum number of Shares which may
be allotted and issued upon exercise of all outstanding share
options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme adopted by
the Group shall not exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from
time to time. The total number of Shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options under the Share Option
Scheme and the options granted under any other share option
scheme of the Group (including both exercised or outstanding
options) to each grantee in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the Shares from time to time, without separate
approval obtained from the Company’s shareholders in general
meeting. The Company may specify a minimum holding period
and performance conditions or targets which must be achieved
before the options can be exercised by the grantees of the
Share Option Scheme. The amount payable by the grantee to
the Company on acceptance of the offer shall be RMB1.00. The
options granted are exercisable for a period (which may not be
later than ten (10) years from the offer date of that option) to
be determined and notified by the Directors to the grantee
thereof and, in the absence of such determination, from the
offer date of such option to the earlier of (i) the date on which
such option lapses; and (ii) ten (10) years from the offer date
of that option.

No share options have been granted under the Share Option
Scheme as at 31 December 2021.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS
No equity-linked agreements were entered into during the year
or subsisted at the end of the year ended 31 December 2021.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2021 were
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in or debentures of the Company granted to any Director or
their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or
were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company,
the Company’s holding companies or any of the Company’s
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors,
or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ fees are approved by shareholders of the
Company at the annual general meeting of the Company and
the other emoluments payable to executive Directors are
determined by the Board based on the recommendation of the
Remuneration Committee with reference to the prevailing
market practice, the Company’s
Directors’ duties and responsibilities within the Group and
contribution to the Group.

remuneration policy, the

Details of remuneration of Directors are set out in note 8 to
the consolidated financial statements.

RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEES BENEFITS
SCHEME

Details of retirement benefit scheme of the Group are set out
in note 6(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

Report of the Directors
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF
THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the
Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company and
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO”)) which were notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the
SFO, or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as
adopted by the Company, to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

(i) Directors’ interests in the Company

EERFEITHRAENEXATINER
2 - HE A B 1 B (B HEE SR P BO HE 2 B ik

RZE-_—F+_A=+—H EZ=KAR
FETHRABRARD T&EEﬂmwﬁlmz
ERBEBEOENEZLSRBEEN(F
NMERE &6 ]) SEXVER) B AR 15 m%h1&ﬁ
EEPHERES %&%fh%%wﬂﬁmi
SHEBNEARNRRBMRNER AR (B
EREBEEHFMBEKIEBEXESERE ¢
FEEBHEANEZIRAR)  HLHERAAR
RIE & %&%fh%%%ﬁ%ﬁgmﬂaﬁ
MERERARE  RBEARRQRRAH EHRA
Misk+ A8l L BETAESHITELERSN
Fﬁﬁwqh TR ARMEARRDE REER
FreES A BT

() EERFATER

Number of

Shares held/ Percentage of

Name of Director Capacity Interested in shareholding
Fi¥s HAERN
EENE 5 388 FikE S
(Note 1) (Note 3)
(BF3E1) (BF7E3)
Mr. Cheng Liquan Richard Interest in a controlled 187,500,000 (L) 75%
("Mr. Richard Cheng”) corporation (Note 2)
BE2ELE(TRRER2EKRAE]D R AE R (M 5T2) 187,500,000 (L) 75%
Notes: B 2
1. The letter (L) denotes the person’s long position in such 1 [LIEEZATRZERBEITE -
Shares.

2. These Shares are held by Hongyuan BVI. The entire issued
shares of Hongyuan BVI are legally and beneficially owned
by Mr. Richard Cheng, the chairman of the Board and an
executive Director. Accordingly, Mr. Richard Cheng is
deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by
Hongyuan BVI under Part XV of the SFO.

3. The percentage represents the total number of the Shares
and the underlying Shares interested, if any, divided by the
number of Shares in issue of 250,000,000 as at
31 December 2021.

2. ZEBMACLEBVIFFE o ShEBVIRE
BEETRNAEFTEIFERIUTESRE
BeiAaXREREAR - Al RIEE
H R BRI EXVE - BE 2 EERR
R SMEBVIF B B T B B A AR

%o

3. DEHERAEETOR G R EBRD
(ﬁuﬁ)%%w%AﬁA*T*—iJr:H
=+ — BB #7178 % % E250,000,000
B o
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(ii)

Directors’ interests in associated corporation of the
Company

Name of associated

Report of the Directors
EEQHE

(i) EENFATHEBEEMER

Number of

Shares held/  Percentage of

Name of Director corporation Capacity Interested in shareholding
Fifs,/ BE#ER
B HEEEZE 55 i iz 3 B E FRE S
Mr. Richard Cheng Hongyuan Company Limited Beneficial owner 1 100%
(Note 2) ("Hongyuan BVI”) (Note 1)
BE2%4E(HF2) ShEARB QA ([55EBVI]) E5EAA 1 100%
(PR 5E1)
Notes: B 5

1. Hongyuan BVI is a direct Shareholder of the Company and
is an associated corporation of the Company within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

2. Mr. Richard Cheng is a director of Hongyuan BVI.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none
of the Directors or chief executives of the Company had
any interests or short positions in any Shares, underlying
Shares or debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which would have to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO), or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 352
of the SFO, or which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

1. SLRBVIAARNRIZEERER  WAARRD
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EXVER) °
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, so far as the Directors are aware, the
interests or short positions of the entities/persons, other than a
Director or chief executives of the Company, in the Shares and
underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO, were
as follows:

Substantial shareholders’ interest in the Company

FERRMN I 7 & 86 Iz 6B #m
B it

W_ZB-—F+-"fF=+—8 HESEHRH -
B/ NANT(ESHIARBEETHRABRIN
PG RBEBROPEEREESRBEK
Bl EXVEB E2 %37 F ARG X AR A A 7 %’
WS SOA R R R AR BRI FS K
ERPIE3B6KRBEFENETCMOES AR
NN

FERFRRAAEMER

Number of
Shares held/ Percentage of
Name of shareholder Capacity Interested in Shareholding
Fi¥s HAERN
BREE HaE 5 B 388 FikE S
(Note 1) (Note 4)
(B 5ET) (B 7E4)
Hongyuan BVI (Note 2) Beneficial owner 187,500,000 (L) 75%
shiEBVI (I 5%2) EnlEBA 187,500,000 (L) 75%
Ms. Zhou Xuan (Note 3) Interest of spouse 187,500,000 (L) 75%
JB e 2+ (M4 5E3) Fic 48 & 187,500,000 (L) 75%
Notes: B 5E -
1. The letter “L” denotes the entity/person’s long position in the 1. F&[ILIRTZEE A R E TR -
Shares.

2. Hongyuan BVI is wholly owned by Mr. Richard Cheng. Under the
SFO, Mr. Richard Cheng is deemed to be interested in the same
number of Shares in which Hongyuan BVI is interested.

3. Ms. Zhou Xuan, being the spouse of Mr. Richard Cheng, is
deemed, or taken to be, interested in the Shares in which
Mr. Richard Cheng is interested for the purpose of the SFO.

4. The percentage represents the total number of the Shares and
the underlying Shares interested, if any, divided by the number
of Shares in issue of 250,000,000 as at 31 December 2021.

2. GSAEBVIHEER2LA2EBEHE REZFSHR
HEEM - BER2 LAWK ARLEBVIES
BENERBERD P HEEER -

3. HEFMHEGIME  ARLTERER
EAENEBRERIGERERE2 LR
EREMBRNDTPERES -

4, DLEEBEEEENRGD RBBEKRG (AE)
m’%(@l«/(b"\_é_*iJr A=+—HB 3%
A% 17 €1 B 250,000,0000% °
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the
Company had not been notified of any entities/persons (other
than Directors or chief executives of the Company) who had
interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the amended
and restated articles of association of the Company or the laws
of the Cayman Islands, under which the Company would be
required to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing
shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 34 to 50 of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed
securities of the Company.

During the Year, the Company has not entered into or
maintained any equity-linked agreements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as
at the date of this annual report.

Report of the Directors
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2021 have been audited by KPMG. A resolution
for the re-appointment of KPMG as the auditor of the
Company for the ensuing year is to be proposed at the 2022
AGM.

There was no change in auditor of the Company since the
Listing.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an Audit Committee which was established
in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules for the
purpose of reviewing and providing supervision over the
Group’s financial reporting process and internal controls. The
Audit Committee has three members comprising three
independent non-executive Directors, being Mr. Yip Chun On
("Mr. Yip"), Mr. Kang Jian and Mr. Li Shusheng. The Audit
Committee is chaired by Mr. Yip, who has appropriate
professional qualifications and experience as required by Rule
3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. The Audit Committee of the
Company has reviewed the annual results of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2021 and the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2021 prepared in accordance
with the IFRSs.

For and on behalf of the Board
Cheng Liquan Richard
Chairman

28 March 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
7 31 1% BB 3R

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of China
Nature Energy Technology Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Nature Energy Technology Holdings Limited (“the Company”)
and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 136 to 243,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2021, the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2021 and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong
("HKICPA"). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) together with any
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements in the Cayman Islands and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Institute of Certified Public Accountants
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B A B R

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matter is the matter that,

judgement, was of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. This
matter was addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming

in our professional

EEREE
FBREZEARBERMOELAE - RAY
RGP BRRNBEZRAREENFE &
SEADRBRMEXERGEAM HE/R R
ABRMETES - RMTEURSEHEHR
BBENER -

our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion

on this matter.

Loss allowances for trade receivables

BoEKRIEMBEERE

Refer to Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 155 to 161.
FBREGENBRENFI17REIS5Z161 8B &5 HE -

The Key Audit Matter
@S EIR

How the matter was addressed in our audit

B ET A EERARENSER

As at 31 December 2021, the gross amount of the
Group’s trade receivables totalled RMB185 million,
against which a loss allowance of RMB1.3 million for
expected credit losses (ECLs) was made. The carrying
value of the Group's trade receivables represented
approximately 36% of the total assets as at
31 December 2021.

RZEZ—F+ZA=+—H  EEENEBEFENK
NEEBARARKISSEE L EHEAERE(RE
HERAEBRDELNBEREBERARKIIBEETL -
—E—F+-RA=+—H  E5EBEEFEKNE
MEREENSBEEEN36 °

Management measures the loss allowance at an
amount equal to lifetime ECL based on estimated loss
rates for each category of trade receivables grouped
according to the shared credit risk characteristics. The
estimated loss rates take into account the ageing of
trade receivable balances, the repayment history of the
Group’s customers, current market conditions,
customer-specific conditions, and forward-looking
information. Such assessment involves significant
management judgement and estimation
ERERBARGRARBRBSENSE S RUFIA
BrmBHEREXE R2HEREEERENEHTE
BREEG HHEBEEXGFREZERRFIBLLN R
e BEXEEEFPMENRESL BROMR BFEEM
M RAIEEER - GRS REXNEIRERE b &
R

Our audit procedures to assess the expected credit
loss allowance for trade receivables included the
following:
BAFREIRURBEERGENETEFEENU
T&IE:

o obtaining an understanding of and assessing the
design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls relating to
credit control, debt collection and estimating
the credit loss allowance;

e THMEITHEREH WRERKEEREH
BEEBEEENETEANIEHORE  NITHE
LR EERC R

o evaluating the Group’s policy for estimating the
credit loss allowance with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing accounting
standard;

s RE2ERTHITEANRTE - &GE
BEEREREEBEHERXR

ERER

o assessing whether items in the trade receivables
ageing report were categorised in the
appropriate ageing bracket by comparing
individual items therein with sales invoices and
other relevant underlying documentation, on a
sample basis;

e EBAMKLBIHEEBRZANNMEAIIER N KHEA
HEXH  FEEHEWHRIARER®RSE T HIE

BREDHRERENRESAR
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Loss allowances for trade receivables

BoEWRIEMBEER

Refer to Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 155 to 161.
BRMGEEHBHEEZNF17REIS5E161H 85 BUE °

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
@B EIR M E IR EAEETEIE

We identified the expected credit loss allowance for e obtaining an understanding of the key parameters

trade receivables as a key audit matter because and assumptions of the expected credit loss
determining the level of the loss allowance requires model adopted by the management, including
the exercise of significant management judgement the basis of segmentation of the trade
which is inherently subjective. receivables based on shared credit risk
BB EZRRRBEHREAEERERMN SARESE characteristics of customers in management’s
EE - THEREEERECEBEGKTRETR estimated loss rates;

BREE A - e THREEECANTEHEAEEEANERES

BERBRFR EREREEEBAANEBEREERHFERE
FRARERERBBNE S RBKKEN D BE

P-4

o assessing the appropriateness of management’s
estimates of loss allowance by examining the
information used by management to derive such
estimates, including testing the accuracy of the
historical default data and evaluating whether the
historical loss rates are appropriately adjusted
based on current market conditions, customer-
specific conditions and forward-looking
information; and

. REEEERSEBMAEERNER - Utk
EEEMEERAREGENREN  BREARBER
WBENERELTEBENEEXRREEER
B RATIHARN - BEFIE MR LATE L ERH#E
THEENHAR R

o re-performing the calculation of the loss allowance
as at 31 December 2021 based on the Group’s
credit loss allowance policies.

e RE SEEENGERERBERR EMiER
T F+ZA=t—HHOEEEE-
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Independent Auditor’s Report
18 % BRAD S

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included in the
annual report, other than the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

materially
in the audit or

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of

the consolidated financial statements,
design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal
control.

whether due to
fraud or error,
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Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group'’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Chan Ting Yuen.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

28 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
re iR m R

For the year ended 31 December 2021  (Expressed in Renminbi)
HE_Z-—F+A=+—HLEFE WUAR%IITR)

2021 2020
—E——f —E-EE
Note RMB’'000 RMB’000

B it ARBTFRT ARETTT

Revenue Ui 23 4 312,864 338,895
Cost of sales 5 & A A (266,991) (265,325)
Gross profit EH 45,873 73,570
Other revenue H b i 25 5(a) 4,749 4,987
Other net (loss)/income Hith (E18),/ 5b)

NS (307) 202
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHAX (5.,832) (3,788)
Administrative and other operating TR H A &

expenses X (14,910) (21,228)

Profit from operations EEmEEN 29,573 53,743
Net finance costs BE KA FRE 6(a) (4,031) (5,721)
Share of loss of joint ventures SIEEERRIEE 13 (2,069) (666)
Profit before taxation P& Bt By itk A 6 23,473 47,356
Income tax Fris i 7 (2,128) (6,972)
Profit for the year 5 R it F 21,345 40,384
Attributable to: LT&FEW:
Equity shareholders of the Company RRAERRR 21,069 40,173
Non-controlling interests FEPE I = 276 211
Profit for the year E R it F 21,345 40,384
Earnings per share BlEF 10
Basic and diluted (RMB) EARREE

(AR®T) 0.084 0.201

The notes on pages 144 to 243 form part of these financial $144% 2438 FraElMi st A% S MR AT
statements. T2
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GERmkHEMEEWER

For the year ended 31 December 2021  (Expressed in Renminbi)
HE_Z-—F+-A=+—HIEFE UUAREIR)

2021 2020
—F-—F —TZF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR T T
Profit for the year EREF 21,345 40,384
Other comprehensive income for EFREBEZEWE
the year (after tax adjustments) (EHRIARAEE)
Item that may be reclassified subsequently to profit B & a] £ E #7 77 48
or loss: EEmrEA
Exchange difference on translation of financial BMENREEIE
statements of entities with functional currencies ARBITAR
other than Renminbi (“RMB") BHERY
B EmEBER
=8 (914) (3,085)
Other comprehensive income for the year FHHEMBZEWKE (914) (3,085)
Total comprehensive income for the year FRhE2EWEEE 20,431 37,299
Attributable to: LLTF&FHRE:
Equity shareholders of the Company ZN/NESTE 53 S 20,155 37,088
Non-controlling interests SEERE R 276 211
Total comprehensive income for the year FRHE2EWEEE 20,431 37,299
The notes on pages 144 to 243 form part of these financial 51442435 Frak i 5 72 5% 55 B 7% 2= 40 AK 36
statements. e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

“r & BB AR L R

For the year ended 31 December 2021  (Expressed in Renminbi)
HE_Z-—F+-A=+—HIEFE UUAREIR)

2021 2020
—E-—%F —ZF
Note RMB’'000 RMB’000
Hia AREFR ARET T
Non-current assets FERENEE
Property, plant and equipment e 11 97,960 101,048
Interests in joint ventures RELERAINER 13 = 417
Contract assets BHEE 14(a) 2,595 762
Deferred tax assets B IBEE 23(b) 201 269
100,756 102,496
Current assets REBEE
Assets held for sale BIEREEE 15 7,048 —
Inventories FE 16 18,650 16,589
Trade and other receivables EH5KEAM 17
JiE U 3k TE 269,555 275,965
Loans to related parties and a third party 2@t ¥R 5 18
F—&F=H
BB XK 25,382 —
Cash and cash equivalents BeMIREeEEY 19(a) 40,572 121,416
Pledged deposits B H TR 19(b) 42,448 30,960
403,655 444,930
Current liabilities ;-..E?JEE
Bank loans and other borrowings BITERNEMER 20 50,270 93,572
Trade and other payables f’i%&ﬁtfmrﬁ KB 21 183,817 204,871
Lease liabilities HERE 22 2,242 1,620
Contract liabilities X aE 14(b) 772 —
Current taxation B EA#5 18 23(a) 489 1,665
237,590 301,728
Net current assets RENEEFE 166,065 143,202
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRSHER 266,821 245,698
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

iR BRI LR

For the year ended 31 December 2021  (Expressed in Renminbi)
HE_Z-—F+-A=+—BIEFE CGUAREIR)

2021 2020
—F-—F —TEF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

Hi it ARETT ARETTT

Non-current liabilities EREERE
Trade and other payables g5 kHEMEN 21
E QL] 1,906 —
Lease liabilities HEBRE 22 5,354 4,597
7,260 4,597
NET ASSETS BETHE 259,561 241,101
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXRGHE
Share capital % 7% 24(c) 2,168 2,168
Reserves & 1 257,393 236,998
Total equity attributable to equity EATHEZRE
shareholders of the Company FEILHER A 259,561 239,166
Non-controlling interests RS — 1,935
TOTAL EQUITY SR 259,561 241,101

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directorson HBHEZFEXR-_TE-_—_F=A=-+/\H#HERK

28 March 2022.

RREET -

Cheng Liquan Richard Cheng Lifu Cliff
BEE2 BERK
Directors Directors
EF EE
The notes on pages 144 to 243 form part of these financial £ 144% 2438 BT &M 5t A% 5 B 75 3R 2R 4B Ak 30
statements. e
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CONSOUDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
n‘IT' = *& i &EJ]%

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi)
HE_Z-ZFS+-_A=+—-HIEFE UWARKIIR)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ARAERRRER
PRC Non-
Share Share Other  statutory  Exchange  Retained controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests  Total equity
hEEE JEER

Ba BhEE AR Wi EARE REEN st i ERAE
Note RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
M ARETR AREBTE ARBTRL ARETE ARMTRL ARETR ARETRL ARETT ARETR

Balance at 1 January 2020 R-F-8F
-B—-BMER - - 31,406 6,351 (347) 66,508 103918 1724 105,642
Changes in equity for 2020: —ECFEER
29
Profit for the year FRET - - - - - 40,173 40,173 M 40,384
Other comprehensive income ErEYE — — — — (3,085) — (3,085) — (3,085)
Total comprehensive income PENERE - - - — (3,085) 40,173 37,088 21 37,299
Capitalisation issue BERET 24(c) 1,626 (1,626) — - - - - - —
Issue of ordinary shares by initial ~ BAAFEERT
public offering, net of LRI
issuance costs IRA 24(c) 542 97,618 — — — — 98,160 — 98,160
Appropriation of reserve PEFEE 24(a)i) — — - 868 — (868) — — —
Balance at 31 December 2020 R=-F-FF+=F
St-BHER 2,168 95,992 31,406 7,219 (3432 105813 239,166 1935 241,101

The notes on pages 144 to 243 form part of these financial 1442435 Fral M st A% S B 7 Rk 485K 20
statements. 9 e
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BAENEHE
For the year ended 31 December 2021  (Expressed in Renminbi)
BET-_—F+A=1T—BILFE UGUAARKFITR)
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
AT EERREN
PRC Non-
Share Share Other  statutory Exchange  Retained controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests Total equity
hEEE FER

k% RHieR HbEE e EREE REEH &t o EalE
Note RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
HiE  ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARNTR ARETR

Balance at 1 January 2021 R=B=-f

-A-Bi&ER 2,168 95,992 31,406 7,219 (3432) 105813 239,166 1935 241,101
Changes in equity for 2021: “EC-FiER

29
Profit for the year FREF = = = = = 21,069 21,069 276 21,345
Other comprehensive income petufrill g - - — — (914) - (914) - (914)
Total comprehensive income 2ANELE = = = = (914) 21,069 20,155 276 20,431
Acquisition of non-controlling WEEERER

interests 24(a)i) - - 240 - - - 240 (1,896) (1,656)

Deregistration of subsidiaries BHARKERR - = = = = = = (315) (315)
Appropriation of reserve AEGEE 24(a)i) - - - 1,596 — (1,596) - - -
Balance at 31 December 2021 WR-F=—%+=f

=t-BHER 2,168 95,992 31,646 8,815 (4346) 125286 259,561 — 259,561

The notes on pages 144 to 243 form part of these financial S 144E 2438 Fr el M 5k 73 5% 5 B 75 2k A0 A0

N

statements. 7]
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

n‘7r A iﬁr% JIL E %‘

For the year ended 31 December 2021  (Expressed in Renminbi)

HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HI-&EE

AAREFIR)

2021 2020
—E-—% —EF
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
B &t ARETR ARETF T
Operating activities %‘?‘é“iﬁiﬂ
Cash generated from operations KEFIR 19(c) 10,549 21,584
Tax paid SENR L] (3,236) (9,452)
Net cash generated from operating HETEBRRRS
activities T 7,313 12,132
Investing activities B’EES
Payment for the acquisition of property, WHEME - BE R
plant and equipment BTN (9,532) (1,450)
Capital injection in joint ventures EEAE N A (8,700) (800)
Proceeds from deregistration of joint BB & & A A
ventures Fr 18 38 — 457
Deposits received from disposal of joint HEEEREE
ventures ofi7ecna 5,133 —
Loans to related parties Mm@ ER (24,382) (173)
Loans to a third party M—ZEF=FER (1,000) —
Repayment of loans to a related party M7 EFER = 173
Interest received 24 F A 404 207
Net cash used in investing activities BEESHRARSE
iFE (38,077) (1,586)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2021

RERERER

(Expressed in Renminbi)

HE_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—HIEFE UGUAREIIR)
2021 2020
—EC-—% —EF
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
B &t ARETR AREEF T
Financing activities REEE
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares by E/’/Z@Eﬂ? BT
initial public offering BRFTISFRIE  24(0) — 108,840
Share insurance cost paid EH?&‘(THXM PR 24(c) — (10,680)
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENHEERS
BARE D 19(d) (2,056) (608)
Interest element of lease rentals paid BENEERS
B EB 7 19(d) (305) (66)
Proceeds from bank loans RITE RS RIE 19(d) 10,000 32,662
Repayment of bank loans BERETER 19(d) (46,195) (29,300)
Proceeds from loans due to a third party KBEEZFEX
AT i5 5108 19(d) 15,000 —
Repayment of loans due to third parties (EEENFE=7
g% 19(d) (21,400) (3,000)
Interest paid B FE 19(d) (1,533) (2,770)
Dividends paid to former shareholders of Xt & 8 F i B
subsidiaries UNGIEIE$: — (16,756)
Distribution to non-controlling shareholder — H EXSH 5% fift B [\
of subsidiaries upon deregistration Bt~ R FEFE AR
IR B 1E B 5 R (315) —
Payment for acquisition of non-controlling U B FF #2° I 4 25
interests YE H B 3K (1,656) —
Net cash (used in)/generated from REEE (A
financing activities iR & %8 (48,460) 78,322
Net (decrease)/increase in cash W& (L) #n
FER (79,224) 88,868
Cash at 1 January R—BA—BWNHRE 121,416 35,632
Effect of foreign exchange rate ExEgEsHnse
changes (1,620) (3,084)
Cash at 31 December R+=-—A=+—H
B IR & 19(a) 40,572 121,416

F1447243F T 8L 55 3% 5 BT 1538 55 40 P 2

AN

statements. 77 °

The notes on pages 144 to 243 form part of these financial
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 ¥R 3= B &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(RESFIET > BRIRARKEITR)

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Nature Energy Technology Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
28 November 2019 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.
The Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 20 October
2020. The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively as the
“Group”) are principally engaged in the research and
development, integration, manufacturing and sales of
pitch control systems and related components, wind
power generation, wind farm operation and maintenance
business and provision of energy storage management
solutions in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) which collective term
includes all applicable individual International
Financial Reporting Standards, International
Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (the “IASB”) and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These
financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. Significant accounting policies adopted
by the Group are disclosed below.

The IASB has issued certain amendments to IFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group.
Note 2(c) provides information on any changes in
accounting policies resulting from initial application
of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current accounting
periods reflected in these financial statements.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2021 comprise the Company
and its subsidiaries and the Group’s interests in joint
ventures.

Iltems included in these consolidated financial
statements of each entity in the Group are measured
using the currency that best reflects the economic
substance of the and
circumstances relevant to the entity (“functional
currency”). The functional currency of the Company
is Hong Kong dollar (“HK$"). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in RMB, rounded
to nearest thousands, which is the presentation
currency.

underlying events

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis
except as set out
hereunder.

in the accounting policies

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale
are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell (see Note 2(u)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with [FRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
Actual

sources. results may differ from these

estimates.

Notes to the Financial Statements

0175 R MY o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS SRR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR3EmBIEE -

2

BRIAAREIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(b) Basis of preparation of the financial

(c)

statements (Continued)

The estimates and wunderlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current

and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of IFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in Note 3.

Changes in accounting policies

The IASB has issued the following amendments to
IFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group:

° Amendment to IFRS 16, Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions

° Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4
and IFRS 16, Interest rate benchmark reform —
phase 2

None of these developments have had a material
effect on how the group’s results and financial
position for the current or prior periods have been
prepared or presented. The group has not applied
any new standard or interpretation that is not yet
effective for the current accounting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

0175 R MY o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BIEDSHET  FHUARESIR)
2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EXEs5tEE(E)
(Continued)
(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (d) MBASIRIFERER

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing
whether the Group has power, only substantive
rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-Group balances, transactions and cash
flows and any unrealised profits arising from
intra-Group transactions are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-Group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as
unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is

no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has
not agreed any additional terms with the holders of
those interests which would result in the Group as a
whole having a contractual obligation in respect of
those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the
Group can elect to measure any non-controlling
interests either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS SRR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR3EmBIEE -

2

BRIAAREIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Non-controlling in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the

equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling

interests are presented

interests in the results of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and the consolidated statement of profit or
comprehensive income as an
allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive between

loss and other

income for the year
non-controlling interests and the equity shareholders
of the Company. Loans from holders of
non-controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented as
financial liabilities in the consolidated statement of
financial position in accordance with Notes 2(m) or
2(n) depending on the nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions, whereby adjustments are
made to the amounts of controlling and
non-controlling interests within consolidated equity
to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or

loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is
lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a
financial asset or, when appropriate, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate or
joint venture (see Note 2(e)).

2

EXE

(d)

s8R ()

MEBASRFEZRER (EZ)

UL
s

RS

P 8 25 1E £R B B T IR 00 3R B0
DA ERRARERE AR
HHEDEDMES - FFERERAE
AEEXREEREBRERREEGE
sREMEERERES  LBER
7R 2 B ARs ) Sk B 1R Ko 2 T I 5
AERE TN JR R R R a8 BN 1 A BROAE A
BAZEROE - FERESF A
ERRZERBEANEMEOR
ERFEM FE2(m)Z2(n) (R F B ER
HE)RGEAMBRARAKREN S
mAE-

N2

B
okr
T TN

AREERHMBE AR EDREE - L0
TEEHRAKEGIE  AARRER
ZAE - R ABELRE SN
22 P B FEE AR 5 2 R DA R BR AR R
BaZY EIHERERIER
W EIE -

BEAKBRKYMNE QB A EH
o BRI E %W AR P A
BAR MAELENKRKEBER
B iR - AN RREFIEE B
DR R Z BT B A R M s o %
N EMER - it BRR S TA
EReREENRTFE H(WE
BV GEHEIANBERRHEGER

AR IR E R AR (BT RE2(e))

’ 148 CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021



SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(e)

(Continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see Note 2(h)(ii)), unless the
investment is classified as held for sale (or included
in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale)
(see Note 2(u)).

Joint ventures

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the
Group or Company and other parties contractually
agree to share control of the arrangement, and have
rights to the net assets of the arrangement.

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for in
the consolidated financial statements under the
equity method, unless it is classified as held for sale
(or included in a disposal Group that is classified as
held for sale (see Note 2(u))). Under the equity
method, the investment is initially recorded at cost,
adjusted for any excess of the Group’s share of the
acquisition-date fair values of the investee’'s
identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). The cost of the investment
includes purchase price, other costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of the investment, and
any direct investment into the associate or joint
venture that forms part of the Group’s equity
investment. Thereafter, the investment is adjusted
for the post acquisition change in the Group’s share
of the investee’s net assets and any impairment loss
relating to the investment (see Note 2(h)(ii)). Any
acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the
investees and any impairment losses for the year are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’

whereas

other comprehensive income is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS SRR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br3EmBIEE

2

CBRIAARESIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

(f)

Joint ventures (Continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its
interest in the joint venture, the Group’s interest is
reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the investee. For this
purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying amount
of the investment under the equity method, together
with any other long-term interests that in substance
form part of the Group’s net investment in the joint
venture (after applying the ECL model to such other
long-term interests where applicable see Note 2(h)
(i)).

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its joint venture
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest
in the except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred,
immediately in profit or loss.

investee,

in which case they are recognised

When the Group ceases to have joint control over a
joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of the
entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former investee at the date
when joint control is lost is recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition of a financial asset.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
(which is, in the case of assets acquired in a
business combination, the acquisition date fair
value). Items of property, plant and equipment
including right-of-use assets are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
Note 2(h)(ii)).

2

(e)

(f)

KETBUR (&)

BEAT(#E)
EASEEGERERARNEIEREB

HEGER  XSENERER
ZT IE/\JJZEENUE _LF)EETE’
EAEBDESZEAIEETEEN

ERRKEHRIELENERIN -5
s ANEENED SREDE
AENREREE EREE LB
AASEREGZERANREFER
ETREMERRED(KEABEHRIE
ERANZFHEMEMER (HE
) - RHFE2(h)I)) °

AEEBESLERAZERZME
ERMAREREBE  HRAKEREK

BYHRAEMERL REH - WA
EREEBRTNCEREELTR
B AZSFREREBESHNENE
J/;T/iq:'ﬁ&m

EAKETBHEGERRHEEHS
ZH R R ERZREHR
MRS AR FTEEMIRAR
BEREBRTER - TR KEH
EEGEZBEMRESREREDN
RAERATVTEEILZEZBRER
RN EREREERNRAFE-

ME BERRE

ME - BB RERBIREAN (REKE

HEBAEEMS  AKEBRBAQ

FE)VIER ¥ HERZEEE
(BRIEFREEE) KRR E RS
wERBESBYREMFE2N)
(i) ) °

’ 150 CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021



2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the
costs of dismantling and removing the items and
restoring the site on which they are located, and an
appropriate proportion of production overheads and
borrowing costs (see Note 2(s)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on
the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their
value, if any, using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful lives
as follows:

estimated residual

Leasehold land (see Note 2(g))
ME i (R HEE2(g))

Plant and buildings

B E REF

Generators and other equipment
EEHNEAMERE

Office equipment and others
WA R EHAM

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of the
item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both
the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any, are reviewed annually.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS SRR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(RESFIET > BRIRARKEITR)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9)

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of the
identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.

As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and
non-lease component(s), the Group has elected not
to separate non-lease components and accounts for
each lease component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component for all
leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets.
When the Group enters into a lease in respect of a
low-value asset, the Group decides whether to
capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The
lease payments associated with those leases which
are not capitalised are recognised as an expense on
a systematic basis over the lease term.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9)

Leased assets (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or rate are not included in the
measurement of the lease liability and hence are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is
capitalised is
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the
right-of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs
to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is
located, discounted to their present value, less any
lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset is
subsequently stated at cost
depreciation and impairment losses (see Notes 2(f)
and 2(h)(ii)).

initially measured at cost, which

less accumulated

TEARGERMREZERARLA
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS SRR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(RESFIET > BRIRARKEITR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(g) Leased assets (Continued)
As a lessee (Continued)
The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, or there is a change in
the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to be
payable under a residual value guarantee, or there is
a change arising from the reassessment of whether
the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a
purchase, extension or termination option. When the
lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration
for a lease that is not originally provided for in the
lease contract (‘lease modification”) that is not
accounted for as a separate lease. In this case the
lease liability is remeasured based on the revised
lease payments and lease term using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the
modification. The only exceptions are rent
concessions that occurred as a direct consequence of
the COVID-19 pandemic and met the conditions set
out in paragraph 46B of IFRS 16 Leases. In such
cases, the group has taken advantage of the
practical expedient not to assess whether the rent
concessions are lease modifications, and recognised
the change in consideration as negative variable
lease payments in profit or loss in the period in
which the event or condition that triggers the rent
concessions occurred.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(g) Leased assets (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

In the consolidated statement of financial position,

(h)

the Group presents right-of-use assets in ‘property,

plant and equipment’

and presents the lease

liabilities separately. Current portion of long-term

lease liabilities is determined as the present value of
contractual payments that are due to be settled
within twelve months after the reporting period.

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for
expected credit losses (ECLs) on the following
items:

— financial assets measured at amortised
cost (including cash and cash equivalents,
trade and other receivables);

— contract assets as defined in IFRS 15 (see
Note 2(j)).

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all expected cash shortfalls
(i.e. the difference between the cash flows due
to the Group in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS SRR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(RESFIET > BRIRARKEITR)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EXEstEEE)
(Continued)
(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets (h) EEBEREEREE)
(Continued)
(i)  Credit losses from financial instruments and (i) KRELHMTRAREHEZELIE

contract assets (Continued) EfiE(E)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued) HHIEEE B ZE (&)

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted WM TEBEA - A|TEHER

using the following discount rates where the TEMESBEERAA TR XEL

effect of discounting is material: b

— fixed-rate financial assets, trade and other — TEESRMEE - BIHK
receivables and contract assets: effective HEHMEKRRBERERENE
interest rate determined at initial E RUBBERFETE
recognition or an approximation thereof; BB PR A = oy B A -

— variable-rate financial assets: current — ZREEeMEE BAE
effective interest rate. BR 7 & o

The maximum period considered when HETEMEEEERE BN &

estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual RHBARAEEAXEERR

period over which the Group is exposed to xRS MR -

credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into SAERHEEEERER  AKH

account reasonable and supportable ZRBAMNEBROK AR

information that is available without undue HENA RN EERBREE

cost or effort. This includes information about B -ZEERBERTSEH

past events, current conditions and forecasts of & AT AR S & R R AR OE AR R T

future economic conditions. Al o
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and

contract assets (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

ECLs are measured on either of the following
bases:

— 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default
events within the 12 months after the
reporting date; and

— lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to possible
default events over the expected lives of
the items to which the ECL model
applies.

result from all

Loss allowances for trade receivables and
contract assets are always measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these
financial assets are estimated using a provision
matrix based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors and an assessment of
both the current and forecast general economic
conditions at the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognises a loss allowance equal to 12-month
ECLs unless there has been a significant
increase
instrument since initial recognition, in which
case the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

in credit risk of the financial

Notes to the Financial Statements

0175 R MY o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(RIESFIET  BRIRAREIITR)

2 EXEstEE(#E)
(h) EEBEREEREE)

() KE2BIARBHAENE
B ()
HAI S B A £ ()
TR AR 1 T 5 R o —
ERitE

— NREAEHEEEIE:
it Th R4 B Ei 121218 A
NETEENEHMER
EEXENEE: &

— ZHRHEEEE: I
DEBMEEEBRENE
AMIEEEFEFFHA
FMBEEEDNSHE
HIEAREIR -

BHRWHBERANEENE
BREAFREAZHBHE
EERNETHTE -ZFTER
BENBHEEBERVERE
fmAEEAE  BEHEERDER
AEENBEEEERER
WIZEK AN BENHREE LN H
EREL LRI S P k- Fch

HOR P15 T A

BAEEMERTA(BRE
BHOEREAB) NS  AF
BizER12EA BB EEER
M RBEREIRRE  RIER
MNRERRZERTANES
R AIEIE I EUIER T
BiEREEREFRAZYENE
EEBEMNEHTE -

FENSEENEERERAT —B—— 558 157 ‘



Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS SRR M
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(BRIEBHEET - TRILARBEIIR)
2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and
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contract assets (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a
financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of default occurring on the financial
instrument assessed at the reporting date with
that assessed at the date of initial recognition.
In making this
considers that a default event occurs when (i)
the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group
recourse by the Group to actions such as
realising security (if any is held); or (ii) the
financial asset is 90 days past due. The Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical
forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.

reassessment, the Group

in full, without

experience and

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk
has increased
recognition:

significantly since initial

— failure to make payments of principal or
interest on their contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial instrument’s
external or internal credit rating (if
available);
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and

contract assets (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)
expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor; and

— an actual or

— existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant
adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either an
individual basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective basis,
the financial instruments are Grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such as past
due status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s
credit risk since initial recognition. Any change
in the ECL amount is recognised as an
impairment gain or loss in profit or loss. The
Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying

amount through a loss allowance account.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and

contract assets (Continued)
Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with
Note 2(r)(iv) is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless
the financial asset is credit-impaired, in which
case interest income is calculated based on the
amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount
less loss allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial

asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset
credit-impaired includes the following

observable events:

— significant financial difficulties of the

debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or

past due event;

— it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter into bankruptcy or other

financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the

debtor; or

— the disappearance of an active market for
a security because of financial difficulties

of the issuer.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and

(ii)

contract assets (Continued)

Werite-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset
or contract assets is written off (either partially
or in full) to the extent that there is no
realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally
the case when the asset becomes 3 years past
due or when the Group determines that the
debtor does not have assets or sources of
income that could generate sufficient cash
flows to repay the amounts subject to the
write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a
reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the
period in which the recovery occurs.

Impairment of other non-current assets
Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
to identify indications that the following assets
may be impaired or an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may
have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment, including
right-of-use assets;

— interests in joint ventures; and

— interest in a subsidiary in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s

recoverable amount is estimated.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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2

BRIAAREIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(ii) Impairment of other non-current assets
(Continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest Group of assets that generates
cash independently (i.e. a
cash-generating unit). A portion of the
carrying amount of a corporate asset (for

inflows

example, head office building) is allocated
to an individual cash-generating unit if the
allocation can be done on a reasonable
and consistent basis, or to the smallest
group of cash-generating units if
otherwise.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(ii) Impairment of other non-current assets
(Continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the cash-generating
unit (or Group of units) and then, to
reduce the carrying amount of the other
assets in the unit (or Group of units) on a
pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if
determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited
to the asset’s carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS SRR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR3EmBIEE -

2

BRIAAREIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

()

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment
Under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, the Group is required to prepare an
interim financial report in compliance with IAS
34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of the
first six months of the financial year. At the
end of the interim period, the group applies
the same impairment testing, recognition, and
reversal criteria as it would at the end of the
financial year (see Notes 2(h)(i) and (ii)).

Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for sale in the
ordinary course of business, in the process of
production for such sale or in the form of materials
or supplies to be consumed in the production
process or in the rendering of services.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value as follows:

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.

2

EXE

s8R ()

(h) EEBEREERE(F)

)

(iii) PRIEL 75L& R (E
RIEBEHARIFIBERRA A
BHELEMHLY AEEKEE
PR & 5T 2E R 55 345% 2 HABH
R E 2 T fm BT 8 B B F
EENEANTHUBERS -
REBE RN HHAR A& R ER D
T ERIE, - R R B B AR A B
BHEEEREERN -
(BBt sE2(h)G) K (i) ) »

=
17 0 I AR AR 55 8 DL 3
£ AR AR - SN L
WS 35 A 5 A BT S
U B o PR A A -

FE IR AR ER] IR EME T
ZEIEEINE  FBEWT

XA TH R RS AR AR FTE - A
BEMBEBERA  EHEARE
i 58 15 & 2 SR B P 2 3 36 MGk
PTELZKA -

AERFEREATEBBRETZ
mEtEBRE TR 2 AFFR AR R
TTHEPTHR 2 AT

EEHFER WEFEZEREE
NERBERSHREER B -

’ 164 CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021



2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

()]

Inventories (Continued)

The amount of any write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal
recognised as a
inventories recognised as an expense in the period in
which the reversal occurs.

of any write-down of inventories is

reduction in the amount of

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group
recognises revenue (see Note 2(r)) before being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration under
the payment terms set out in the contract. Contract
assets are assessed for expected credit losses (ECL) in
accordance with the policy set out in Note 2(h)(i)
and are reclassified to receivables when the right to
the consideration has become unconditional (see

Note 2(k)).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays non-refundable consideration before the group
recognises the related revenue (see note 2(r)). A
contract liability would also be recognised if the
group has an unconditional right to
non-refundable consideration before the group
recognises the related revenue. In such cases, a
corresponding receivable would also be recognised
(see note 2(k)).

receive

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented.
For multiple contracts, contract assets and contract
liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented on
a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest
accrued under the effective interest method (see
Note 2(r)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS SRR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR3EmBIEE -

2

BRIAAREIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k)

U]

(m)

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right
to receive consideration is unconditional if only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due. If revenue has been recognised
before the Group has an unconditional right to
receive consideration, the amount is presented as a
contract asset (see Note 2(j)).

Trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component are initially measured at their
transaction price. Trade receivables that contain a
significant financing component and other
receivables are initially measured at fair value plus
transaction costs. All receivables are subsequently
stated at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method and including an allowance for credit losses
(see Note 2(h)(i)).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Cash
and cash equivalents are assessed for expected credit
losses (ECL) in accordance with the policy set out in
Note 2(h)(i).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, trade
and other payables are stated at amortised cost
unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at invoice
amounts.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at
fair value less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Interest expense is recognised in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy for borrowing costs (see
Note 2(s)).

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans
Salaries, bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present
values.

annual

Contributions to local retirement schemes pursuant
to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the
jurisdictions in which the Group’s subsidiaries located
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss as
incurred, except to the extent that they are included
in the cost of inventories not yet recognised as an
expense.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the relevant amounts of tax are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, respectively.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS SRR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR3EmBIEE -

2

BRIAAREIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax
assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused
tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that
may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences include
those that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences,
differences relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
either in the same period as the expected reversal of
the deductible temporary difference or in periods
into which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax
asset can be carried back or forward. The same
criteria are adopted when determining whether
existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
losses and credits, that is,
differences are taken into account if they relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or
periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.

provided those

unused tax those
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from initial recognition of assets or liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the
case of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future,
or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is
probable that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS SRR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(RESFIET > BRIRARKEITR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EXEFBEE)

(Continued)

(p) Income tax (Continued) (p) Fife#t (&)
Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and BV EA 756 T8 45 £ K2 3R RE A0 TH 45 R DA I
movements therein, are presented separately from FEAZsHg@EBINE BT TE
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are o MANKBEE A EEITEELARD
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax HMBEERENBARIEBEAGE B
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group TEe THEAM RS BNAHESR
has the legally enforceable right to set off current EREAATIEE EEE  mMEL
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the MIBEEREECHRIES BRI

following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, — HAHBEEEREENS
the Company or the Group intends either to RARSARE BRI FHEEE
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and HE IAREREEREE
settle the liability simultaneously; or BfE %

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, — MELHBEELBEME -
if they relate to income taxes levied by the WMEZSRELEHBEEERARE
same taxation authority on either: BRR — MMM A AR —

HEBBROMSHRER -

— the same taxable entity; or — ARERBTEE X

— different taxable entities, which, in each — TREXRHER  mE
future period in which significant EHRIFEx K E KR
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or ELEHRBEEXEELZ
assets are expected to be settled or KRR E B HR - R ARF
recovered, intend to realise the current FEESIRAIEAHRIAE
tax assets and settle the current tax ENEEANBRES
liabilities on a net basis or realise and B KFARETERK
settle simultaneously. BIE -

’ 170 CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021



2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(q) Provisions and contingent liabilities

(r)

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations,
only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

whose existence will

Where some or all of the expenditure required to
settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by
another party, a separate asset is recognised for any
expected reimbursement that would be virtually
certain. the
reimbursement is limited to the carrying amount of
the provision.

The amount recognised for

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it
arises from the sale of goods or the provision of
services in the ordinary course of the Group's
business.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 R R MY 5

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(RESFIET > BRIRARKEITR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(r) Revenue and other income (Continued)
Revenue is recognised when control over a product
or service is transferred to the customer, at the
amount of promised consideration to which the
Group is expected to be entitled, excluding those
amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales
taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to the
customer for more than 12 months, revenue is
measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction with the customer, and interest income is
accrued separately under the effective interest
method. Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant financing
benefit to the Group, revenue recognised under that
contract includes the interest expense accreted on
the contract liability under the effective interest
method. The Group takes advantage of the practical
expedient in paragraph 63 of IFRS 15 and does not
adjust the consideration for any effects of a
significant financing component if the period of
financing is 12 months or less.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other
income recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Sales of pitch control systems and related
components and wind farm consumables
and energy storage management products
Revenue is recognised when the customer takes
possession of and accepts the products.

(ii) Sales of wind power
Revenue is recognised upon transmission of
electricity to the power grid company where
the control of the electricity is transferred at
the same time.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r)

(s)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

(iii) Rendering of wind farm maintenance,
upgrade and modification services and
provision of energy storage management
services
Revenue from the rendering of services is
recognised when the related services are
rendered.

(iv) Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues
under the effective interest method using the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset.

(v) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position
initially when there is reasonable assurance that
they will be received and that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to them.
Grants that compensate the Group for
expenses incurred are recognised as income in
profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same
periods in which the expenses are incurred.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time
to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

Notes to the Financial Statements

FAAs SRR M &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIESHET  BRRARBIIR)

2 EXEstEE(#)

(r)

(s)

Wi R H bW (E)
(iii) PEEETIEHE  HRRKE

BR 75 R REE IR 7

TR P15 s R R (AR R
PR 7 B TE 77 o

(iv) FIEKA
) B AT EE A B A B BR FI X
SRR FIERZARREBR
TREENTAHFHERRR
Mt RKBREWAEZEERA
FER R R -

(v) BRF#E

BB Al & IR R AN R E
7% U ER B B B S 38 <7 EL A
P 75 2 15k 1 B IO 6 B B A5 5IRO5L
RINFHER - BRNEEASEE
EELRX ZHHNAXESE
ZR—HEE RSN ERT
R AWA -

BERE
WM—EEAETRREEA T EER
EREREREILE REER
BRERE EBILEEXBEEL
fEERAGRBELREANUERZR
BEZRAZ -8 EEEK
REELHREZHE -

hEASEERERRERASY T —&&% 173 ‘



Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS SRR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR3EmBIEE -

2

BRIAAREIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

(t)

Borrowing costs (Continued)

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the
cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are

recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. The transaction date is the
date on which the company initially recognises such
non-monetary assets or liabilities.

The results of foreign operations are translated into
RMB at the exchange rates approximating the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange

reserve.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u)

Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified
as held for sale if it is highly probable that its
carrying amount will be recovered through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use and
the asset (or disposal group) is available for sale in
its present condition. A disposal group is a Group of
assets to be disposed of together as a group in a
single transaction, and liabilities directly associated
with those assets that will be transferred in the
transaction.

When the group is committed to a sale plan
involving loss of control of a subsidiary, all the
assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are classified
as held for sale when the above criteria for
classification as held for sale are met, regardless of
whether the Group will retain a non-controlling
interest in the subsidiary after the sale.

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the
measurement of the non-current assets (and all
individual assets and liabilities in a disposal group) is
brought up-to-date
accounting policies before the classification. Then, on
initial classification as held for sale and until
disposal, the non-current assets (except for certain

in accordance with the

assets as explained below), or disposal groups, are
recognised at the lower of their carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell. The principal
exceptions to this measurement policy so far as the
financial statements of the Group and the Company
are concerned are deferred tax assets, assets arising
from employee benefits, financial assets (other than
in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures) and investment properties. These assets,
if held for sale,
measured in accordance with the policies set out

elsewhere in Note 2.

investments

even would continue to be
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS SRR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BIEDHET  THUAREFR)
2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BitEB K (&)
(Continued)

(u HEHENFERDEE &)

(u) Non-current assets held for sale (Continued)

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for RERDBERFHELERAERER
sale, and on subsequent remeasurement while held EHEHEEFAENRESER
for sale, are recognised in profit or loss. As long as BafHR REERDEEDNE
a non-current asset is classified as held for sale, or is DERAFIELHEXNEMNADE AR
included in a disposal group that is classified as held EHEMEHEAR - Al EZ ERBE

ETTIERMH -

for sale, the non-current asset is not depreciated or
amortised.
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(v) Related parties (v)
(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(b)

()  has control or joint control over the Gy PRl R AR s
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; (i) AXEBEEATZE
or A

(iii)

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

The entity and the Group are members of
the same Group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a Group of
which the other entity is a member).
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(v) Related parties (Continued)
(b)  (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(viii)

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a Group of
which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS SRR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(RESFIET > BRIRARKEITR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(w) Segment reporting
Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
Group's various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes, the
type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

Key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(i) Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less
estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale. These estimates
are based on the current market conditions and the
historical experience of selling products with similar
nature. Any change in the assumptions would
increase or decrease the amount of inventories
write-down or the related reversals of write-down
made in prior years and affect the Group’s net assets
value. The Group reassesses these estimates
annually.
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3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Impairment of trade receivables

The Group estimates the amount of loss allowance
for ECLs on trade receivables that are measured at
amortised cost based on the credit risk of the
respective financial instruments. The loss allowance
amount is measured as the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows
with the consideration of expected future credit loss
of the respective financial
assessment of the credit risk of the respective
financial instrument involves high degree of
estimation and uncertainty. When the actual future
cash flows are less than expected or more than
expected, a material impairment loss or a material
reversal of impairment loss may arise, accordingly.

instrument. The

Depreciation

Iltems of property,
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of the assets, after taking into
account the estimated residual value. The Group

plant and equipment are

reviews the estimated useful lives of the assets
regularly in order to determine the amount of
depreciation and amortisation expense to be
recorded during any reporting period. The useful
lives are based on the Group’s historical experience
with
anticipated technological changes. The depreciation
expense for future periods are adjusted if there are
significant changes from previous estimates.

similar assets and taking into account
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS SRR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(RESFIET > BRIRARKEITR)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4
(a) Revenue

The principal activities of the Group are the research
and development, integration, manufacturing and
sales of pitch control systems and related
components, sales of wind power, wind farm
operation and maintenance business and provision of
energy storage management solutions. Further
details regarding the Group’s principal activities are
disclosed in Note 4(b).

(i) Disaggregation of revenue
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers by business lines is as follows:

Wr 25 R 53 2B R 5

(a) Wr#&
REEBNTEEH AW BE -
SR E R R RAMA
h HERE BEEHELRHEE
EBRRRUEFEETEBERAIR K
EEITTEBNEZHEBRKE

A(b)# 5% °
() Hzmsn#HE
REBIXEDHEP & LW
mOBRWMT :
2021 2020
—E-—% —E_TF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETTT

Sales of pitch control systems & % 8% 12 &l R 5t &
and related components B A 48 1 257,782 283,847
Sales of wind power HERE 22,539 20,258
Wind farm operation and A E5EE MR
maintenance business 32,439 34,790
Provision of energy storage REFEEEBATR
management solutions 104 —
312,864 338,895

The Group’s revenue from contracts with
customers were recognised at point in time.

The Group had one customer with whom
transactions have exceeded 10% of the
Group’'s revenue for the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020, respectively.
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4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)
(a) Revenue (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Disaggregation of revenue (Continued)

In 2021, revenue from sales of pitch control
systems and related components and wind
farm operation and maintenance business to
this customer, including sales to entities which
are known to the Group to be under common
control with this customer, amounted to
RMB230,875,000 (2020: RMB272,654,000).
Details of concentrations of credit risk arising
from the customers are set out in Note 25(a).

Revenue expected to be recognised in the
future arising from contracts with
customers in existence at the reporting
date

As at 31 December 2021,
applied the practical expedient in paragraph
121 of IFRS 15 to its sales contracts for goods
such that information about revenue expected
to be recognised in the future is not disclosed
in respect of revenue that the Group will be
entitled to when
performance obligations under the contracts for
sales of goods that had an expected duration
of one year or less.

the Group has

it satisfies the remaining
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS SRR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR3EmBIEE -

BRIAAREIR)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

(b)

Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by division, which
is organised by business lines (sales of pitch control
systems and related components, sales of wind
power, wind farm operation and maintenance
business and provision of wind energy related
consultancy services). In a manner consistent with
the way in which information is reported internally
to the Group’s most senior executive management
for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has presented
the following four reportable segments. No
individually mentioned operating segments have
been aggregated to form the following reportable
segments.

o Sales of pitch control systems and related
components: it engages in the research and
development, integration, manufacturing and
sales of the pitch control systems and related
components in wind turbines manufacturing;

o Sales of wind power: it engages in the sales of
the wind power electricity generated from wind
farms;

o Wind farm operation and maintenance business:
it provides wind farm operation and
maintenance, upgrade and modification services
and engages
consumables; and

in the sale of wind farm

° Provision of energy storage management
solutions: it engages in provision of energy
storage management services and related sales
of products.
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4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(i)

Segment results and assets

For the purpose of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments, the Group’s senior
management monitors the results and assets
attributable to each reportable segment on the
following bases:

executive

Segment assets include trade and other
receivables, inventories, contract assets, other
current assets and property, plant and
equipment, with the exception of interests in
joint ventures, deferred tax assets, assets held
for sale, loans to related parties and a third
party, cash and cash equivalents and pledged

deposits.

The measure used for reporting segment profit
is gross profit.

TEARGERMREZERARLA

Notes to the Financial Statements

0175 R MY o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(RIESFIET  BRIRAREIITR)

4 WHERDBI|E(E)

(b) W/ E (&)
() HPEBFERLDE
REHE D EBRIE N9 B 2 M
TERDE ~"EENSETT
BERASRATERERE
BEAME®/RS>BHEENRE
=

DHBEEREE S REMER
KRB FE AHNEE Hft
MBEEANDE F}%&?&
- EREERANER
ERBEE T%?Eﬁ%ﬁ%

RETHRETR-—ZFE=7TH
EX BHekBReFEYEE
EREREN -
EMARFTEZHmD EEAM ©
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(RESFIET > BRIRARKEITR)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(i) Segment results and assets (Continued)
Information regarding the Group’s reportable
segments as provided to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes

4 WHmRSBBE (&)

(b) SERFE (&)

(i) HELEREE(E)
BE_Z-_—Fk-_ZT-_FTF
+Z—RA=1+—HBIEFE o
B &R KT EDERRF M ASE

of resources allocation and assessment of EaEBITHEEABRHED
segment performance for the vyears ended AEBAZ2MDBHERET
31 December 2021 and 2020 is set out below: mR
2021
—EC--f
Sales of pitch Provision of
control Wind farm energy
systems and operation and storage
related Sales of wind maintenance management
components power business solutions Total
HERR
BEHRER BEHREER RERMETE
HEE % HERE BEEH BRRTAR @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARETRT ARB®TR ARETx AR%®TnT AR%ETxn
Reportable segment revenue PEEEEE e 257,782 22,539 32,439 104 312,864
Reportable segment profit o] 2 B9 3 A 23,511 12,667 9,640 55 45,873
Reportable segment assets AERSIHEE 239,790 124,749 22,309 1,912 388,760
2020
“F-FF
Sales of pitch Wind farm Provision of
control operation energy
systems and and storage
related  Sales of wind ~ maintenance  management
components power business solutions Total
HERR
EHZEGR RAEHEER REFEEER
A HERS EEXTE BRAT R @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBFTR ARBTR ARETR ARETR
Reportable segment revenue ERS B 283,847 20,258 34,790 — 338,895
Reportable segment profit AEHS HE 52,306 11,823 9,441 - 73,570
Reportable segment assets AERNHEE 254,576 120,239 19,549 — 394,364
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0175 R MY o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(RIESFIET  BRIRAREIITR)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WEEDEBHE (Z)
(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) SEHE(ZE)

(i) TEHAEBY 2 it FIHE1R

(ii) Reconciliations of reportable segment

revenues, profit or loss and assets

REENHE

2021 2020
—FT-—fF —_E_FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETF T
Revenue Ui 23
Reportable segment revenue A 2 Wy W= 312,864 338,895
Consolidated revenue e W 312,864 338,895
Profit i F
Reportable segment profit 2o EmF 45,873 73,570
Other revenue H fth Y 2 4,749 4,987
Other net (loss)/income Ha g A/ (E518) F58 (307) 202
Selling and distribution HERDHAX
expenses (5,832) (3,788)
Administrative and other THEEMELR
operating expenses (14,910) (21,228)
Net finance costs A& B AN F R (4,031) (5,721)
Share of loss of joint ventures D 1E& & R EIE1E (2,069) (666)
Consolidated profit before & BB R g A
taxation 23,473 47,356
Assets &aE
Reportable segment assets AIERHHEE 388,760 394,364
Interests in joint ventures REeE&nrmEs — 417
Deferred tax assets BELEHIBEE 201 269
Assets held for sale RIEHEEE 7,048 -
Loan to related parties and a  IRETFHEHEF LK —F
third party FE=ZHHER 25,382 —
Cash and cash equivalents BHeMREEEY 40,572 121,416
Pledged deposits EHEFEFER 42,448 30,960
Consolidated total assets HEEERE 504,411 547,426
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(Br3EmBIEE

CBRIAARESIR)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(iii)

Geographic information

I[FRS 8, Operating Segments,
identification and disclosure of
about an entity’s geographical areas, regardless
of the entity’s organisation (i.e. even if the
entity has a single reportable segment). The
Group operates within one geographical
location because all of its revenue was
generated in the PRC and most of
non-current assets and capital expenditure were
located/incurred in the PRC. Accordingly, no
geographical information is presented.

requires
information

its

5 OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET (LOSS)/

4 WERFBE|RE (F)

(b) SEFHE (&)

(iii) #E &
THELBNAGBEZE
BEBE—TZ®HH )
BRI E ERESR L E D

BREBA LB EERERD
wREBERNER - AEER—
EEANEe  RAEMER
SEFATEREBAED I
MBEEMEAR AR F
B, A B EE - Eik - B
EHMEE -

5 HiilhzmREMEE) WAF

INCOME &
(a) Other revenue (a) Hthuk sz
2021 2020
—¥—%F —E-FF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETR AREET T
VAT refund (Note i) WEB R (A E) 2,406 4,187
Government subsidies (Note i) BT 8 Bh (B atii ) 2,281 794
Others HAh 62 6
4,749 4,987
Notes: Vg
() Pursuant to Taxation Policy for Encouraging the () WBBCE—PEBEFEZEMERS

Development of Software and Integrated Circuits
Industry (Guofa [2011] No.4), enterprises engaged in
the sales of self-developed software in the PRC are
entitled to VAT refund to the extent that the
effective VAT rate of the sales of the software
products in the PRC exceeds 3% of the sales
amounts. During the years ended 31 December
2021 and 2020, the Group received such VAT refund
of RMB680,000 and RMB3,195,000 respectively.

%%E%%E%?E&ﬁmLM
(B 3 [2011]1564%%) - EHR B3R A
éa,\afﬁ;ﬁéﬁiﬁﬁﬁté‘num
¥ FEPBERAHEEHEGF
EGNERSERYN EBRHH
EFM3%H AR - REBZE
—E-—RZE-_FEF+=A
Z+—BHLEFE AEEHFIE
1S EBISER R A K%680,000
7T M AR #3,195,0007T °
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5 OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET (LOSS)/
INCOME (Continued)
(@) Other revenue (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

(Continued)

Pursuant to Taxation Policy for Encouraging the use
of wind power generation and promote the healthy
development of relevant industries (Caishui [2015]
No.74), enterprises selling self-produced power
products produced by wind power will be subject to
the policy of 50% VAT refund. During the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group
received such VAT refund of RMB1,726,000 and
RMB992,000 respectively.

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020, the Group received unconditional government
subsidies of RMB2,281,000 and RMB794,000
respectively, as encouragement of their contribution
in technology development and local economy.

(b) Other net (loss)/income

Notes to the Financial Statements

BT R I aE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRERBEE  TUARAREIIR)

5 HitilzmRkHEM(EEE) WAF

B (=)

(a) Hibuess (&)
HiaE : (&)
(i) (%8)

(ii)

BIESEA AR N EE RRER
HEXEREREORKBER (FH
[2015]%74%)  SHEBHRE HEE
BITAEENSHERNCES=E
S50% H) 18 B B R B ER o R
EZT - FRZTEZZTF+ =
A=+—HLEE X£EH 5
ESEHEEERERBTARE
1,726,0007T & A R #992,0007T °

HE-_ZTZ-_—FR-ZT_FF
+-A=+—HBItEE A&£H
2 B UER A R #52,281,0007T & A
R #794,0007T & £ {5 1 B AT 14
B EABEREMAZEREH
KEBREE -

(b) H it (E51R) W NFEH

2021 2020

—¥-—% —E_TF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AREFT ARETIT

Net exchange (loss)/gain &5 (E518), W2k F 58 (118) 252
Others Hb (189) (50)
(307) 202
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(RESFIET > BRIRARKEITR)

6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation
(crediting):

(a) Net finance costs

is arrived at after charging/

(=)]

B ¥t Ay iz F
EH

(a) MUER AT

B B B A T AR I RR (B2 ) AT &8

2021 2020
—FT—%F —E-TF
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AREFT AREETIT
Interest expenses on bank loans RITERFMBERAX 1,533 2,260
Interest expenses on loans due to  JEfT 5 = F EHF B X
third parties 2,597 3,162
Interest expense on lease HEBEMNBERAX
liabilities 305 66
Others Hib = 440
4,435 5,928
Interest income B WA (404) (207)
Net finance costs B & RN SRR 4,031 5,721
(b) Staff costs (b) EIRAF
2021 2020
—EB-—5F —E-EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFRT AREET T
Salaries, wages and other benefits Bl + T & K& H b 18 5| 22,713 15,667
Contributions to defined AT R FORIRET 23R
contribution retirement plan 2,016 657
24,729 16,324

’ 188 CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021



6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued)
(b) Staff costs (Continued)

(c)

Employees of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are
required to participate in a defined contribution
retirement plans administered and operated by the
municipal government. The Group’s PRC
subsidiaries contribute funds which are calculated on

certain percentages of the average employee salary

local

as agreed by the local municipal government to the
plan to fund the retirement benefits of the
employees.

contributions to the defined
retirement plans are expensed as

The Group's
contribution
incurred and not reduced by contributions forfeited
by those employees who leave the plans prior to
vesting fully in the contributions. The Group has no
obligation for the payment of
retirement benefits associated with the scheme
beyond the annual contributions described above.

other material

Notes to the Financial Statements

0175 R MY o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRERBEE  TUARAREIIR)

6 PBRBLATERF(E)

(b)

BIMK(E)
AEENTEMBARNEES
2NAEHTRFEEREENT
BETORARFE - NEEWHEN
BARRTEHRABRNEENER
KEH - HREBIZE T BRFR
AP REHMNSE T B D

= o
>

7N 52 [ [A) E BB AR SR IR AT 81 A9 R
RELERXH MEBREHRRE
2155 B AR At 81 M 1508 U e (R
HAERERRZFHRR R Lt
B RSN - AN SR BB R B ET
AN EMERRKENNKE
£ -

Other items (0 HIEH
2021 2020
—EB-—% —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETR ARBET T
Cost of inventories recognised as R AR X 27 &K A
expenses (Note /) (B ati) 251,139 252,578
Depreciation charges HEER
— owned property, plant and — BEBEOME - BER
equipment B 6,431 6,216
— right-of-use assets — ERAEEE 2,311 662
(Reversal)/provision of loss SHIRE 5 & E b E W Ek
allowance on trade and other HEE(BE),#BiE
receivables (452) 874
Listing expenses il — 11,553
Auditors’ remuneration 1% 85 B 7 B 1,500 2,580

TEARGERMREZERARLA
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(RESFIET > BRIRARKEITR)

6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 6 BK¥HFaRHE)
(c) Other items (Continued) (0 H#IER (&)
Notes: Kiaz -
(i) Cost of inventories recognised as expenses includes () BRAEAAIZEERABIEEEA

amounts relating to staff costs, depreciation of
property, plant and equipment and research and
development expenses, which are also included in
the respective total amounts disclosed separately

above or in Note 6(b) for each of these types of

BIKA %% BERKER
ERMERAXZRIE EHER
TR 3h & B R BIEE A £ XX T R
6(b) 1 5 3% B& 1) X IR A8 58 -

expenses.
7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 GEEBFTRAFAEH
STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statements of (a) HEERRANBIES:

profit or loss represents:

2021 2020
—¥-—% —E_FTF
RMB’000 RMB‘000
ARETR ARET T
Current tax — PRC Corporate BPEABIIE — PEILZEFRT
Income Tax "H
Provision for the year FREAE 2,080 7,103
Over-provision in respect of prior B FE 2 HBEEE
years (20) —
Deferred tax EEHRIE
Origination and reversal of R EREMNES RO
temporary differences (K1 :£23b))
(Note 23(b)) 68 (131)
2,128 6,972
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(RIESFIET  BRIRAREIITR)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 HZEEBRAREHR(Z
STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(Continued)

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statements of (a) HZEEERANBIER: (&)

profit or loss represents: (Continued)

Notes: (Continued) Brat - (&)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the British Virgin Islands, the Group is
not subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands
and the British Virgin Islands.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law and
the respective regulations, the subsidiaries of the
Group which operate in PRC is subject to Corporate
Income Tax at a rate of 25% on its taxable income.

According to the Administrative Measures for
Determination of High Tech Enterprises (Guokefahuo
[2016] No.32), Jiangyin Hongyuan New Energy
Technology Co., Ltd. obtained the qualification as a
high-tech enterprise and was entitled to a
preferential income tax rate of 15% for the years
from 2021 to 2023.

Pursuant to Caishui [2011] No.58 and Caishui [2020]
No.23 Notice on Tax Policies for Further
Implementation of Western Regions Development
Strategy, Datang Gucang Duolun New Energy Co.,
Ltd. established in the western regions of the PRC,
and is entitled to the preferential income tax rate of
15% from its incorporation to 2030.

Pursuant to Caishui [2008] No.46 Notice on the
Execution of the Catalogue of Public Infrastructure
Projects Entitled for Preferential Tax Treatment, wind
farm of the Group, which are approved after
1 January 2008, are entitled to a tax holiday of a
3-year full exemption followed by a 3-year 50%
exemption commencing from their respective years in
which their first operating income is derived. Datang
Gucang Duolun New Energy Co., Ltd. was entitled
to full exemption for the years from 2016 to 2018
and a preferential income tax rate of 7.5% for the
years from 2019 to 2021.

0]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

BERESEHERABERARES
ZERRER NEBBEUB
THHERERRBEARES
Frig#i o

BRETFRECEMSHREREBR
Bl RPEGENREENER
Bl 7R 4225% 1) T R 51 EL B SR B R
ABREERMAER -

BECE AT © ¥R T E BB
SEV(E B3 M [2016]5325%) © T
fEohEF e RE R AR A REEG
BB CEER BMR=Z2F
T FE_T_-FRAEZHAEHR
FTiS B E15%

1R CRE R R A B e 78 3 K B 3% B
WS /G A A U SR ) R Y 38 A0 ) (B
Fi[2011]55585% I B #i[2020] 5523
5 RAPBEIKZHNRNERE
Z ¥ EEIR A R A A A R E
KRYEZE=FTFZHEEMRE
R E15% -

BIECH RS - R BBER
MITRAEERBIEEE CEMB
TRIB B o% A B8 R &3 &) (B
Fi[2008]%465%) R =TT )\ &F
—A—B 2Bt ERENAEHR
RESZAZERTRERFLER
ANEFRBEZ=FRHBME
WA B=FREBBAERD
MEERE - AEBRREZRAER
BRARAIR_ZE—R"EFE_ZFT
—N\FEE2EHERERRZ
T NFEE-_T - —FIRI5%H
BEAERB R -
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(RESFIET > BRIRARKEITR)

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 ZFEREBRABFAES (&
STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(Continued)
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and profit (b) ¥&iE A ® T B A9 B8 B 3T B BR
before taxation at applicable tax rates: Bt A i ) 89 E1 AR -
2021 2020
—FT-—fF —_E_FF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREBFT ARETTT

Profit before taxation B 7% A1 5 A 23,473 47,356
Notional tax on profit before BR A0 Al M 8 2 &R IE

taxation, calculated at the PRC (F R BE B R 25%

statutory tax rate of 25% TE) 5,869 11,839
Over-provision in respect of prior B FE 2 BEEEE

years (20) —
Tax effect of non-deductible PO HIMAT R IEZE

expenses 1,047 3,016
Tax effect of tax losses not AERMIBEENRIE

recognised TE 1,443 641
Additional deductions for research  fiff % 5 S /9 58 SN0 R

and development expenses (2,671) (1,863)
Effect of PRC tax concessions EMENPEBEESR

obtained A (3,540) (6,661)
Actual tax expense ERBMIERY 2,128 6,972
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BT R I aE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(RIESFIET  BRIRAREIITR)

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 8 EFWs
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section EEMESRB(EA R RGN FE383(1) 1K
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part RAABI(BRBESMmER) ROIDFE2H
2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about BEMT :

Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

Contributions

Salaries, to defined

allowances contribution

Directors’ and benefits Discretionary  retirement
fees in kind bonuses plan 2021 Total
Fe EBMR EHEHRE®R —FT--—F
ESHe BEYER BBl EHEIRHR @t

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFRT ARETFRT AR®TRE AR®TRE AR®TR

Executive directors HBITES
Cheng Liquan Richard BEE2R = 502 42 = 544
Cheng Lifu Cliff BER = 685 = 146 831

Non-Executive directors ERTES

Li Hao ENE 135 = = = 135

Wang Lubin TEW 135 — — — 135

Independent non- BAFPITES

executive directors

Yip Chun On Eex 126 = = = 126

Li Shusheng TEH 135 = = = 135

Kang Jian B 135 — — — 135
666 1,187 42 146 2,041
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(RIEBHFIETE  BRIKARKEFITR)
8 DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 8 EEM=(E)
Contributions
Salaries, to defined
allowances contribution
Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary retirement
fees in kind bonuses plan 2020 Total
e RAER EREMTERAR Z—TZTF
ik EmER BISIEA  FrEIRIHER Bt
RMB‘000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AREFT ARBTT AR®Tr AR®Tr AR®BTrx
Executive directors BITES
Cheng Liquan Richard BEx — 421 — — 421
Cheng Lifu Cliff BERR-_Z=%
(appointed on F=A++tRHE
17 March 2020) Z ) — 597 — 146 743
Non-Executive FRITES
directors
Li Hao (appointed on EHERZTZEHF
19 March 2020) =AthBE
ZE) 28 — — — 28
Wang Lubin (appointed ITEW(R=Z=Z
on 19 March 2020) F=ZATNHE
Z1) 28 — — — 28
Independent non- BAFPITES
executive directors
Yip Chun On (appointed E%#Z(RZZE=%
on 4 September 2020) FLAMAE
Z1) 28 — — — 28
Li Shusheng (appointed ZERAR=ZZT=ZF
on 4 September 2020) FAAMAE
%E) 28 — — — 28
Kang Jian (appointed on (R -_T =T F
4 September 2020) NAME E? %) 28 - — — 28
140 1,018 — 146 1,304
Both the executive directors are key management HE - r_ZE-_ZEF+=AHA

personnel of the Group during the vyears ended ST+—BHLEFE MBERTEFHARN
31 December 2021 and 2020 and their remuneration RAIEFEEBRAE MEFRLEXER
disclosed above include those for services rendered by MR ERESEATIEEE ASREM
them as key management personnel. PRIEEFH S -
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8

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 8
None of these directors and any of the highest paid
individuals set out in Note 9 received any inducements or
compensation for loss of office or waived any emoluments
during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

INDIVIDUALS WITH THE HIGHEST 9
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two
(2020: two) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed

in Note 8. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of

the other three (2020: three) individuals are as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements

BT R I aE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(RIESFIET  BRIRAREIITR)

EEME ()
REE-F--—GR-F-FF+_A
S+—RLEFE - S DR EE R
FHEAREFSEAREMARES X
BB ELREETTH -

manE@EA

hasmFeEAT MHE(ZFE_F
FMB)EFNHF LN ESRKE - HR

=R(CEZZEF  ZR)EANF A
BEME :

2021 2020

—¥-—% —E_TF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFR ARETTT

Salaries and other emoluments e kEMmie 1,515 849
Discretionary bonuses B E AL 504 400

Contributions to defined contribution & %8 {ft TR MR 5T &I MY =X
retirement plan 536 114
2,555 1,363

The emoluments of the three (2020: three) individuals

R (CE-FF  ZR)RSFEEA

with the highest emoluments are within the following NEH e BN IATAR
bands:
2021 2020
—ET—% —ETTF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
ANE A
HK$ nil to HK$1,000,000 =% 70 %£1,000,000% T 2 3
HK$1,000,000 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,000/ JT 22,000,000
AT 1 —
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B RS SRR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Br3EmBIEE

CBRIAARESIR)

10 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

10 BiR&EF

Basic earnings per share (a) BEREXET
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based BRERBFNEARARR L BERR
on the profit attributable to ordinary equity REAE & I A R #21,069,0007T (=
shareholders of the Company of RMB21,069,000 T -FF  ARK¥40,173,0007T) &
(2020: RMB40,173,000) and the weighted average of FRNBEETMEFTH I BER
ordinary shares 250,000,000 (2020: 199,795,082 250,000,000 (= & = & F :
shares after adjusting for the capitalisation issue in 199,795,082/ KB —_ZT_TF &
2020) in issue during the year, calculated as follows: TMEBITELAR)GE  FEW
T
Weighted average number of ordinary shares MEFHEBREE
2021 2020
e —_E_TF
Issued ordinary shares at R—HA—BEZETEAR
1 January 250,000,000 10,000
Effect of capitalisation issue BERETHRE
(Note 24(c)) (Bt 5t24(c)) — 187,490,000
Effect of shares issued by initial BRARBEEEITROD
public offering (Note 24(c)) & (M 5t24(c)) = 12,295,082
Weighted average number of R+ZA=+—HAHK
ordinary shares at 31 December T RS A 250,000,000 199,795,082
Diluted earnings per share (b) BhEERT

Diluted earnings per share for the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020 is the same as the
basic earnings per share as there were no potentially
dilutive ordinary shares issued.

HRTEZITEBESHEL AR &
EE - FRZIFZZEF+ A
S+—RALEFENSREERF H
EREARAFIER -
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11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(a)

Reconciliation of carrying amount

Notes to the Financial Statements

BT R I aE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(RIESFIET  BRIRAREIITR)

1M1 VX -BEERRE
(a) FRTE{E¥ER

Generators Office
Leasehold Plant and and other  equipment
land buildings  equipment  and others Total
BER BERE BAERE
HELH #¥ HipaR s REft @zt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTE ARBTR ARBTR ARBTRT ARBT:R
Cost: B
At 1 January 2020 RZEZZTF
—A—8 3,056 6,593 114,247 545 124,441
Additions wNE 43 1,296 893 5,020 7,252
At 31 December 2020 and RZE-ZF+-A
1 January 2021 =T-BRZZ
——%-A—-A 3,099 7,889 115,140 5,565 131,693
Additions NE — 3,593 1,712 349 5,654
Disposals & - (395) - - (395)
At 31 December 2021 \_F_—-F
+ZR=+—H 3,099 11,087 116,852 5914 136,952
Accumulated depreciation: RitiRE:
At 1 January 2020 RZZE_ZF
—H—H (235) (1,648) (21,534) (350) (23,767)
Charge for the year FRMB (62) (696) (5,790) (330) (6,878)
At 31 December 2020 and RZZEZTE+ZAR
1 January 2021 =+-HRZ=%
——#—-f—H (297) (2,344) (27,324) (680) (30,645)
Charge for the year FRMR (63) (1,629) (5,941) (1,109) (8,742)
Disposals & — 395 — — 395
At 31 December 2021 RZE_—%
—RA=+—-A (360) (3,578) (33,265) (1,789) (38,992)
Net book value: AREFE
At 31 December 2021 RZE_—%
+=ZA=+—-A 2,739 7,509 83,587 4,125 97,960
At 31 December 2020 RZZ-ZF
+-A=+—*H 2,802 5,545 87,816 4,885 101,048
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(RESFIET > BRIRARKEITR)

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

(@) Reconciliation of carrying amount (Continued)
Notes:

(i) As at 31 December 2021, property certificates of
certain properties with an aggregate net book value
of RMB3,491,000 (2020: RMB3,737,000),
respectively, are yet to be obtained.

(i) Certain property, plant and equipment of the Group
were pledged as security for bank loans. Details are

"M Y% BERRE(E)

(a) BREEHAR(%Z)
Hrat

i R=ZF=——F+=ZA=+—8"
BREFER A AR3,491,000
T(Z T2 F AR
3,737,0007T) K9 & T ¥ % 14 K X
SMEEE -

(i) AEEWETHE BEIRE
EEMABRITERNEIRR - 7F

set out as follows: EolE AT
2021 2020
—E-—% —EETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARET T
Leasehold land HEEL — 2,802
Generators and other equipment BEMREMEE = 64,662
= 67,464

(b) Right-of-use assets
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use
assets by class of underlying asset is as follows:

(b) EHEEE
HIAREERMNETNERBEE
BREDFEDMIIFHMT

2021 2020
—T-—%F —EETF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETTT

Leasehold land held for own use, #{EERMEE - -

carried at depreciated cost in B AR B 42 4T B B AR B

the PRC, with remaining lease B R A

term of between 10 and 50 102504

years 2,739 2,802
Plant and buildings leased for own FfEEE AKE LIEF -

use, carried at depreciated cost B E K ARSI BR 3,896 1,809
Other equipment and others for B A H fh 5% s & Bt

own use, carried at depreciated BRITEK AT R

cost 3,454 4,355

10,089 8,966
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(RIESFIET  BRIRAREIITR)

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 1M1 YE -BERRE(E)
(Continued)
(b) Right-of-use assets (Continued) (b) ERESEZE)
The analysis of expense items in relation to leases RIEZEREREENRAZIER D
recognised in profit or loss is as follows: Mo T -
2021 2020
—F-—fF —T-FTF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETTT

Depreciation charge of RIEBEERMNE HH
right-of-use assets by class CTREEENEER
of underlying asset:
Leasehold land ME i 63 62
Plant and buildings W E REF 1,347 450
Other equipment and others Hua & MEAM 901 150
2,311 662
Interest on lease liabilities ME&EN B (A it6(a))
(Note 6(a)) 305 66
Expense relating to short-term FARHBEENRAX
leases 476 123
During the year ended 31 December 2021, additions BHE-_T-_—F+-A=+—8H1
to right-of-use assets were RMB3,434,000 (2020: FE ARENGERAEEERARE
RMB5,801,000). This amount primarily related to the 3,434,000 (ZE=ZFF . AR®
capitalised lease payments under new tenancy 5,801,0007T) - Z & fE £ Z M
agreements. ERBEBETHERNCESERIBEH -
Details of total cash outflow for leases, the maturity HEMBEEeRTLARE HEAED
analysis of lease liabilities and the future cash o RE ARABNEERES
outflows arising from leases that are not yet B R R IR &7 B 515 9 B SR M
commenced are set out in Notes 19(e), 22 and 19(e) ~ 22X%25(b) °

25(b), respectively.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(RESFIET > BRIRARKEITR)

12 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 12 REBASM#ER
The following list contains only the particulars of TREFEFEXELAEEER BE
subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets or FEENNEBRRFIE - BREEHAN
liabilities of the Group. The class of shares held is FrIfsRIDERI R T AR -

ordinary unless otherwise stated.

Proportion of ownership interest

BAEERLLH
Place of Particulars of Group's
incorporation issued and paid-up  effective Held by the Held by a
Name of Company and business capital interest  Company subsidiary  Principal activities
SRR EETR A&EEN @BEAAT HMEAT

AT EH TEhE HERAEE  BERER tCE] RE IEERED

China Transport Real Time The British Virgin United States Dollar 100% 100% — Investment holding
Service Co., Ltd. Islands ("US$") 1
(“China Transport”)

B R (R BR 7 HEEBARES (EA(ETH)) 100% 100% —  REHER
BRAR(HERZRE])

Jiangyin Hongyuan New Energy ~ The PRC US$5,000,000 100% — 100% Integration, manufacturing and sales
Technology Co., Ltd.* of pitch control systems and
(IRsARFaRBIE related components and wind farm
BRAF) operation and maintenance

business

T2 5L A B R R % HE 5,000,000 T 100% = 100% Ba HRERHEZELHZARRA
AR BEANREAESES REEEE

Beijing Nature Heli New Energy ~ The PRC RMB5,000,000 100% — 100% Investment holding
Technology Co., Ltd.

(“Beijing Nature”)* (4t S 4
SENFERURERE
NG

IRHBRENFEFNERAER  HH A K #35,000,0007C 100% = 100%  REER
BEERA(IRAR])*

Datang Gucang Duolun The PRC RMB33,000,000 100% — 100%  Wind power generation and sales
New Energy Co., Ltd.*

("Datang Gucang”)
(REREZRAER
BRRA)

AERESRAELR HE A K #£33,000,0007T 100% = 100% RBEHBEEREE
BRAR(RERED*

Naguan Intellectual Energy The PRC HKD10,000,000 100% 100% —  Provision of energy storage
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.* management solutions
(WRBERR ORI
BRRA])

MRE SR ORI i 10,000,000/ 7T 100% 100% — RERERFEEEBRANE
BRRA

Nature Energy Investment The PRC s 100% 100% == Investment holding
(Jiangsu) Co., Ltd.*

(xR e R E (1E#)
BRRA)
MRERRE(CIH)ERAR HE = 100% 100% —  REZK
E All the subsidiaries in the PRC are established as limited o FrERBEMBARIHKIABEREAR
liability companies. Al e
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(RIFESHET  TAUNAREIIR)
13 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 13 REEQTHHER

2021 2020

—¥-—% —E_FTF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR ARETF T

Share of net assets DIEEEFE — 417

Share of loss DIEEE 2,069 666
Details of the Group’s interests in joint ventures which is AEEREGERAINER (RS TR

accounted for using equity method in the consolidated KPERAEREAR) FBINHAT

financial statements are set out below:

Proportion of ownership interest

BRERRILH
Form of Place of Particulars of Group's
business incorporgtion .is.sued qnd effective  Held by the Held by

Name of joint venture structure and business paid-in capital interest ~ Company a subsidiary  Principal activities

gL R EEIR XEE HEAE HBNEBAT

SEATEH EBERERL  BERE HRRAHE BRED #H #E  IERBED

Datong Fengyuan Energy Technology Incorporated The PRC RMB20,000,000 50% — 50%  Investment holding
Co., Ltd. (“Datong Fengyuan”)

(Kﬁ\)i%‘b'tﬁ%?ﬁﬂ?iﬁlﬂﬂﬂ)

AEETERHRERAR ML bl AR 20,000,000 50% = 50%  REER
(TKREZR])

Linggiu County Fengyuan Energy Incorporated The PRC RMB33,780,000 50% - 50%  Wind power generation and
Techno\ogy Co., Ltd. (“Lingqiu sales
Fengyuan”)

( E%/a/fﬁﬁb/ﬁﬂ&ﬁ E
BESE R EREAR R EX 3L P AR #33,780,0007C 50% = 50%  BABEREE

(18-

R-ZFB-_—F+-F AKREE-FHR
PEEMKRZINE=T 2B (BT
VYBREEZERS BULAKERED M

In December 2021, the Group and a third-party company
incorporated in the PRC (the “Buyer”) entered into an
equity transfer agreement, pursuant to which the Group

agreed to transfer all of the Group’s equity interests in
Datong Fengyuan and Linggiu Fengyuan to the Buyer at a
cash consideration of approximately RMB9.3 million by
two instalments. Subject to certain pre-conditions in
connection with the operations of Datong Fengyuan and
Linggiu Fengyuan, the equity transfer was not completed
yet and is expected to be completed in 2022. Therefore,
interests in joint ventures were reclassified as assets held
for sale (see Note 15) as at 31 December 2021.

o R B

HUAHARKIIEETHRESREFAR
EERNKFEE TR E LR 2 200
BETEH BEARKREINELE
TR IE & M A TR R AR %E@L
EHATHR G WEEENR T - —F5
K-Blt R - —F+-_A=+—
H REERRNEREETHERI
EREEE(RKME15) -

EHEEBRERAS —B-—F5% 201 ‘



Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(RIFESHETE  TAUAARBIITR)
13 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 13 ﬁ’é EATIMER (F)
The information of joint ventures is as follow: BEERNRNERTHAT -
2021 2020
—F-—F —T_FTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARET T
Carrying amount of joint ventures in R AFEMRIEHA
the consolidated statements of ~AEBREAE
financial position = 417
2021 2020
—F-—fF —T_TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARET T
The Group's share of joint ventures  AEBEMEE R RHEE
Loss from operations KEEBER (2,069) (666)
Total comprehensive income HERKERE (2,069) (666)
14 CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 14 EHEEREWER
LIABILITIES
(a) Contract assets () EHEE
2021 2020
—T-—F —T-THF
RMB’000 RMB‘000
ARBTR AR®ET T
Contract assets arising from BREENRE :
— Retention receivables on the — HEEREH RS
sales of pitch control K B B8 48 1 9 e Uk
systems and related BEe
components 2,595 762
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14 CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Contract assets (Continued)

The Group normally allows a credit period of 30 to
90 days to its customers. For retention receivables,
the due dates usually fall from five to six years after
the delivery and acceptance of pitch control systems
and related components.

The amount of contract assets that is expected to be
recovered after more than one year s
RMB2,595,000 (2020: RMB762,000), all of which
relates to retentions.

Notes to the Financial Statements

BT R I aE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRERBEE  TUARAREIIR)

14 EHNEERENAERF(E)

(a)

BHEE(#F)

AEBE— R4 TEF30E0KXRHE
EM-pEKEFEMmME  2HA
BEREREHAGEREBENTR
M EBEEAENRE-

TEHRBA—FEETRENE L
BEESBEHAARM25950005T (=
T2 F . AR¥762,0007T) ' &
B e T 2 AE R o

Contract liabilities (b) BHEE
2021 2020
—¥F-—F —T_THF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARET T
Contract liabilities arising from the & & 58 15 | X 45 K& 4078
sales of pitch control systems HEEENEHNAE
and related components
— Billings in advance of — B E DR
performance 772 —
When the Group receives a deposit before the EAS B R EEEE RS AT I EUR
production activity commences this will give rise to T UHBRENRERELESNE
contract liabilities at the start of a contract, until the B BEEzBERRKaEAKRE 2

revenue recognised exceeds the amount of the
deposit. The amount of the deposit, if any, is
negotiated on a case by case basis with customers.

All of the contract liabilities are expected to be
recognised as revenue within one year.

TEAREBEREERAERAA

H-ReBE(WA)REBEABER
BEFHE -

FBEAKNRERMERN —FARR
AW o
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(RESFIET > BRIRARKEITR)

15 ASSETS HELD FOR SALE 15 BHIEHESE

2021 2020
—EF=-—% —ZF
RMB’'000 Rl\/lB 000
ARETT ARBEFTIT
Assets classified as held for sale DEABELNEEE

— Disposal of the interests in joint ~— HFEAL QA MER

ventures (Note 13) (B #£13) 7,048 —
16 INVENTORIES 16 #BE

() ZFEMBRARNEERRE:

(a) Inventories in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise:

2021 2020
—B-—% —EF
RMB’000 RMB 000
ARETR AR®ET T
Raw materials JR 1 10,791 8,320
Work in progress & m 6,652 5,519
Finished goods UK 620 2,344
Goods in transit THEEm 587 406
18,650 16,589
(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories (b) ERZEBHAIZIRTABENEES
recognised as an expense and included in ERHIEHENOT :
profit or loss is as follows:
2021 2020
—EB-—% —ZF
RMB’000 RMB 000
ARETR AR®ET T
Carrying amount of inventories EEFEREE
sold 251,139 252,578
Provision for write-down of 7 & OB B
inventories — —
251,139 252,578
All inventories are expected to be recovered within FIEFERBER —FARKE -

one year.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(RIESFIET  BRIRAREIITR)

17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17 EShHMGBEWKRIA
2021 2020
—F-—F —T_TF
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBFRT ARETTT

Trade and bills receivable, net of loss 2 5 ERIE R EWELE

allowance Nk EERE 267,383 271,408
Prepayments e RIB 1,775 2,836
Other receivables H b fE W50 IR 397 1,721
Total F 269,555 275,965

All of trade and other receivables balances are expected to FrBEEB S REMBUWRIBARTERR —
be recovered or recognised as expense within one year. FRWEHERERX -
Trade and bills receivable B EKHRIEREKER
2021 2020
—E=-—% —TTF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARBTT

Measured at amortised cost REHEK AT E
— Trade receivables — B 5 EWRIE 185,204 221,565
— Bills receivable (Notes) — BRI (K7:7) 22,042 48,763
Measured at fair value through other & AFEFF AE M2 mE kS
comprehensive income (FVOCI) (MRATFEFAEMEE
W=t E
— Bills receivable — RWEE 61,476 2,871
268,722 273,199
Less: loss allowance W BEEE (1,339) (1,791)
267,383 271,408
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BESHET  BERAREHR)
17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17 B RHEMEWKIRIE(Z)
(Continued)
Trade and bills receivable (Continued) BESEWRIEREKRZRE(Z)
Notes: Hiat -

Certain amounts of the Group’s bills receivable measured at
FVOCI were held for collection of contractual cash flows and for
selling the financial asset,
receivable represented solely payments of principal and interest.

where cash flows of the bills

The bills accepted by banks with high credit quality were
derecognised when they were endorsed or discounted. In the
opinion of the directors, the Group did not retain substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of these bills, because the
credit risk of the acceptance banks was very low and the Group
had transferred out all interest risk of the bills upon
endorsement or discount. As the transferees had the practical
ability to further endorse or discount the bills, control of these
bills were transferred upon endorsement or discount and thus
they were derecognised. As at 31 December 2021, bills endorsed

AEERAFEFALGEZEKETENE
WEBNETERDARBRENRSRER
HESREEMFE ETREAERNRS
MEERRETE RAEM AT -

EEEEZRNRITALZEEN S ENMIERE
RIEER -EERA AEETARARBZES
BHAERNEAIS>RAREER  RE R
HIETHNEERBRIEBSE mMASEREE
SARNEREEMBFERKREYR - AR
XEANEGE—SEERUFREENETR 4L
70 E R A 2= sk 8L IR B A It S E R AT
BB il&tﬂ%ﬁﬁgtﬁﬁf@oﬁé_;ﬁ:—i
+—_A=+—H EEEXEBRERKILER
BEHARIANEESE AR AR20,897,0007T

or discounted and derecognised, but yet reached maturity (ZZTZZF : AR%12,346,000) © fi# 7 iR
amounted to RMB20,897,000 (2020: RMB12,346,000). This TARERIFEEERE A RAEER
represents the Group’s maximum exposure to loss should the ﬁ'iﬁ)%?ﬁﬁ\ R o ML F R RITNAEERA
acceptance banks fail to settle the bills on maturity date. BEMEARK o
However, non-settlement by those acceptance banks was
considered unlikely.
As of the end of the reporting period, the aging analysis RS AR RIEFEWEER B R
of trade and bills receivable, based on the revenue Eﬂ%ﬁéﬁmﬁ%ﬂgw RIE K B R R /Y
recognition date and net of loss allowance, is as follows: PRlie D AT SIS
2021 2020
—F-—F E_TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFR AR T
Within 1 year —F R 246,953 260,025
Over 1 year but within 2 years tiE—FERFENR 9,047 11,383
Over 2 years but within 3 years HBMFE=FNK 11,383 —
267,383 271,408
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17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

Generally, the Group's trade receivables are due within 30
to 90 days from the date of billing, except for the tariff
premium, representing 56% (2020: 52%) of total wind
power sales for the year ended 31 December 2021. The
collection of such tariff premium is subject to the
allocation of funds by relevant government authorities to
local grid company, which therefore takes a relatively long
time for settlement. As at 31 December 2021, the tariff
premium receivables included in the trade and other
receivables amounted to RMB34,566,000 (2020:

RMB23,222,000).

Pursuant to Caijian [2012] No.102 Notice on the Interim
Measures for Administration of Subsidy Funds for Tariff
Premium of Renewable Energy (7] £ 4 &R 5 {8 M AN # B)
BB ETHER) jointly issued by the Ministry of
Finance, the National Development and Reform
Commission and the National Energy Administration in
March 2012, a set of standardised procedures for the
settlement of the tariff premium has come into force
since 2012 and approvals on a project by project basis are
required before the allocation of funds to local grid
companies. The directors of the Company are of the
opinion that the tariff premium receivables are fully
recoverable considering that there are no loss experiences
with the grid company in the past and the tariff premium
is funded by the PRC government.

Details of the Group's analysis of credit risk are set out in
Note 25(a).

As at 31 December 2021, bills receivable of
RMB16,544,000 (2020: RMB78,501,000) were pledged as
security for issuance of bills payable.

As at 31 December 2021, trade receivables of RMB nil
(2020: RMB23,662,000) were pledged as security for bank
loans.

17

Notes to the Financial Statements

FAAs SRR M &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(RIESFIET  BRIRAREIITR)

B RHEMEWKMRIE(E)

AR B B 5 UK Hﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁf’uﬁr
30K E90K A 'JHH(IE {B Fft 0 &6
M) BRRERE—T-_—F+ - A= -I—*

BIEFERESHELEBEN6% (T _F
F:52%) BEEEEMMAEKERA
BARAREREHERARAIENE S
mE  AENRERER R =_—F
+—HZ+ H st AESZRHEAEK

HRENEEMMERKRRIEAEARK
34,566,00071:(: T _ZTF ARK
23,222,0007T) °

BREVERIS BEBRERINEZEE -
BREBRRBNR-_E——F=AHF T
WEARNEE(TBERREEN INHEE
© B Y ITHE) R @& (B #[2012]102
%) REESENNEMROEELRE
FEZE ——FRBER WIKREBEH X —
EHBLE 2RI HESENTEH®ESE
WAE - ARREBRA  EUREEM M
EHEA2HKE AAHEERAARBE
VEELBABEEENNER+TRERF
EBo

AEBEEERBODITAFHR
25(a) °

A M

RZEZ—F+ZA=1+—H EBKE
B AR16,544000(ZE=ZFF . A
K #78,501,0007T) E R A EITEMNZE
B o

R-F-—&+-A=+—0 AP
BERARBET (2 —2%  \RK
23,662,0007%) H 4 4R 17 B R A0 514 -
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(RESFIET > BRIRARKEITR)

18 LOANS TO RELATED PARTIES AND A THIRD 18 IRBHUEFHEAIR—BZBE=HFNE
=h

PARTY A

2021 2020

—FT-—fF —_E_FF

RMB’000 RMB‘000

ARETR ARET T

Loans to related parties RETHEHBTNER 24,382 —

Loans to a third party RBHT—RBE=ZFTHWERK 1,000 —

25,382 —
As at 31 December 2021, loans to related parties and a RZZE-_—F+_A=+—H &HEHF
third party were interest-free, unsecured and repayable no BB AR —R2E=7TNERRRE &
later than 31 December 2022. ERETER T _—_F+=_A=+—

HATE R o

There was no amount due but unpaid, nor any loss RZBE-Z_—F+_A=+—HB %Z&
allowance made against the principal amount of these RO ASETMBBARTESRE  TET

loans at 31 December 2021. fAIES IR -

19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, PLEDGED 19 2 RIIELZEY - CIEHEDR

DEPOSITS AND OTHER CASHFLOW EEGBIRERESH
INFORMATION
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a) RMERBRLLEEYERIE:
2021 2020
—E——s —E-—zf
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARSFRT ARBTTT

Cash at bank RITHE % 40,572 121,406
Cash in hand FHEES — 10
40,572 121,416
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(RIESFIET  BRIRAREIITR)

19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, PLEDGED
DEPOSITS AND OTHER CASHFLOW
INFORMATION (Continued)

19 HERkBEEEFEY  EHHFER
REMBEEREEH ()

(b) Pledged deposits comprise: (b) EHREBEERBIE:
2021 2020
—F-—F —T_TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR®ET T
Pledged deposits for issuance of  AEITEMNEHHDIEA
bills payable T 42,448 30,960

The pledged bank deposits will be released upon the
settlement of bills payable.

BERBTEIERENEARE
R BR o

we (1

BREmGAREERTREHR

(c) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash (c)
generated from operations

2021 2020
—E-—% —EEF
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
ik ARETR AR F T
Profit before taxation B 72 A1 A 23,473 47,356
Adjustments for: AT SEFAE
Depreciation of property, M- BE &
plant and equipment HETE 6(c) 8,742 6,878
Net finance costs BhE R AN F R 6(a) 4,031 5,721
Share of loss of joint DIEEERA
ventures B 18 13 2,069 666
(Reversal)/provision of loss STIRE S M EAM
allowance on trade and JE W R IB B 1B
other receivables (Bm), BE 6(c) (452) 874
Changes in working capital: EZ2&&&EH) :
Increase in contract assets EHEEEN (1,833) (762)
Increase in inventories T E 2 (2,061) (6,851)
Decrease/(increase) in trade 5 & H W IR
and other receivables B, (38 ) 6,862 (127,537)
Increase in pledged deposits B 3 # 17 338 o0 (11,488) (24,363)
(Decrease)/increase in trade B 5 & H b e 5B
and other payables R ),/ 18 0 (18,794) 119,602
Cash generated from KEMER®
operations 10,549 21,584

HEARERMBEERARAR —E_—FFH 209 ‘



Notes to the Financial Statements

0175 R Y o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(RESFIET > BRIRARKEITR)

19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, PLEDGED 19 HR&RIAEEEY  SHHER

DEPOSITS AND OTHER CASHFLOW REMBIRSTEER(Z)

INFORMATION (Continued)

(d) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (d) RIEFHRELEEREHER
financing activities
The table below details changes in the Group's TRAMAEERETHELENE
liabilities from financing activities, including both B2y AFEREIIREEY-
cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from MERHELENEBEERSRED
financing activities are liabilities for which cash flows KERREESREEAEBLER
were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the ERERPHIEAMEGHNERS
Group's consolidated cash flow statement as cash MENBIE-

flows from financing activities.

Bank loans
and other Interest Lease
borrowings payable liabilities Total
RITERR
Hip &R FEfHHI 8 HEAR st

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR

(Note 20) (Note 21) (Note 22)

(H%E20) (HsE21) (M&t22)

At 1 January 2021 R-¥F--%-H-8 93,572 21,924 6,217 121,713
Changes from financing cash flows: MERSRERS:
Capital element of lease rentals paid BEREEHSNERTS — — (2,056) (2,056)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ENEERESHFIEHS = = (305) (305)
Proceeds from bank loans RITEFM Fﬁ ﬁyﬂ 10,000 — - 10,000
Proceeds from loans due to a third party J,Zﬁ LEZHERN

EES I;E 15,000 = = 15,000
Repayment of bank loans RITEFNER (46,195) — - (46,195)
Repayment of loans due to third parties EBRENE=ZHER (21,400) — - (21,400)
Interest paid BRFE = (1,533) - (1,533)
Total changes from financing cash flows BERSRELDA (42,595) (1,533) (2,361) (46,489)
Other changes: Hih 28
New finance leases MRERE = - 3,435 3,435
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes NEEZZHTE (707) — — (707)
Interest expenses (Note 6(a)) HMERY (W E6(a) ) — 4,130 305 4,435
At 31 December 2021 R-®B=--%£+=R

=+-8 50,270 24,521 7,596 82,387
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19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, PLEDGED
DEPOSITS AND OTHER CASHFLOW
INFORMATION (Continued)

(d) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (d)
financing activities (Continued)

19 RERBEFEY ESHHBER
REMBEEREEH ()

METHRMELRBEYERE)

Bank loans
and other Interest Lease
borrowings payable liabilities Total
ROERR
Hi g3 JER B HEAE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT AR®ETrx
(Note 20) (Note 21) (Note 22)
(B 5£20) (H#E21) (W 7£22)
At 1 January 2020 R-¥-%%-A-H 93,210 19,272 1,024 113,506
Changes from financing cash flows: MERERERS:
Capital element of lease rentals paid EREERSNEAT S - - (608) (608)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ENEERERHFIEH D - - (66) (66)
Proceeds from bank loans RITEFMAMEFE 32,662 — — 32,662
Repayment of bank loans BIERMER (29,300) - - (29,300)
Repayment of loans due to third parties EBEENEZHER (3,000) — — (3,000)
Interest paid BfFE - (2,770) — (2,770)
Total changes from financing cash flows BERSREZDEH 362 (2,770) (674) (3,082)
Other changes: R %8 :
New finance leases HRERE — — 5,801 5,801
Interest expenses (Note 6(a)) FEEY (Hit6(a) — 5,422 66 5,488
At 31 December 2020 R-B-%%£+-AH
=+-8 93,572 21,924 6,217 121,713
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19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, PLEDGED 19 IR2 RIS %X EY - CHEEER

DEPOSITS AND OTHER CASHFLOW EHMWBEEREER (Z)
INFORMATION (Continued)
(e) Total cash outflow for leases (e) HERSKHEAE
Amounts included in the consolidated cash flow FFAREHERERNEERER
statement for leases comprise the following: FETAEIE :
2021 2020
—E-—5 —E_TF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR AR T T

Within operating cash flows KEBEMEN 476 123
Within financing cash flows MERSREA 2,361 674
2,837 797

These amounts relate to the following: ZECHEPIRUATEIE:
2021 2020
—F-—f —E_FF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

Lease rentals paid EREERS 2,837 797

20 BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS 20 IRITEREHMER

2021 2020
—E—-—f —E-FTF
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR AR TT

Current BN &
Bank loans (Note (a) below) RITER(FX M iE(E) 10,000 46,195
Loans due to third parties ERE=ZFEXK

(Note (b) below) (FXHtiE®b)) 40,270 47,377

50,270 93,572
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20 BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

(Continued)
(a) Bank loans

The maturity profile for the interest-bearing bank
loans of the Group at the end of each reporting

period is as follows:

20 RITERRHMER(E)

(a)

MITER

AEEREBREHRRZABRTE
OB B RT

2021 2020
—E-—% —T-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR®ET T
Short-term bank loans HHISRTTE R 10,000 32,662
Current portion of long-term bank KHIRTE R 2 BNEAEE o
loans = 13,533
Within 1 year or on demand —FRRIFEK 10,000 46,195
At the end of each reporting period, the bank loans REREER RITERZETRE
were secured as follows: N
2021 2020
—F-—F —T_EF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETR AR T T
Bank loans RITER
— Secured (Note) — BRI Z) 5,000 37,195
— Unsecured — K 5,000 9,000
10,000 46,195

TEAREBEREERAERAA
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20 BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(Continued)
(a) Bank loans (Continued)
Note:

The bank loans were secured by certain intellectual
properties of the Group as at 31 December 2021 and
certain assets of the Group as at 31 December 2020. An
analysis of the carrying value of these assets is as follows:

20 $Rf

(a)

TERRHEMERGE)

MITER (&)
wst -

RITERTDUAREBNR —T - —F+—
A=+ —BMETAZRERRAEER
—E_TEFT_A=tHWNETEE
EEM - ZEEENREEITNOT

2021 2020
—E-—% —EZTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREETF T
Property, plant and equipment M- WEREE

— Leasehold land (Note 11) — Tﬂﬁiiﬂz (Hrat11) — 2,802

— Generators and other equipment — BEBREEMERE
(Note 11) (/5175577) = 64,662
Trade receivables (Note 17) B oW RE (fit17) — 23,662
= 91,126

Certain bank facilities granted to the Group were
guaranteed by Mr. Cheng Lifu Cliff, the executive director
of the Company, and his spouse, at 31 December 2020
and Mr. Cheng Lifu Cliff, the executive director of the
Company, at 31 December 2021.

“?ﬁ%ﬁ%@é’]ﬂiﬁﬁﬁéﬂﬁ’“ﬂ%ﬂ

TEERBERAERAREBR T _-F
$+_H =St BRARRATESE
BREENR =T =_—F+=-A=+—8H
fEHFEIR -

2021 2020
—E-—% —T-TF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AREFRT ARETT
Guarantees to banks for granting RELRITEER
banking facilities HRITE S B IER 5,000 4,000
(b) Loans due to third parties (b) EFRE=ZFER

At 31 December 2021, loans due to third parties
represented loans, which were subject to an interest
rate ranging from 3.5% to 7% (2020: 3.5% to 7%)
per annum, were unsecured and have no fixed
repayment terms or repayable within one year.

R-F_—FF+_H=1+—8"'E&
NE=ZTTNERERRFNENTF
35%ET%(ZZE_FTF ! 35%F
7% )T EMER  REER  EBE
EEFHABE-—FAEE-
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21 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
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(BRIESBHEE -

BRIAARKESIR)

21 ESRHEMERNFRIE

2021 2020
—EB-—%5 —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREF T
Current BN &
Trade payables (Note (a) below) B 5 EMNTIE
(FXHit@) 81,406 71,836
Bills payable e R I& 63,606 96,215
Other payables (Note (b) below) H b JE 1~ 5RIB
(FXH7EDb)) 38,805 36,820
183,817 204,871
Non-current FEEDHA
Trade payables B 5 EMNHIE 1,906 —
185,723 204,871
(a) Trade payables (a) BSEMRE

As of the end of the reporting period, the aging
analysis of trade payables other than non-current
portion which is the warranty to our suppliers, based
on the invoice date, is as follows:

RBERKR - BZRNFKIA BRRK
Pt EmEHEERENIFNHIED)
REZZAMZERESNAT

2021 2020

—¥-—% —E_FTF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARE T ARETIT

Within 3 month =@ AR 69,367 67,766
3 to 6 months =ZX{EA 11,934 3,270
6 to 12 months NE+TZ{EA 105 —
Over 12 months +=@ AN E — 800
81,406 71,836

All of the trade payables are expected to be settled
within one year or repayable on demand.

TEAREBEREERAERAA

EHEFERNRBRRIR —FR
BNRILBERERE -
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(BR3EmBIEE -

21 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

BRIAAREHIR)

(b) Other payables

B 5 & H i e mRIE (F

(b) HitpFEMFRIA

2021 2020
—F-—fF —T-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARET T
Interest payable due to third ERE=FFEB

parties 24,521 21,924
Payables for staff related costs JET B TR A 3,222 2,813

Advances from disposal of joint BREAERNAIRR
ventures 5,133 —
Retention payables ENBFe — 7,312
Others H 5,929 4,772
38,805 36,820

22 LEASE LIABILITIES 22 HEEGR
At 31 December 2021, the lease liabilities were repayable R—ZZE-_—F+=-A=+—H -HEA&
as follows: BANUTEREE:

2021 2020
—E-—f —T-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR AR T T
Within 1 year —F R 2,242 1,620
After 1 year but within 2 years —FEEMFA 1,998 1,390
After 2 years but within 5 years MEBREBERFA 3,356 3,207
5,354 4,597
7,596 6,217
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23 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 23 FEMBRRARRZFES
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(a) Current taxation in the consolidated (a) HZEMBRARZEBIBIENRRK :
statements of financial position represents:
2021 2020
—E-—% —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFRT ARETTT

At the beginning of the year REA 1,665 4,014
Provision for the year: FRREE
— PRC Corporate Income Tax — B EMER 2,060 7,103
Tax paid: B AT
— PRC Corporate Income Tax — B EMER (3,236) (9,452)
At the end of the year RER 489 1,665
(b) Deferred tax assets recognised: (b) EEREEHIESE :
The component of deferred tax assets recognised in FARERE VAR R ER A IE T
the consolidated statement of financial position and HMIEEEMEKI D REBMT !

the movements during the year are as follows:

Loss allowance
for trade and

other

receivables

g5 &HAM

JE W SR TR HY

BEREE

RMB‘000

AR®ET T

At 1 January 2020 R_ZE_ZTF—H—H 138

Recognised in profit or loss REZER 131
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January RZEZTHF+-_A=+—HK

2021 —2-—%—H—H 269

Recognised in profit or loss MRE @R (68)

At 31 December 2021 WR_E-_—F+_-_F=+—H 201
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23 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in
Note 2(p), the Group has not recognised deferred
tax assets of RMB4,227,000 (2020: RMB2,784,000),
in respect of cumulative tax losses of
RMB16,908,000 (2020: RMB11,136,000) as at
31 December 2021, as it is not probable that future
taxable profits against which the losses can be
utilised will be available in the relevant tax
jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses incurred by the
subsidiary in the PRC will expire within 5 years from
the year when such losses were incurred under
current tax legislation.

(d) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

At 31 December 2021, temporary differences
relating to the undistributed profits of subsidiaries
amounted to RMB147,376,000 (2020:
RMB122,566,000). Deferred tax liabilities of
RMB14,738,000 (2020: RMB12,257,000) have not
been recognised in respect of the tax that would be
payable on the distribution of these retained profits
as the Company controls the dividend policy of
these subsidiaries and it has been determined that it
is probable that these profits will not be distributed
in the foreseeable future.

23 GEMBRARZAEB(E)

(c)

(d)

RERBREHRIEEE
BREMF20)ME 2 SETHE - &
SER T -_—F+-_A=+—H
VTERZFAMREBERE AR
16,908,000t (ZE—TF : AR
11,136, ooo%)ﬁﬁ%?kﬁl@é‘ﬁj\
R ¥4,227,000 (ZE =T F : A
R ®2,784,0007T) * A & 18 B8 B %
ERERERBHAYARKMIEER
Y AR K JE BR B 0% A B AT REME R K o
FENEBRRELENBEEBER
BEBEROREEGELEZSEBEREN
FERFSFAREM -

REREEBIEE R
ﬁ_7:—¢+:ﬂz+—avw
DA 2RI R E R E R
?%/\Eﬁg147,376,0007_n(:§:;?
£ AR #122,566,0007T) © A A&
NAIEHZENRBQE 2R E K
K BEEREZSRMNRAETE
NG BN 3 T = b N A S i
ZERERT M EN 2 RIBRERIE
EFHIE A E AR 14,738,0007T (=
T_TF: AR¥12,257,0007T) °
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(@) Movements in components of equity
The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the Group’s
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Details of the

Notes to the Financial Statements
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24 é* 13%1%&”1&.\
(a) HEZZAB AL ER 57 Y& B
REBEFEERSAKE DB EH Y]
BEEIRERE RN GRS

changes in the Company’s individual components of
equity between the beginning and the end of the

year are set out below:

The Company
VNN

R o AN A Bl #E s AR KRR D R F
NEFRNOEEFRFTNWOT :
Reserves
Share Share Other  Exchange  Retained
capital  premium reserve reserve profits Total
RE BRHOEE HtEE EXFEE REEHN gt
Note RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

i ARETTARBTT ARBTT ARBTE ARE T ARETT

Balance at 1 January R-B-%E
2020 —E B & —* — 28520 - — 28520
Changes in equity for —ToTE#R
2020: 28
Total comprehensive FNPEBREE
income for the year — — — (2,842) (6,750) (9,592)
Capitalisation issue BRI BT 24(c) 1,626 (1,626) - . — -
Issue of ordinary shares by —~ EBRE X AHEESR
initial public offering, TE® - Mk
net of issuance costs BATA 24(c) 542 97,618 — — — 98,160
Balance at 31 December WRZ-ZB-F%+_-f
2020 and 1 January =+-BR=%
2021 ——f—-f—-Hi
%ﬁﬁ 2,168 95992 28,520 (2,842)  (6,750) 117,088
Changes in equity for T -FHR
2021: g9
Total comprehensive FREERREE
income for the year — — — (1,932) (4,435) (6,367)
Balance at 31 December R=-TB=-—%+=R
2021 =+-BHER 28 2,168 95992 28520 (4,778) (11,185 110,721
* The balance represented number less than RMB1,000. * EBRRERHEE TR ARY,000TT °

(b) Dividends

No dividend was paid or declared by the Company
for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

(b) BzRB
BE_ZT_—FR_TLZF =
A=t —HBLEE XRQAMEIK
HHE RS -
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 24 EX  -BHERKRE(EZ)

(Continued)
(c) Share capital (o B’F
2021 2020
—B--% —T_%F
Note  No. of shares RMB’000 No. of shares RMB'000
it BEHEE ARETRT BRHEE ARETT
Ordinary shares, issued EBTRAEH
and fully paid: TiEk:
At 1 January n—A—H 250,000,000 2,168 10,000 —*
Capitalisation issue BRI EAT (i) — — 187,490,000 1,626
Issues of ordinary shares by BB E X AR %
initial public offering ERTERKR (i) — — 62,500,000 542
At 31 December R+T-ZA=1t—H 250,000,000 2,168 250,000,000 2,168

*

The balance represented number less than RMB1,000.

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

Capitalisation issue

Pursuant to the shareholder’s resolution dated
4 September 2020, the Company allotted and issued
187,490,000 shares at a par value of HK$0.01 to the
existing shareholder of the Group. Pursuant to the
resolution, a sum of RMB1,625,913 standing to the
credit of the share premium account as at
28 October 2020 was applied in paying up this
capitalisation issue in full.

Issue of ordinary shares by initial public offering

On 20 October 2020, the Company issued
62,500,000 shares with a par value of HK$0.01, at
an offer price of HK$2.00 per share by way of
public offering to Hong Kong and overseas investors.
Net proceeds from these issues amounted to
RMB98,160,000 (after offsetting costs directly
attributable to the issue of shares of
RMB10,680,000), out of which RMB542,000 and
RMB97,168,000 were recorded in share capital and
share premium accounts, respectively.

*

EHAREE TR ARK,0007T °

#s -

(i)

(ii)

’ 220 CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

BAR(LE#TT

BEEHA—_ZT_ZTFHAMA
MIRERAZRR AR alRAEE
IR A IR R Ad % & ¥ 17187,490,000
A% = A% E E0.01E TR AR 1D » 1R
BazrERE R _ZET_ZTF+A
“+NBBROEERERSEA
R¥1,625913TtEARATER
24T °

BRERARBEERTEER

R-ZE_ZTF+A=_+H &R
BAIARARABE R NREE RGN
& #%£1762,500,000/% E{E0.01
BILTHRG  BEERERKR2.00
BIL - ZEFHITMERBFER
AR #98,160,0007T (45 4K 4 % 17
B EBEEMLMEKEXARE
10,680,0000T) & R A R ¥
542,0007t & A & #97,168,0007T
2 BIEF AR AN B B% 19 0% (B BR o



24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(d)
(i)

(i)

(iii)

Nature and purposes of reserves

Share premium

The share premium represents the difference
between consideration received for ordinary
shares subscription net of any transaction costs
directly attributable to the subscription and the
par value of the ordinary shares subscribed.

Other reserve

Other reserve primarily represented: (i) the
paid-up capital of Beijing Nature prior to
30 June 2018 attributable to the ultimate
shareholder of the Group; (ii) the difference
between the carrying value of the net assets
attributable to the non-controlling shareholders
of Beijing Nature and Datang Gucang and the
consideration paid for the acquisition of
(iii)
dividends of Beijing Nature to controlling
shareholder; and (iv) the amount of loans of
China Transport waived by controlling
shareholder on 31 December 2019.

non-controlling interests; the deemed

Statutory surplus reserve

According to laws applicable to the foreign
investment enterprises in the PRC and the
Articles of Association of certain subsidiaries of
the Company in the PRC, the PRC entities are
required to appropriate part of their net profits
as determined in accordance with the generally
accepted accounting principles of the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC GAAP"”) to various
reserves. These include general reserve and

statutory surplus reserve.

For general reserve, appropriation to general
reserve is at the discretion of the directors of
the relevant PRC entities. The reserve can only
be used for specific purposes and
distributable as cash dividends.

is not
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24 BEX -RERRE (&)

(d) fHEME
(i) &‘/f}ﬁ/‘“
B dn it (B 15 50 BR B B AR ) B I
REFREAREEREGD
RZRA R R e AR E E
B Z 5 o

Rt

EMHEEEEERE: ) 2T —N
FRA=ZTHZAAEEREK
BRREMLIERARE 2B R
A (NIERAMRRRERZRRIE
ERRREGFEERTMER
WEE IR R AT TR B2 E
Bo(iENZEREKRENILR
MR ER B Rv)IE R K
RRZZE—NhF+=—A=+—
HRENTBERBERESE -

(i)

EEBER
RIFERARPBEINEDERAE
RRARAETHEKERF
MABERRAR  FERERZE
HEREPBE QRS RA
(' I”AHEE\JJ?\E'JJ)FXEE’J
DN EASERE®E o
EREERE—REEREATER
BRIEE

(iii)

B RERME - —RERN
BREXAEETHEENESH

BRE - ki EERNRERE
Rg ATAERREKRED
K e
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BRIAAREIR)

24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)
(d) Nature and purposes of reserves (Continued)
(iii) Statutory surplus reserve (Continued)

For statutory surplus reserve, 10% of the net
profit, as determined in accordance with the
PRC GAAP, of the relevant PRC entities is
transferred to the statutory surplus reserve until
the reserve balance reaches 50% of the
registered capital of the relevant PRC
companies. The transfer to this reserve must be
made before distribution of dividends to
shareholders can be made. The statutory
surplus reserve can be used to make good
previous years' losses, if any, and may be
converted into share capital by the issue of
new shares to shareholders in proportion to
their existing shareholders or by increasing the
par value of the shares currently held by the
shareholders, provided that the balance after
such less than 25% of the
registered capital. Any amount of funds outside
of the 50% reserve balance can be distributed
as by the relevant PRC entities, as advances or
cash dividends, subject however, to complying
with applicable requirements. Such dividend or

issue is not

loans could take a considerable amount of time
to implement and to be processed by certain
governmental agencies.

(iv) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
operations with functional currency other than
RMB. The reserve is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policy as set out in Note
2(t).

24 BEX - -RERRE (&)

(d) HEMHERHEEZE)

(iii) EEBEFHE (E)
MEERGBHEENS  HEFR
BEEBREFEARETRA
HETE K F R A 89 10% 15 8 A K
TRHBHE HEEREEHRE
FEEFBRAREMEAD
50% ° MR 2 IRAR B AT - 4
BEEBREZEE AT AR
R BIERAENETEENE
B(nAg) WA ERRFRIZE
BHEFREGIZITHRG @ X
FEE MR R R FENRMDE
B BETBBEESRAR
N HBITRDEHEHRTE
PR EMEARE25% © %50%
{8 18 4 BR DA SN B (] 2 5B AT B
HETREEDIRAEARK
HIBERE  BEETERBR
FoBAEREIERNATR
ATEA#BNEERF 8
ERER-

(iv) EXf#E
EXFEERNETEEILIEA
REZEEVHBRRMEME
EREEINEZER o RN
A2 B R BRI
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(e)

Capital risk management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other by pricing
commensurately with the level of risk and by
securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

stakeholders, services

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholders returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital

structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis
of an adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio. For this
purpose, adjusted net debt is calculated as the
aggregate amount of bank
borrowings and lease liabilities less cash and cash
equivalent.

loans and other

TEARGERMREZERARLA
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24 X - fRERKRE ()

(e)

EXEmER

AEBEEREEAENTIERRA
REAEEEARTHERLE BB
75 AR 75 ) B 45 5T 70 £ [ e A 78 1O 7K
FREAEXAZBERE  EHEE
HBRBRRRER®REASEME D
ERME R

AR B R TR RE R A
AL AE R R 4R (T8
B 5 f Bk P B R A A
RV ES BRI 2 G T - 3
A 18R 2 B0 0 6 A A e
A -

B AT FER A R
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 24

(Continued)

(e) Capital risk management (Continued)
net debt-to-capital

The adjusted

ratios at

31 December 2021 and 2020 were as follows:

(e)

BEXx - -REARRER (B

EXEGER(Z)
R_BE-_—Fk-_ZT_FTF+_A

=t B KHEABRFEHEARLEX

L N
2021 2020
—¥-—% —E_TF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARE T ARETIT
Bank loans and other borrowings 817 & 2t & H i £ 3% 50,270 93,572
Lease liabilities HeEa’ 7,596 6,217
Total debt BIETE 57,866 99,789
Less: Cash and cash equivalents WoREeNIBEEEY (40,572) (121,416)
Adjusted net debt KRABRFED 17,294 (21,627)
Total equity R BT 259,561 241,101
Adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio LT FEEE AL R 6.7% N/A

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries are subject

to internally or
requirements.

externally

imposed capital

AR REMBRARETZHNA
BB INEBIE AN B AN AR E e
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency
risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.
The Group's exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(@) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in a
financial loss to the Group. The Group’s credit risk is
primarily attributable to trade receivables. The
Group's exposure to credit risk arising from cash and
cash equivalents and bills receivable is limited
because the counterparties are reputable financial
institutions with high credit standing, for which the
Group considers to have low credit risk.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which
would expose the Group to credit risk.

Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer rather than the industry or country in
which the customers operate and therefore
significant concentrations of credit risk primarily arise
when the Group has significant exposure to
individual customers. At the end of the reporting
period, 63% (2020: 79%) and 96% (2020: 99%) of
the total trade receivables and contract assets was
due from the Group’s largest customer and the five
largest customers respectively.

Notes to the Financial Statements

0175 R MY o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(RIESFIET  BRIRAREIITR)

25 %Eﬂlﬁﬂﬁ%ﬂ&ﬂﬁ%l&ﬂ@’&ﬂi
ZIK%@E/]E%%?(@%% Fif*/l‘m
E)Jﬁi FERINE R - AR EE L%

B EERAEEAEEZERR
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued)
Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customer’'s past
history of making payments when due and current
ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in which the customer
operates. Trade receivables are due within 30 to 90
days from the date of billing, except for the tariff
premium. Normally, the Group does not obtain
collateral from customers, respectively.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables and contract assets at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a
provision matrix.

As at the end of the reporting period, the analysis of
trade receivables and contract assets, net of loss
allowance, by nature is as follows:

25 SREMGEERBEIAENAF

5(#&)

(a) EEEEZ)
ESEBENRERSHEE (&)
FEEBAETERENMBEFRAA
ETEMNEENG ZFFEEE
BPBE R BFIAMN 8 A K
BRTH e Xt REBEP
AREELMELBRENER -
B 5 B FAR R E B HI#£30290
AR (EEH ERIN) o —fRM
5 AKBEY A REPWEERS

AEEHE D EURERS DEE
HERENMENEEBESE
MEERE KRB REEE
B

RBEBK REEEHHE DB
W HE R A KA E IR B AR
SHFWT -

2021 2020
—E——f —E-EE
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFRT ARETTT

Tariff premium receivables JE U B (B BT N 34,566 23,222
Other trade receivables Hi4E 5 EWHRIE 149,299 196,552
Contract assets EHEE 2,595 762

186,460 220,536
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued)
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the directors of
the Company are of the opinion that the tariff
premium receivables are fully recoverable considering
that there are no loss experiences with the grid
company in the past and the tariff premium is
funded by the PRC government. The tariff premium
receivables accounted for 19% (2020: 11%) of the
Group's total trade receivables and contract assets as
at 31 December 2021.

The following table provides information about the
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade
receivables other than tariff premium and contract
assets:
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25 2REMEEBRMEBIANAE
B(E)

(a)

EEREE)
ESBEKZXERSHEE (&)
RZEZ—FR_FZFF+H
=+—HB ARAEERREKE
Bt merzmEWME - T EEE B
THEALAAMERGEERER
MEMEBEPEBAEE - EKREEN
mE=EE=—F+=—A=+—H=R
EEESERWNNREREGNEELTE
B19% (ZE_FF : 11%) o

TREGEBAEEAESEEA
% L\ K B 5 6 4O (B 8 B i
MRANEENBHREEBAD
B8

2021
—E-—F
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
AR E % RE4{E BEEE
% RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTR ARBTR
Current (not past due) BIER (R HR) 0.80% 126,296 1,010
Less than 6 month past 61E A A % &

due 1.22% 26,937 329
153,233 1,339
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(BR3EmBIEE -

BRIAAREIR)

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

25 SREMGEERBEIAENAF

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS B(E)
(Continued)
(a) Credit risk (Continued) (a) EE&REMEE)
Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued) ESEKSIERSHEE (&F)
2020
—E-EF
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TEHA B 18 R IRm B E EriE
% RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREET T
Current (not past due) BN AR (K@ H) 0.80% 151,233 1,205
Less than 6 month past 61E A A % Bf
due 1.22% 47,872 586
199,105 1,791

The Group had no historical loss experience in
respect of the trade receivables and contract assets
during the past and no significant change in
forward-looking information
macroeconomics

including the
environment and industry
development in the PRC, in which the Group’s
principal business operates. These rates are adjusted
to reflect differences between economic conditions
during the period over which the historic data has
been collected, current conditions and the Group’s
view of economic conditions over the expected lives
of the receivables.

BE - AEEYELIRE SRR
BRAHNEENBEEELR B
FIEEERN (BRTE(REEEE
XKL BEMER)NZBERBERER
NRITEBER)UBEERES - 25
TRl T E AR £ B ERIES
MR - TR MK & B 4 e
Yo ok I8 T8 B B f A A OB IR T O 8 B
ZHERER-
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 25 £rEMEERMBEIANAE

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BE(#=E)
(Continued)
(a) Credit risk (Continued) (a) &R (E)
Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued) ESBEKZXERSHEE (&)
Movement in the loss allowance in respect of trade FRNEFERURERENEENS
receivables and contract assets during the year is as BREZHOT
follows:
2021 2020
—B-—% —E_FF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETTT

Balance at the beginning of the R F Y8 4 B

year 1,791 917
Impairment losses (reversal)/ RER(BE) FERH

recognised during the year BIEE R (452) 874
Balance at the end of the year R E R 4 6k 1,339 1,791

The following significant changes in the gross THEZRERERIEBERENEERE

carrying amounts of trade receivables and contract BMENBEREPEYEBRRELR

assets contributed to the change in the loss gg) -

allowance:

—  origination of new trade receivables net of those — EEXEHESEWRFEGIRE
settled resulted in a decrease in loss allowance HERE)BREERERD A
of RMB195,000 (2020: an increase of K #®195,000c (ZE=FF :
RMB530,000); and # i A R #530,0007T) i &

— change in days past due less than 6 months — BHIRANEANBHEHZ
resulted in a decrease of RMB257,000 (2020: BREEBBERL AR
an increase of RMB343,000) in loss allowance. 257,000 (ZZE T4 ¥

A R #343,0007T) °
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

25 SREMGEERBEIAENAF

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS H(%Z)
(Continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (b) RENE & B

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management,
including the short-term investment of cash surpluses
and the raising of loans to cover expected cash
demands, subject to approval by the parent
company’s board when the borrowings exceed
certain predetermined levels of authority. The
Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with leading
covenants to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of each reporting period of the
Group’s financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual rates
or, if floating, based on rates current at the
reporting date) and the earliest date the Group can
be required to pay:

AEEAENELERRRFRER
FHNRELEE  BERACAERNE
HREMEEEFUREERR S
EEFEBE THEEREK
FRASIBARNEETSHME -
AEERREERERERPES
FREEBTERZONER - K
BREEFRARNRSHEE IE
ETHBBRERHNAZES
Wme AR EBORBHESTR

XK

TRERASEMBEERERS
HARWFBAMNIHA  UELHR
RRATRE(BRERASOERXR
(% B )Z B A =) RIBR R E B HIW
EAA R ERF BT RAE
BAlgE A MRF A RER:

2021
—EC--—-&

Carrying
More than More than amount at
Within 1 year 1 year but less 2 years but less 31 December
or on demand than 2 years than 5 years Total 2021
R-ZBZ—-%
1R 1ELLE 2L kB +-ZH=+-H
BEX 26/ SR @zt B AR E E
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR

Bank loans and other BITERRA
borrowings i & 3 50,722 — — 50,722 50,270

Trade and other B 5 REME
payables NES 183,817 1,906 = 185,723 185,723
Lease liabilities HEAE 2,526 2,180 3,479 8,185 7,596
237,065 4,086 3,479 244,630 243,589
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

(c)

Notes to the Financial Statements
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25 2REMEEBRMEBIANAE
B(E)

(b) HBEEEIE (&)

2020

—ZT-TF
More than More than Carrying amount
Within 1 year 1 year but less 2 years but less at 31 December
or on demand than 2 years than 5 years Total 2020
REZ=Z4F
1A 1 LA H{E 26N FE +ZR=+—8
RER 2R SER st HEREE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

Bank loans and other BTERR
borrowings Hib g3 94,854 — — 94,854 93,572

Trade and other EHREM
payables JE 5 508 204,871 — — 204,871 204,871
Lease liabilities HEAR 1,883 1,582 3,434 6,899 6,217
301,608 1,582 3,434 306,624 304,660

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or
future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily
from short-term and long-term borrowings.
Borrowings issued at variable rates and at fixed rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk and
fair value interest rate risk respectively. The Group's
interest rate profile as monitored by management is
set out in (i) below:

(o F=EK
FERRETETAENAFESE
IR & E K E T 5 F R 5w K
FHER ARENMNXRREE
KEEHREER - LEEF R
REEMNEZTHERDAFEASE
EEEBeREMNXRERRAFE
xR BEREEMEZHNAEE
I 2= 48 0 E A R 3 ()
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)
(i) Interest rate risk profile
The following table, as reported to the
management of the Group, details the interest

25 2REMEERMEBIANATE
B (&)

() FIZREEE)
() FIEEEER
BEAKEEEEMHRE  TX
AR B R E RN K E E 5K

rate risk profile of the Group’s borrowings at B ) AR
the end of the reporting period:
2021 2020
—E-—f§ —EZTF

Effective Effective

Interest Interest
rate Amount rate Amount
BRI = &8 = AP Gk}
% RMB’000 % RMB'000
ARETTT AREF T

Fixed rate borrowings: FERER:
Bank loans RITE X 4.35% 5,000 5% 23,662
Loans due to third parties JEFE=HER 3.5%-7% 40,270  3.5% 7% 47,377
Lease liabilities HEBE 4.75% 7,596 4.75% 6,217
52,866 77,256
Variable rate FRMER:
borrowings:

Bank loans RITE K 3.9% 5,000 4.35%— 22,533

6.18%
Net exposure [R B F BB 5,000 22,533

(ii) Sensitivity analysis
At 31 December 2021, it is estimated that a
general increase or decrease of 100 basis
points in interest rates, with all other variables
held constant, would have decreased or
increased the Group’s profit after tax and
retained profits by approximately RMB43,000
(2020: RMB225,000).

(i) ®WEEDH

RZEZ—F+=ZA=+—
H A F=EE FAXTH
T001E £ 2 - T AT £ i & &
HREDE  AEEMRKRBIE S
) AR BB v FI #3318 N 49
AR #4300 (Z T = &
F . AR#¥225,0007T) °
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)
(ii) Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group's profit
after tax (and retained profits) that would arise
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the end of each reporting period
and had been applied to floating rate
non-derivative instruments held by the Group,
which expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk. The impact on the Group's profit
after tax (and retained profits) is estimated as
an annualised impact on interest expense of
such a change in interest rates. Fixed rate
financial instruments are excluded for the
above analysis. The analysis is performed on the
same basis as 2020.

(d) Currency risk

As the Group’s principal activities are carried out in
the PRC, the Group’s transactions are mainly
dominated in Renminbi, which is not freely
convertible into foreign currencies. All foreign
exchange transactions involving Renminbi must take
place through the People’s Bank of China or other
institutions authorised to buy and sell foreign
exchange. The exchange rates adopted for the
foreign exchange transactions are the rates of
exchange quoted by the People’s Bank of China that
are determined largely by supply and demand.

The directors considered the Group’s exposure to
foreign currency risk is not significant during the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

Notes to the Financial Statements

0175 R MY o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(RIESFIET  BRIRAREIITR)

25 SREBEERRMBIANAF
B (%&)

() FIZREEE)

(i) ®EBESH(E)
FRAGRESNBERARED
BREE R 0m A (R R B ) A 8E
EEMASZE) 2R REF
REHOREREHIREL
I 2 AREAR B HEER SR
MERBHANEE TS ZE
MEIFPTETA - REBRTH
‘M (RREBEN) IR E
THE B RN R e FZ R
EXHHEEEGET - Lty
AR ESMBEIR - —F
—EENOMBRBARELEE

7

770

(d) E¥ERE

HRASRENEBEES NP EE
T AEENRKHETERNARKG
B - MAREAATBEHERALSI
B BRARENEZEINER 51T
AEBPRARBITHEMEERIN
ERRBERBET IEIFRMY
MEXDPBARBITARERH
HEETHER -

EERAE RNEBE_TE-_—FK=
T_FEFE+-_A=1t—BHILEFEER
EBAZHINERRIT NEK -
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(e) Fair value measurement

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group's financial instruments measured at the end of
each reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorized into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in IFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The
level into which a fair value measurement is
classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in
the valuation technique as follows:

o Level 1 Fair value measured using only
valuations: Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities
at the measurement date;

o Level 2 Fair value measured using Level 2
valuations: inputs i.e. observable inputs
which fail to meet Level 1, and
not using significant
unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs
for which market data are not

available;
o Level 3 Fair value measured using
valuations: significant unobservable inputs.

25 SREMERERUBEIANAFE

5 (&)
() ATMEIE
LFEER

TEREINAEBREEUHELERS
RERARFECLSHIAZAT
1B - I ¥ B PR Bt 7% 5 5 2E B 55135
AFEFEMAE=MAFERH
D AFEFESHTIZ2BEHEE
R ARASEZ IBRERE
EMEENAT

« F— EEAFEF-—MNBAK

X BEtEB 2 RFE
Bl EH & B HIAE R
BESABERK
BB MHRARE
BB HE

s FA ERAB-_RBWARE

&8 SAEZAFE A
THEE—RHIZ
ABREARE
BEREERERN
AEREARE-
AR B R G ABER
XIS T IS 8
BB ARE

« =R ERAEATABES
i ABBHEZAT
B o
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
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(BRERBEE  TUARAREIIR)

%5 SHEREZRMBIANLT

(Continued)
(e) Fair value measurement (Continued) (e) AFEHEE)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) NFEEER(E)

Analysis on fair value measurement of financial

instruments are as follows:

Fair value at
31 December 2021
AFERZT=-F

EMTAZAFEFHESINBAT

Fair value measurement at
31 December 2021 categorized into

AFEAER-T=—&

+=B=+-H +ZRA=+-B%ER
RMB'000 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
AREFR e ot} EZH
Recurring fair value measurement BEMATEESNE
Trade and other receivables: ESREMmREIERIE:
Bills receivable e 61,476 — 61,476 —
Fair value at Fair value measurement at
31 December 2020 31 December 2020 categorized into
AFER-_T-_ZTF AFEHER-Z-TF
+-A=+—-H +ZA=+—R%8A
RMB'000 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
ARETT E—H E-H F=/
Recurring fair value BEMATEGE
measurement
Trade and other receivables: B5RkHtEKRIE:
Bills receivable EHERE 2,871 — 2,871 —
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(e) Fair value measurement (Continued)
During the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020, there were no transfers between Level 1 and
Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3. The
Group’s policy is to recognize transfers between
levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the
reporting period in which they occur.

Certain bills receivable held by the Group are
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets, which are measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income. The
fair values of these bills receivable have been
calculated by discounting the expected future cash
flows. The fair value measurement is positively
correlated to expected return rate. Bills receivable
carried at FVOCI are not materially different from
their values as at December as at 31 December
2021 and 2020.

Except for bills receivable, all financial instruments
carried at cost or amortized cost are at amounts not
materially different from their values as at
31 December 2021 and 2020.

26 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
There are no significant capital commitments outstanding
at the respective year end not provided for at
31 December 2021 and 2020.

25 2REMEERMEBIANATE
B (&)

(e)

AFEFE(E)

BHE-Z - GR-F-FTF+=
A=+—HLFE F—HKHEAF=
MR REEBRISBERE=ZREA
FEE AEBZHRENHEH
RERATEERAHNEFERE
% o

ETAEEFRFRERKEEBWREG
HRERERNESREEESE
EAFEFAHEMEEIKEGE -
ZERWEBNAFEDEBAR
FHHAKREMEFTHE - AFEE
EHEHRREEZEME - ZAFE
FTAEMEE KRS KA EKREE
HER-_ZT-_-—FR-_ZFT_ZTF
TZA=1+—HNRAFEMHELBE
BERDH-

BRFE W R AN - BT TR AR AN S 68
RAGBENSR T ANSEERLR
TE I FRZIFZFEFT A
=+—BEEMRALEBEERTE -

26 BEAREIE

i

T ER-F-TET+ A

=t+—8" *Eﬂiﬁruﬁﬂik:ﬁ TR REE @
FREHBEB I ERERALE -

’ 236 CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021



27

Notes to the Financial Statements

BT R I aE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(RIFESHET  TAUNAREIIR)
MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 27 EXEBAXS
TRANSACTIONS
(a) Key management personnel remuneration (a) EEEE NS FHN

Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s
directors as disclosed in Note 8 and certain of the
highest paid employees as disclosed in Note 9, is as

AEETREEABNTM(RE
i X8 BE R AR R EE X H
CRLAMEFEERE TRSH
MEE XN W :

follows:

2021 2020

—T-—% —E_FF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR AR T T

Short-term employee benefits MEEEREF 3,966 2,742
Contributions to defined M RETEI R

contribution plans 529 252

4,495 2,994

BEME N8 T ARI(R M
6(b)) °

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see
Note 6(b)).

(b) FABEF L AIBER

(b) Guarantees issued by related parties

2021 2020
—E=-—% —T-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARET T
Guarantees to banks for granting BL#EHETEE
banking facilities AR ITIR ML A R 5,000 4,000

fsE20(@)F &% T AR EEHE T IRTT
EETHEEREE(RRAANT
EF)IR_E_—Ft+ZA=1+—
AEHRBERLE(RRARWNITE
BEVRHEREER-_Z-_ZE+-A
=+ —HEDLER-

Certain bank facilities granted to the Group in Note
20(a) were guaranteed by Mr. Cheng Lifu Cliff, the
executive director of the Company, at 31 December
2021 and Mr. Cheng Lifu Cliff, the executive
director of the Company, and his spouse, at
31 December 2020.
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(RESFIET > BRIRARKEITR)

27 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(c) Leasing arrangements
In November 2020, the Group entered into a
five-year lease in respect of certain properties from
Hong Kong Shengshi Taihe Culture and Arts Centre
Limited, the affiliate company under the ultimate
controlling shareholder of the Group, for office use.
The amount of rent payable by the Group under the
lease is HK$20,000 per month. At the
commencement date of the lease, the Group
recognised a right-of-use asset and a lease liability
of RMB901,000.

In November 2020, the Group entered into a
five-year lease in respect of certain motor vehicles
from Sure Team Limited, the affiliate company under
the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Group,
for office use. The amount of rent payable by the
Group under the lease is HK$50,000 per month. At
the commencement date of the lease, the Group
recognised a right-of-use asset and a lease liability
of RMB4,505,000.

27 EXFHB AR (E

(c)

HEZH
RZZEZZEF+— R AKEKRE
THERNAEERKIERREET
Bt /B N B & B AR K RN ST E Al p
DERARGLABAFHMALY
R AR AEEREHERM
# A 7 &20,00058 7T - R H & 514
HE AEBERRA—EHERAEEE
kM E & & AR901,0007T °

R-ZE_ZF+—F AEEH®SE
TARAERAASESKIERBREET
BEBARBUEARARIGI AR
FRORL - ERLOAR -AEER
B E RS A A50,000% 7T °
REEMRBAH AEE®BR—E
FAREERHEABARK
4,505,0007T °
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27 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 27 T XRAE A5 (&

(Continued)
(d) Other significant related party transactions (d) HtbEXEE SRS
During the years ended 31 December 2021 and BHE_ZT-_—FR_T_FTF+_
2020, the Group had following transactions with A=+—BLFE AEEHEKXF
Datong Fengyuan, the joint venture of the Group; B (REEE % AR - Hongyuan
Hongyuan Limited, the immediate parent of the Limited(&X 2 A1 BE & & 2 7))
Company; World Hero International Limited (“World World Hero International Limited
Hero”), the affiliate company under the ultimate ([ World Hero |) (A~ %= B & 442 i% i%
controlling shareholder of the Group: RHBBRARDBUTRS
2021 2020
—EB-—% —E-TF
Datong Fengyuan RMB’000 RMB’000
XEEiR ARETR AR T T
Non-trading transactions: kE5HRSH:
New loans provided ERENEER 24,300 —
2021 2020
—T-—F —_T_EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
Hongyuan Limited ARETR AREBTF T
Non-trading transactions: EBEHXS:
New loans provided ERHEEER 82 —
2021 2020
- e 3 —T_TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
World Hero ARETR AR T T
Non-trading transaction: #E5HRS5:
New loans provided EREFEER = 173
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27 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 27 E X AR5 (&)

(Continued)
(e) Significant related party balances (e) E XS &R
As of the end of the reporting period, the Group REEHR - AEEEKREE T (K
had following balances with Datong Fengyuan, the £ B & % A7) kHongyuan Limited
joint venture of the Group and Hongyuan Limited, (RRARIERTRR) BT
the immediate parent of the Company:
2021 2020
—E-—% —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR T T
Non-trading balances: HE S
Datong Fengyuan KIRE 24,300 —
Hongyuan Limited Hongyuan Limited 82 —
24,382 —
The outstanding balances with these related parties HZEEBATNREEERETA
are included in loans to related parties and a third M 18mRE THREI R —RFE=
party in Note 18. FTRER
(f) Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to (f) HREXSHEMZ LHHEAIYE

connected transactions

The related party transactions in respect of
guarantees issued, leasing arrangements, new loans
provided and received mentioned in Note 27(b), (c)
and (d) above constitute connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The disclosures
required by Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are
provided under the section “Connected
Transactions” in the Report of Directors. However
those transactions in respect of guarantees issued,
new loans provided and received and interest on
loans transactions are exempt from the disclosure
requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules as
they are financial assistance under Rule 14A.90 or
below the de minimis threshold under Rule
14A.76(1).

A

EXXHIEE27(b) ~ (o) R(d) Pl B B
HHER HELTH BRERD
WHEBRMBEB AR ZER LT
MABUAZEFTATNEER H K
FERERS - EARAFI14AE
AT HEANRCREETERE
(BAER S| — &gt Am - A
REBERMER BREREK
HEEZTNFER ERRFHF
BEMN EWHRAFEI4A0EKEETH
BEREKER EmRANE
14A.76(IMEH E R RIEER R KFE
Bt AT EA 0 E SF £ AR RIS 14A
EMWERT -
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28 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF

Notes to the

Financial Statements

BT R I aE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIESBHEE -

BRIAARKESIR)

A5 BENMBRRR

2021 2020
—FCT—%F —E-FF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETIT

Non-current assets EREEE
Interest in subsidiaries R B R B R R = 91,042 28,520
Property, plant and equipment ME - HWEKRE 4,144 5,226
95,186 33,746

Current assets mEBEE
Loans due to a related party JETRERE 5 B 82 —
Other receivables B e U 3R — 421
Cash and cash equivalents ReMReEED 24,739 93,192
24,821 93,613
Current liabilities RHERE

Other payables H b & T 508 5,046 5,046
Lease liabilities HEAE 1,025 985
6,071 6,031
Net current assets REBEEEE 18,750 87,582
Total assets less current liabilities #EZERAESERE 113,936 121,328

Non-current liabilities ERHEHE
Lease liabilities HEBE 3,215 4,240
3,215 4,240
NET ASSETS EEFE 110,721 117,088

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEEXREE
Share capital N 2,168 2,168
Reserves ke 108,553 114,920
TOTAL EQUITY HEXNEEE 110,721 117,088
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29 IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING
PARTY
At 31 December 2021, the directors of the Company
consider the immediate parent of the Group is Hongyuan
Limited, a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands.
The ultimate controlling shareholder of the Group is
Mr. Cheng Liquan Richard. Hongyuan Limited does not
produce financial statements available for public use.

30 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
IASB has issued a number of amendments, and a new
standard, IFRS 17, Insurance contracts, which are not yet
effective for the year ended 31 December 2021 and
which have not been adopted in these financial
statements. These developments include the following
which may be relevant to the Group.

29

30

ERRBREER AT

RZZE-_—F+=-A=+—H A27
¥ = Hongyuan Limited BANE B E K
BaR HA—HRAHASHESTEMAT
WAR -AEENZKRERBRRAREE
2 S 4 o Hongyuan Limited 3t £ 45 &4 A] 44
ANBFERMBE®RE -

EFEMEEHRNREE_T=—
+ZA=+—BHIEFEERBHIE
A HEARRENTRIE

HEZSUWBm&RTIEAH  BE
AR BEEEEMEZEETRAUAR—IB
¥R 2 BI B PR B 75 3R &5 HE B B 75R R 2
A (REBEE-_ZT-_—F+=-_A=+—8H
LEFERRER BEREZZTTB®W
FREP)  BEATIRERNEESH
BIIEET °

Effective for
accounting

periods beginning
on or after
RTSBEHHZ2E
FMIsRE TR AR

Amendments to IFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual Framework

BRI B mE ERFEIR BT - LR IELAIEL

1 January 2022
—2-_—_%#—H—H

Amendments to IAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before

Intended Use

1 January 2022

BERStRRFE16R BTN WX  BERKE  #EHERIEHR —ET-=—F—Hf—H
Amendments to IAS 37, Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract 1 January 2022
B G st ERFEI7TR BTN FEEHN — BITE 81 KL —E-_—_F—-H—H
Annual Improvements to IFRS 2018-2020 cycle 1 January 2022
T N\FE_Z_TFEANERMEREERNFERCE —E--_F—H—H

’ 242 CHINA NATURE ENERGY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021



Notes to the Financial Statements

BT R I aE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(RIESFIET  BRIRAREIITR)

30 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 30 EE#GEMARBE—T=—

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS +=ZA=+— EIJJ:$J"$§&E’J1P‘
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE IR -HEANRZEMOTRIE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (&)

(Continued)

Effective for

accounting
periods beginning
on or after
RTIBE#HHZ2E
Mg ET LR
Amendments to IAS 1, Classification of liabilities as current or non-current 1 January 2023
B StEFE VR EI RN BTHAHFRBEETHE —_E_=%¥—H—H
Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2, Disclosure of accounting
,oo//cies 1 January 2023
BEReS 2% 1 KRERMBERELENEBRES 2 R2BT4A
E#/B? & —E-_=%—H—H
Amendments to IAS 8, Definition of accounting estimates 1 January 2023
B St ERI%E 8 K ZIERIA » 211 2 EHE —T-_=%—H—H
Amendments to IAS 12, Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising
from a single transaction 1 January 2023
BRGStERE 12 KRB A BE—RZGELCEERBERFHAZ
B IR —E-=%—HA—H
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of ZK%@IEE%TEE?—M BENEPN L
what the impact of these developments is expected to be MEHEANTE 25 BIE - HEER
in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded MZFEFT TN %‘ﬂ‘ﬁ*/\ﬁﬁ‘%ﬂiiiﬁ
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant REATE -

impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
M=

SUMMARIZED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
HEEGEREBEENERME

RMB'000 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
ARE T 20175 2018% 20194 20205 20214
Revenue U 25 57,314 144,424 222,835 338,895 312,864
Gross profit e 18,871 44,503 66,397 73,570 45,873
Profit before taxation BR 50 A A 8,988 31,423 49,570 47,356 23,473
Profit for the year EREF 7,699 27,875 42,689 40,384 21,345
Profit for the year attributable to equity ~ K72 AIERERE
shareholders of the Company FE 15 4 % A 6,401 26,844 42,545 40,173 21,069
SUMMARIZED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FEUBRARME
RMB'000 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
ARE: T 20174 20184 20194 20204 20216
Non-current assets ERBEE 111,975 107,878 101,917 102,496 100,756
Current assets MBEE 84,016 132,312 201,269 444,930 403,655
Current liabilities mEBEE 98,994 152,127 176,330 301,728 237,590
Non-current liabilities EREEE 70,096 57,022 21,214 4,597 7,260
Total equity B 26,901 31,041 105,642 241,101 259,561
SUMMARIZED CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
GELERERBE
RMB'000 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
ARE T 20175 2018%F 20194 20204 20214
Cash and cash equivalents FNReRBEEEY
at the beginning of year 2,225 2,065 2,202 35,632 121,416
Net cash (used in)/generated KEEH(FE)/FMBERE
from operating activities P (5,768) (10,687) 52,311 12,132 7,313
Net cash (used in)/generated BREEY(FTH)/MEHE
from investing activities X (48,935) (3,741) (1,115) (1,586)  (38,077)
Net cash generated from/(used in) REEBHE/ (A RE
financing activities 2% 54,543 14,565  (17,766) 78,322 (48,460)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and BeRBeSEVORD),/
cash equivalents BENEE (160) 137 33,430 88,868  (79,224)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes SMNEERZ & Z — — — (3,084) (1,620)
Cash and cash equivalents FRRES LB EEY
at the end of year 2,065 2,202 35,632 121,416 40,572
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